PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE
NOTICE OF MEETING
Date:
Time
Place:

Wednesday, 13 September 2017
10.30 am
Ashcombe Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN

Contact:
Angela Guest tel: 020 8541 9075, Room 122, County Hall
Telephone:
020 8213 2662
Email:
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk
[For queries on the content of the agenda and requests for copies of related documents]

Tim Hall (Chairman)
Keith Taylor (Vice-Chairman)
Natalie Bramhall
Stephen Cooksey
Matt Furniss
Jeffrey Harris
Edward Hawkins
Ernest Mallett MBE
Bernie Muir
Andrew Povey
Mrs Penny Rivers
Rose Thorn

David Hodge CBE
John Furey
Peter Martin
Tony Samuels

Mary Angell
Mike Bennison
Chris Botten
Nick Darby
Jonathan Essex
Angela Goodwin
David Goodwin
Richard Hampson
Nick Harrison
Julie Iles
Graham Knight
Yvonna Lay
David Lee
Cameron McIntosh
Chris Townsend
Will Forster
Fiona White

APPOINTED MEMBERS [12]
Leatherhead and Fetcham East;
Shere;
Redhill West & Meadvale;
Dorking South and the Holmwoods;
Shalford;
Tadworth, Walton & Kingswood;
Heatherside and Parkside;
West Molesey;
Epsom West;
Cranleigh & Ewhurst;
Godalming North;
Godstone;

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) [4]
Leader of the Council
Warlingham;
Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member
Addlestone;
for Economic Prosperity
Chairman of the Council
Godalming South, Milford & Witley;
Vice-Chairman of the Council
Walton South & Oatlands;
APPOINTED SUBSTITUTES [17]
Woodham and New Haw;
Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott;
Caterham Hill;
The Dittons;
Redhill East;
Guildford North;
Guildford South-West;
Haslemere;
Nork & Tattenhams;
Horsleys;
Horley East;
Egham;
Caterham Valley;
Oxted;
Ashtead;
Woking South;
Guildford West;

Register of planning applications: http://planning.surreycc.gov.uk/
1

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please
either call our Contact Centre on 08456 009 009, write to Surrey
County Council at County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon
Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN, Minicom 020 8541 0698, fax 020 8541 9004,
or email joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. This meeting will be held in
public. If you would like to attend and you have any special
requirements, please contact Angela Guest tel: 020 8541 9075 on 020
8213 2662.

2

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions
under Standing Order 40.

2

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

(Pages 1 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 2 August 2017.

3

PETITIONS
To receive any petitions from members of the public in accordance
with Standing Order 65 (please see note 7 below).

4

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any questions received from local government electors
within Surrey in accordance with Standing Order 66 (please see
note 8 below).

5

MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME
To answer any questions received from Members of the Council in
accordance with Standing Order 47.

6

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in
respect of any item(s) of business being considered at
this meeting
NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner)
 Members with a significant personal interest may participate
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that
interest could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

3

7

WO/2017/0898 - FREEMANTLES SCHOOL, SMARTS HEATH
ROAD, WOKING, SURREY GU22 0AN

(Pages 25 - 56)

installation of new modular classroom unit comprising 4
classrooms and ancillary facilities
provision of 23 additional parking spaces and new fire
access route
retention of existing demountable classroom unit permitted
under application WO11/0011
all for a temporary period of 14 years.
Freemantles School is a specialised school for children aged
between 4 and 19 with autistic spectrum disorders (ASD). The
school lies within the Green Belt at Mayford, 2 miles to the south of
Woking Town Centre. The expansion of Freemantles School as
set out above to allow for 4 consecutive bulge classes of 9 pupils
all with an Education Health Care Plan is part of a suite of
proposals within the County to increase the number of Special
school places available. This proposal will help ensure that the
council meets its statutory duty of providing a school place for
every resident pupil who requires one.

8

MO/2017/0916 - BROCKHAM WELL SITE, FELTON'S FARM,
OLD SCHOOL LANE, BROCKHAM, RH3 7AU

(Pages 57 - 90)

Installation of on-site facilities comprising hardstanding, site office,
site toilet facilities, site security office and mess facility; storage
containers; lighting units incorporating CCTV equipment; 2.4
metres high palisade fence and gates; electrical control buildings;
portable site generator with 2 no. enclosed fuel tanks, and parking
area for car/van until 31 December 2036 with restoration to
agriculture (retrospective).

9

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL'S LOCAL LIST: REQUEST
FORMAL ADOPTION OF LOCAL LIST FOR THE VALIDATION
OF COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AND COUNTY MATTERS
PLANNING APPLICATIONS
This report is to advise Members of the responses in regard to the
consultation on the proposed Local List for the Validation of
Planning Applications received by Surrey County Council and the
amendments that have been made as a result.
Officers request that the committee formally adopt the document
allowing for periodic reviews of the document and officers to update
technical notes, in engagement with relevant consultees, when and
if required.

4

(Pages 91 190)

10

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Planning & Regulatory Committee will be
on 18 October 2017.

David McNulty
Chief Executive
05 September 2017

5

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at
reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation
Note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet
site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
filmed. The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council.
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and
Democratic Services at the meeting

NOTES:
1.

The Chairman will adjourn the meeting for lunch from 12.45pm unless satisfied that the
Committee's business can be completed by 1.15pm.

2.

Members are requested to let the Regulatory Committee Manager have the wording of
any motions and amendments not later than one hour before the start of the meeting.

3.

Substitutions must be notified to the Regulatory Committee Manager by the absent
Member or group representative at least half an hour in advance of the meeting.

4.

Planning officers will introduce their report and be able to provide information or advice to
Members during the meeting. They can also be contacted before the meeting if you
require information or advice on any matter.

5.

A record of any items handled under delegated powers since the last meeting of the
Committee will be available for inspection at the meeting.

6.

Members of the public can speak at the Committee meeting on any planning application
that is being reported to the Committee for decision, provided they have made written
representations on the application at least 14 days in advance of the meeting, and
provided they have registered their wish to do so with the Regulatory Committee
6

Manager no later than midday on the working day before the meeting. The number of
public speakers is restricted to five objectors and five supporters in respect of each
application.
7.

Petitions from members of the public may be presented to the Committee provided that
they contain 100 or more signatures and relate to a matter within the Committee’s terms
of reference. The presentation of petitions on the following matters is not allowed: (a)
matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to
Information Act 1985; and (b) planning applications. Notice must be given in writing at
least 14 days before the meeting. Please contact the Regulatory Committee Manager for
further advice.

8.

Notice of public questions must be given in writing at least 7 days before the meeting.
Members of the public may ask one question relating to a matter within the Committee’s
terms of reference. Questions on “confidential” or “exempt” matters and planning
applications are not allowed. Questions should relate to general policy and not detail.
Please contact the Regulatory Committee Manager for further advice.

9.

On 10 December 2013, the Council agreed amendments to the Scheme of Delegation so
that:







All details pursuant (applications relating to a previously granted permission) and
non-material amendments (minor issues that do not change the principles of an
existing permission) will be delegated to officers (irrespective of the number of
objections).
Any full application with fewer than 5 objections, which is in accordance with the
development plan and national polices will be delegated to officers.
Any full application with fewer than 5 objections that is not in accordance with the
development plan (i.e. waste development in Green Belt) and national policies will be
delegated to officers in liaison with either the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the
Planning & Regulatory Committee.
Any application can come before committee if requested by the local member or a
member of the Planning & Regulatory Committee.

The revised Scheme of Delegation came into effect as of the date of the Council
decision.

7

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – GUIDANCE ON THE DETERMINATION OF
PLANNING APPLICATIONS
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations
section in the following committee reports.
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when
determining planning applications to “have regard to (a) the provisions of the development plan,
so far as material to the application, (b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to
the application, and (c) any other material considerations”. This section of the 1990 Act must be
read together with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (2004 Act),
which provides that: “If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.”
Development plan
In Surrey the adopted development plan consists of the:
 Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011(comprised of the Core Strategy and Primary
Aggregates Development Plan Documents (DPD))
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 (comprised of the Core Strategy, Waste Development and
Waste Development Control Policies DPDs)
 Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD for the Minerals and Waste Plans 2013 (Aggregates
Recycling DPD 2013)
 Any saved local plan policies and the adopted Local Development Documents
(development plan documents and supplementary planning documents) prepared by the
eleven Surrey district/borough councils in Surrey
 South East Plan 2009 Policy NRM6 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (apart
from a policy relating to the former Upper Heyford Air Base in Oxfordshire the rest of the
plan was revoked on 25 March 2013)
 Any neighbourhood plans (where they have been approved by the local community at
referendum)
Set out in each report are the development plan documents and policies which provide the
development plan framework relevant to the application under consideration.
Material considerations
Material considerations will vary from planning application to planning application and can
include: relevant European policy; the March 2012 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and updates; the March 2014 national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and updates; National
Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) October 2014; Waste Management Plan for England 2013;
extant planning policy statements; Government Circulars and letters to Chief Planning Officers;
emerging local development documents (being produced by Surrey County Council, the
district/borough council or neighbourhood forum in whose area the application site lies).
National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance
The March 2012 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and subsequent updates
replaced 30 Planning Policy Statements, Planning Policy Guidance Notes, Minerals Policy
Statements and Minerals Policy Guidance Notes and related Practice Guides, some
Government Circulars and letters to Chief Planning Officers and provides consolidated guidance
for local planning authorities and decision takers in relation to decision-taking (determining
planning applications) and in preparing plans (plan making).
8

The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides
related guidance. The NPPF should be read alongside other national planning policies on
Waste, Travellers, Planning for Schools Development, Sustainable Drainage Systems, Parking,
and Starter Homes .
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development which the
document states “should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making and
decision-taking” (paragraph 14). The NPPF makes clear the purpose of the planning system is
to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development which has three dimensions:
economic, social and environmental. These give rise to the need for the planning system to
perform a number of mutually dependent roles: an economic role, a social role and an
environmental role. The NPPF sets out 12 core land-use planning principles that should
underpin both decision-taking and plan making.
The NPPF does not change the statutory principle that determination of planning applications
must be made in accordance with the adopted development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The NPPF is one of those material considerations. In determining planning
applications the NPPF (paragraph 14) states that development proposals that accord with the
development plan should be approved without delay; and where the development plan is
absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, permission should be granted unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole; or specific policies in the NPPF indicate
development should be restricted.
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 215 states that in determining planning applications local planning
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the
greater the weight they may be given). For emerging plans the NPPF (paragraph 216) states
that, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, weight may also be given to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:
 “The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
 The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given), and;
 The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).”
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 – GUIDANCE FOR INTERPRETATION
This Guidance should be read in conjunction with the Human Rights section in the following
Committee reports.
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights in
English law. It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act incompatibly
with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act. As such, those persons directly
affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to claim a breach
of their human rights. Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact of the
development against the benefits to the public at large.
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article
1 of Protocol 1. These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act.

9

Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing. Officers must be satisfied that the
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received
have been properly covered in the report. Members of the public wishing to make oral
representations may do so at Committee, having given the requisite advance notice, and this
satisfies the requirements of Article 6.
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life. This has been interpreted as the
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference. Officers must judge whether the
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8.
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions
and possibly other rights. Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions.
These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.
Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective. This
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe.
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be
engaged.

10

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the PLANNING AND REGULATORY
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 2 August 2017 at Ashcombe Suite, County
Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting.
Members Present:
Mr Keith Taylor (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Tim Hall (Chairman)
Mr Stephen Cooksey
Mr Matt Furniss
Dr Andrew Povey
Mrs Penny Rivers
Mrs Rose Thorn
Mr Jeffrey Harris
Apologies:
Mr Ernest Mallett MBE
Mr Edward Hawkins
Mrs Natalie Bramhall

215/17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies for absence were received from Mr Ernest Mallett MBE, Mr Edward
Hawkins and Natalie Bramhall. Mrs Mary Angell attended as substitute.
216/17 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING [Item 2]
The Minutes were approved as an accurate record of the previous meeting
and signed by the Chairman.
217/17 PETITIONS [Item 3]
There were none.
218/17 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME [Item 4]
There were none.
219/17 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME [Item 5]
There were none.
220/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS [Item 6]
Dr Andrew Povey declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was a Trustee
of the Surrey Hills Society. He took part in the meeting.

Page 1 of 9

Page 1

2

2
With agreement of the Committee item 8 was considered before item 7.
221/17 MINERALS/WASTE MO/2017/0740 - LAND AT BURY HILL WOOD,
COLDHARBOUR LANE, HOLMWOOD, SURREY RH5 6HN [Item 8]

Officers:
Alan Stones, Planning Development Team Manager
Samantha Murphy, Principal Planning Officer
Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor
Speakers:
Alan Hustings, a local resident, made the following points:
1. The Independent Safety Audit in the traffic survey was based on the
October 2014 Traffic Management Plan (TMP). Therefore,
considering the outdated 1100 Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV)
movements and not the 1500-1600 currently considered he raised
concerns about potential further inaccuracies in the outdated traffic
survey.
2. He stated that Coldharbour Lane was a very popular recreational cycle
route all through the year and therefore would benefit from the
recommendations outlined by the Safety Audit. He also raised a
concern about the TMP making no provision for pedestrians using
Coldharbour Lane due to inconclusive surveying of pedestrians in the
Lane.
Pam Pulling Smith, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. Residents of Coldharbour Lane felt they had not been properly
consulted.
2. Concern was raised about restricted access to local businesses that
would be caused by the road closures and HGV use of the Lane.
Elderly and unwell residents would also be restricted to attend hospital
appointments and recreational activities in the area.
3. The Committee were asked to consider the residents that would be
directly affected by the TMP and were asked to drive on Coldharbour
Lane to allow for proper consideration.
Pat Smith, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. That no Traffic Survey had been completed in Dorking or Flint Hill.
Concern was raised as traffic issues were already severe in the area
and further HGV movements would only add additional traffic
problems.
2. She had conducted her own survey which showed a large variety of
road users using Flint Hill at sometimes dangerous speeds which
highlighted the need for a formal traffic survey to be completed and
considered. The current traffic survey was said to be insufficient due to
it covering a limited area. She requested that a traffic survey be
completed in Flint Hill and other affected Dorking roads.

Page 2 of 9

Page 2

Charlotte Nolan, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. That there were inaccuracies in the Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA) due to it being based on an outdated version of the TMP. It was
further stated that the socio-economic impacts of the TMP had not be
considered within the Traffic Survey. Many local businesses had
expressed concern about impacts and had forwarded these to Surrey
County Council. Members were informed of further impacts that had
not be considered in the traffic survey which would have a negative
affect on local businesses.
2. She had noted that Europa conducted a survey in the area and
discovered that a large number of cyclists used the road on a Saturday
and therefore decided that it would not be appropriate to continue
operations on this day. It was then stressed that cyclists were
extremely active all through the week but this had not been considered
due to the surveys being very outdated.
Richard Elliott, the applicant’s agent, made the following points in response:
1. He emphasised that this item was for the consideration of the traffic
survey and not the TMP. He also highlighted that the recommendation
was to agree that the surveys carried out by the applicant met the
requirements of Condition 18.
2. He referred to a local residents comments stating that a survey was
needed to be completed on Flint Hill. It was said that a continuous
traffic flow monitoring point had been present in Knoll Road in order to
record the vehicle flows in the area. In response to the resident stating
that a EIA was needed in Knoll Road, he stated that the number of
vehicles using the site was below the threshold for the road to be
taken into consideration which the Planning Inspector had recognised.
3. The committee were informed that a fourth survey had been carried
out on a Saturday to ensure accurate and complete data was
produced. It was said that pedestrians and equestrians would not be
disregarded and logical safety measures and the Highway Code would
continue to be followed.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers reiterated the wording of Condition 18 to make clear the
Planning Inspectors requirements outlined in the Inspectors report. It
was said that the Planning Inspector showed concern over the high
number of cyclists on Coldharbour Lane and the safety impacts of
HGV movements on Saturday mornings. It was further confirmed that
the applicant had removed Saturday as an operational day due to the
increased cyclist activity. Officers advised Members that they believed
the applicant had completed the requirements outlined by the Planning
Inspector. Officers provided further information on the details around
the Safety Audit and confirmed that the submitted Safety Audit was
satisfactory. An update sheet was tabled at the meeting and is
attached as Appendix A to these minutes.
2. Members of the Committee raised concern that officers had put
forward a recommendation to not accept all of the recommendations of
the Safety Audit.
3. Some Members questioned the accuracy of the Traffic Survey due to
the results showing that there were no equestrians and very few

Page 3 of 9

Page 3

2

2

pedestrians on the road. A Member said that they had vast local
knowledge of the area and that this would be very unlikely.
4. Officers stated that not all recommendations of safety audits were
accepted and in the event of this, an internal process was carried out
and an exceptions report produced. In this instance officers had
considered the two recommendations in the Safety Audit and deemed
them inappropriate for a number of reasons. It was also reported that
the two recommendations not accepted were dealt with under
Condition 19. With regard to the four surveys, officers stated that they
reflected similar results of road users and therefore officers considered
them as fit for purpose.
5. A Member proposed that the Committee should accept all four of the
Safety Audit recommendations due to there being good reason for
doing so. The Committee debated this proposal.
6. The enforcement powers of the County Planning Authority were
queried and officers confirmed that approved schemes may be liable
to enforcement if found to be in breach of conditions. This would
include a series of warnings and, if necessary, a Breach of Conditions
Notice.
A Motion was put forward by Mr Cooksey, and seconded by Mr Furniss, that
the Safety Audit and its recommendations be accepted in its entirety. The
Motion was put to the vote with five Members voting for and four against.
Therefore the motion was carried.
Resolved:
1. That the details of the traffic survey and Safety Audit submitted
pursuant to Condition 18 of Appeal Decision
APP/B3600/A/11/2166561 dated 7 August 2015 contained in
application ref: MO/2017/0740 be approved.
2. That all recommendations given in the Safety Audit be accepted.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
Mrs Penny Rivers arrived at 11.06 am during the debate on this item and as
she was not present from the whole of this item, refrained from the vote.
222/17 MINERALS/WASTE MO/2017/0911 - LAND AT BURY HILL WOOD, OFF
COLDHARBOUR LANE, HOLMWOOD, SURREY RH5 6HN [Item 7]
Officers:
Alan Stones, Planning Development Team Manager
Samantha Murphy, Principal Planning Officer
Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor
Speakers:
Pat Smith, a Local resident, made the following points:

Page 4 of 9

Page 4

1. The TMP was deficient as it failed to mention the impacts on Flint Hill,
the designated route to Knoll Road. It was said that this route would be
unworkable due to the road being extremely narrow with a single
footpath. She stated that Flint Hill was a major access point to Dorking
as well as the single access point for the residents of Goodwin estate
which was not considered in the TMP.
2. That concerns raised by residents around impacts had not been
addressed in the TMP and that made it unworkable.

Janet Housden, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. That the west end of Knoll Road would be used as a parking bay for
HGVs waiting to be dispatched. She stated that previously, a three
minute time limit had been set for the HGVs but in the latest TMP this
time limit had been classified as unworkable and instead HGVs should
instead move as soon as practicable. This was said to have an impact
on the quality of life for Knoll Road residents as well as causing
dangerous traffic conditions for cars, cyclists and pedestrians.
2. She also raised a concern that the banksmen would not have a
sufficient view of Knoll Road to properly control the flow of traffic which
could result in a severe casualty.
3. Concerns were raised regarding efficiency of radio contact with
drivers.
Vicky Elcoate, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. A petition of over 2000 signatories was to be presented at Mole Valley
Local Committee which sought to protect the historic trees found on
Coldharbour Lane. It was explained that residents were concerned by
the damage that could be caused by HGVs to the tree and banks on
the Lane.
2. Members noted a tree report previously submitted to the Committee by
tMrs Elcoate which stated that any damage to the overhanging and
intertwined root systems of the historic trees would be irreversible. It
was stressed that the TMP did not consider these issues nor provide
mitigation measures to the environmental impacts.
3. She stated that Leith Hill Action Group had shown a 3D analysis that
showed HGVs could not clear humps in the road without causing
damage to tree canopies.
4. Further concerns of the environmental impacts of the TMP were raised
and she asked the Committee to reject the TMP.
Max Rosenberg, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. That the TMP did not provide sufficient risk management and
mitigation as well as not including vital information of road users. The
Committee should not ignore equestrians because they did not show
up in the survey. He also asked how pedestrians, which did show up
in the survey, were put as a nil risk.
2. There was no mention of the radioactive material being transported.
3. It was stressed that no proper analysis had been provided to measure
the delay to emergency vehicles trying to reach Coldharbour Lane and
surrounding areas.

Page 5 of 9

Page 5

2

2

4. He informed Members that residents of Coldharbour Lane would need
to contact the banksmen by mobile phone to request to leave their
property via the Lane. This was said to be impossible due to a lack of
mobile phone signal in the area.
Patrick Nolan, a Local resident, made the following points:
1. That the Planning inspector viewed the previous TMP to be
unworkable. It was said that because of this the current TMP should
not be accepted until it was up to standard.
2. He stated that Europa had not held any public meetings with residents,
after stating that they would during the public enquiry, to ensure a
satisfactory TMP.
3. He asked the Committee to consider the possible casualties that could
be caused as a result of the TMP and asked for it to be rejected.
4. He also questioned the length and timings of the consultation on the
TMP as the consultation ended after the officer’s report was written
and was concerned that the Committee may not have had all the
information necessary.
Richard Elliott, the applicant’s agent, made the following points in response:
1. Members were informed of various consultations that had taken place
in preparation of the TMP. He stressed that it had been a long process
with additional safety audits and surveys carried out and that it had not
been rushed. Consultations were with a range of parties including
Leith Hill Action Group (LHAG) which had led to very few amendments
of the Plan.
2. He clarified the working hours proposed in the TMP was as a result of
assessing the potential risk in the area. Although the number of
pedestrians and equestrians recorded in the survey was low, with the
exception of a Saturday, all road users were taking into consideration
during the creation of the TMP.
3. It was confirmed that in the event of an emergency vehicle being
obstructed by a moving HGV then it would take up to 30 seconds to
reach the next passing point to allow the emergency vehicle to pass.
4. In regards to resident’s comments on the lack of mobile phone signal
in the area, he stated that it had been confirmed that there was a
single provider that did have adequate mobile signal to be able to
communicate.
5. He stated that the use of aluminium tracks would greatly reduce the
number of lorries and that the holding bays in Knoll Road would not be
needed very often.
6. He also reiterated that the road closure would only be in place when
the rig was being delivered and removed from the site. At all other
times there would be traffic management in place.
Hazel Watson, the Local Member, made the following points:
1. The local Member commented on a number of issues relating to the
absence of risk management in the TMP. It was said that the number

Page 6 of 9

Page 6

of accidents would increase if these factors were not addressed due to
increased traffic and hazardous environmental conditions.
2. She said it would be unacceptable that residents of Coldharbour Lane
would need to phone the banksmen to get permission to leave their
homes via the Lane. In order to contact the banksmen a mobile phone
signal would be needed but this would not be possible as the signal
was very poor in the area.
3. The local Member listed a number of other issues with the TMP,
including access to Dorking and that there was no analysis undertaken
of its workability, and asked the Committee to reject the proposal.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers introduced the report and tabled an update sheet at the
meeting and is attached as Appendix B to these minutes. Members
were provided with a details of the Inspectors report in order to outline
the requirements of condition 19. Officers agreed that the current
TMP addressed the outlined requirements adequately. Members
noted that the Fire and Emergency Service had not issued any
objections to the proposal.
2. Clarification was sought on timings for HGV movements within
Coldharbour Lane which led to a discussion where it was confirmed
that the Inspector’s report outlined that in the event of delay during the
HGV movements it would still continue to be manageable.
3. Members referred to details outlined in the report and stated that
30mph would be a dangerous speed limit to travel through
Coldharbour Lane due to the hazardous layout of the road. Members
showed concern that although the report stated otherwise, the road
would also be too narrow to transport a drilling rig. Officers assured
the Committee that the identified route for HGVs should be accepted
due to the Planning Inspector being satisfied that HGVs could travel
through the sunken lane without causing damage.
4. Committee Members raised many other concerns including:
 the difference between using stone or aluminium tracks
 that number and timings of movements didn’t seem to add up
 what would happen if Ryka’s Café car park was full
 there was no 3D analysis of the route
 they were not convinced that mobile signals work in this area
 enforcement would be mainly self-enforcement
 it was not clear where width measurements had been taken, for
example, did they include the kerb
 it seemed rather unusual to be consulting the local committee after
a decision was to be made at this meeting
 that seasonal implications had not been considered
 the impact on the route to Dorking was not sufficiently considered
5. A Member stated that there had been enough change in the TMP for
the Committee to consider it as a whole rather than just look at the
three points raised by the Inspector. That Member also stated that the
TMP did not comply with safety requirements of the Local Plan.

Page 7 of 9

Page 7

2

2

6. It was also reported that a petition requesting a Tree Preservation
Order (TPO) for Coldharbour had been received and not responded to
in this report.
7. A Motion was put forward by Mr Stephen Cooksey, seconded by Mrs
Penny River that:
The TMP should be refused for the following three reasons;
i.
The TMP does not adequately address the issues surrounding
the route to Knoll Road
ii.
The TMP does not address the impact to Dorking Town centre
iii.
The TMP does not adequately deal with the access and safety
issues on Coldharbour Lane and Knoll Road.
Three Members spoke on the motion and made following points:
 Members were reminded that Officers had confirmed that the
TMP as presented adequately addressed the requirements set
out in the Planning Inspector’s report.
 There was concern that the motion could not be supported for
a number of reasons. Members suggested that the item be
deferred to allow for more information to be obtained,
specifically if aluminium tracking or stone tracking would be
used.
 Refusing the TMP on the grounds previously stated would
open the Plan to examination far greater than the Inspector
recommended.
 More information was required to make the decision including a
3D analysis of the route, further details of the mobile signal in
the area and the view of Mole Valley Local Committee.
8. The Planning Development Team Manager explained that the
communications and café issues raised were operational matters for
the operational plan and if it couldn’t be made to work then the plan
could not be run. He also stated that it would be reasonable for
Committee to make a decision now and take into account what the
Local Committee had to say at a later date.
9. The motion to refuse was put to a vote in which two voted for and
seven against. Therefore the motion was lost.
10. Mr Jeff Harris moved a motion, seconded by Mr Matt Furniss to defer
the application in order to receive further information on concerns
raised by members and specifically information regarding the nature of
the agreement with Ryka’s Café and alternatives if parking is not
available, confirmation of whether aluminium tracks were to be
available and used or whether the stone would be used, and the
availability and range of mobile communications in the area.
11. The motion was put to a vote in which six voted for, and four voted
against. The motion was carried.
Resolved:

Page 8 of 9

Page 8

That application MO/2017/0911 - Land at Bury Hill Wood, off Coldharbour
Lane, Holmwood, Surrey RH5 6HN be deferred in order to receive further
information on concerns raised by members including 3D analysis but
specifically, information regarding the nature of the agreement with Ryka’s
Café and alternatives if parking was not available, confirmation of whether
aluminium tracks were to be available and used or whether the stone would
be used, and the availability and range of mobile communications in the area.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.

223/17

DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 9]

The date of the next meeting was noted.

Meeting closed at 1.00 pm
_________________________
Chairman

Page 9 of 9

Page 9

2

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Minute Item 221/1
Planning & Regulatory Committee 2 August 2017
UPDATE SHEET
MINERALS/WASTE MO/2017/0740
DISTRICT(S)

MOLE VALLEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

Land at Bury Hill Wood, Coldharbour Lane, Holmwood, Surrey RH5 6HN
Details of a traffic survey and a safety audit pursuant to Condition 18 of appeal ref:
APP/B3600/A/11/2166561 dated 15 August 2015.

CONSULTATIONS AND PUBLICITY
Additional key issues raised by public
Five further letters of representation has been received on this application raising concerns.
These are as follows:
Rep 1:
 It is unclear if the surveys were monitoring people walking/equestrians along parts of
Coldharbour Lane or the whole length.
 There is a risk to pedestrians and equestrians on Saturday morning
 Danger to cyclists – mud on the road, speed of cyclists reaching 40mph on northward
stretch and their stopping distances all likely to cause accidents
 HGV access on Saturdays is unsafe and dangerous
 Damage has been caused to Coldharbour Lane when a lorry left the application site after
trying to pass a car.
 There is a presumption that cyclists, pedestrians and equestrians enter Coldharbour
Lane in the same manner as a car. This is not true, they will enter from footpaths and
tracks and there is no plan in place to manage that.
Rep 2: object to the survey because it fails to take account of cyclists moving in the same
direction as HGVs. Endorse all of LHAG’s commented on this planning application.
Rep 3: the traffic survey dismisses dangers to equestrians; despite the fact that even a single
horserider per day (i.e. infrequent enough to not be picked up in the survey) still represents a
danger. As a whole, the survey's attempt to move into risk measurement is not justified, relying
purely on supposition. Endorse all of LHAG’s commented on this planning application.
Rep 4:
 Disappointed that the traffic survey was restricted to Saturdays only. Given the number
of pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians on weekdays the survey should have covered
weekdays.
 How was the conclusion that the risk presented to pedestrians at the junction of Knoll
Road/ Coldharbour Lane and Ridgeway Road is negligible given pedestrians cross over
this junction.
 The parking area at the western end of Knoll Road would present an impediment to clear
vision for pedestrians, cyclists and vehicular traffic intending to negotiate this junction.
The report makes no reference to this.
 The claim that a traffic controller at this junction would ‘provide additional safety for a
pedestrian’ is unrealistic as the traffic controller would be extremely exercised in trying to
keep in phone contact with his colleagues at control sites further to the south, whilst also
trying to keep control of vehicular and cyclist traffic approaching this busy junction from 4
directions.

Page
Page 11
1

2

2

Rep 5:
 The matter of traffic congestion has been ignored. Section 96 of the Officers report
[Officers report for MO/2017/0911 not MO/2017/0740] states there will be no traffic
problems and ignored the implications of moving the rig around the Dorking bypass to
Knoll Road.
 The question of where the rig will come from has been ignored. If from the south it will
come along the dangerous A24 from Horsham to Capel.
 Worried that Flint Hill has been omitted. The assumption that is an A grade road so can
cope easily with the extra traffic. There has been no survey to show this can cope.
Officer comment:
Condition 18 requires a traffic survey to be undertaken of all vehicles and pedestrians using
Knoll Road and Coldharbour Lane on Saturdays between the hours of 0800 and 1400.
The traffic survey is a statement of fact with regards to what cyclists, pedestrians, equestrians
and cars were seen on Coldharbour Lane and Knoll Road on the four surveys that took place.
The traffic survey is not required to cover weekdays as Condition 18 is explicit it is only for
Saturdays. The traffic survey is not required to cover Flint Hill or Ridgeway Road as it is explicit
it need only cover Knoll Road and Coldharbour Lane.
The surveys take into account and have recorded the direction cyclists, pedestrians and
equestrians were travelling on the survey day including travelling towards Dorking and travelling
towards Coldharbour village. Therefore this would cover cyclists travelling towards a HGV or
travelling in the same direction as a HGV.
The surveys were carried out by people standing in positions at points along Knoll Road and
Coldharbour Lane and recording if a vehicle (including motorbike)/ pedestrian/ cyclist or
equestrian was seen and which direction they were travelling. This includes whether the
pedestrian or equestrian was travelling along Coldharbour Lane for its full length or towards a
right of way.
The CTMP has been amended to remove HGV access/ egress on Saturdays. The CTMP
includes information about the signage that would be placed where rights of way enter onto
Coldharbour Lane. This would be for all rights of way including: footpaths 135, 247, 250, 252,
257; and bridleway 260.
Condition 18 does not require a risk assessment to be carried out but just a survey and then a
Safety Audit.

Page
Page12
2

Minute Item 222/1

MO/2017/0911
Planning & Regulatory Committee 2 August 2017
UPDATE SHEET
MINERALS/WASTE MO/2017/0911
DISTRICT(S)

MOLE VALLEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

Land at Bury Hill Wood, off Coldharbour Lane, Holmwood, Surrey RH5 6HN
Details of a Traffic Management Scheme pursuant to Condition 19 of appeal ref:
APP/B3600/A/11/2166561 dated 7 August 2015.

CONSULTATIONS AND PUBLICITY
District Council
Mole Valley District Council are due to report this application to their committee in the evening of
2 August 2017. Their report recommends No Objection be raised.
Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory)
Surrey Fire and Rescue have commented that the issues that arise from HGV traffic access the
application site during the proposal were considered and dealt with as part of planning
application MO09/0110. Surrey Fire and Rescue have commented that access for both
Emergency Services and Critical Services (health and social community care) will need to be
considered as part of the operational planning stage which follows on from the planning process.
The operational planning stage can only be completed once the dates and timings for both the
road closure and vehicle movements have been confirmed by Europa. The establishment of an
operational plan is a formal process and a parallel regime that is used for any road events/ road
closures.
Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups
Leith Hill Action Group (LHAG) have written in raising the following concerns:
 It is contestable that the TMP must be workable. The TMP provides no more insight into
that than the 2008 or the 2015 versions.
 There is uncertainty as to the basic facts i.e.:
o How many HGV movements are required – table 2 of the Officers report attempts to
interpret Table 5.1 of the TMP and gives subtotals summing to 1402 and 1546 (this
umber is using the aluminium trackway and is irrelevant as this option is proposed
entirely at the Applicant’s option). We believe the true number is slightly higher than the
last of these. The information is not there.
 No attempt has been made to model or calculate typical transit times of HGVs up and down
the steep, narrow and winding Coldharbour Lane whilst negotiating four sets of traffic
controls and other traffic. The workability of the scheme cannot be assessed. Our
assessment is that the required number of daily movements could not be achieved.
 If the TMP’s workability cannot be assessed, its impacts cannot be assessed.
 No attempt has been made to explain how users or residents of Logmore Lane or the
residents of Coldharbour Lane would integrate into the scheme – how will they
communicate with the traffic controllers when there is no mobile reception on large parts of
Coldharbour Lane
 No assessment has been made of the ability of alternative routes to handle Coldharbour
Lane traffic.

Page
Page 13
3

2

MO/2017/0911

2















Coldharbour Lane is steep, narrow and winding sunken lane. For much of its 3 mile length it
is too narrow for a single car safely to pass a single cyclists. It is classified as “Not suitable
for HGVs”. The vehicles to be used are not cars but mostly 30 to 50 tonne vehicles 8 to 9
feet wide and 40 – 50 feet long.
The Safety Audit includes Recommendation 3: “Advise escort vehicle drivers that they
should stop if they encounter cyclists coming towards them to allow them to safely pass”.
This recommendation is NOT accepted in the TMP on the advice of SCC Officers and
Officers propose a card to be issued to every HGV driver
The Safety Audit and TMP is silent on what HGV drivers should do if they encounter a
cyclist going in the same direction [as the HGV] – surely a much more frequent likely
occurrence under the proposed scheme
The Safety Audit included Recommendation 2: “provide signing specifically advising cyclists
to wait for the signal to go”. Officers refusal to accept this specific recommendation is
irresponsible and dangerous. It constitutes a failure to meet the requirement of Condition 19
that “Any mitigation measures should be subject to the road safety audit process”, the
measures now proposed have not been.
At a meeting held in September 2016 with SCC, LHAG and representatives of the
applicant, undertakings were given about early sight of drafts. These undertakings have not
been honoured.
The stated aims of the TMP include “ensuring the safety of road users”. With respect to
cyclists and equestrians this is demonstrably not achieved.
The stated aims of the TMP including “minimis[ing] any delay to road users”. This has not
been achieved.
The impacts of businesses and residents on Coldharbour Lane and Coldharbour have not
been considered.
The requirement of Condition 19 that any mitigating measures should be subject to the road
safety audit process have not been met
The deficiencies of the material presented and public interest are too great and this scheme
should be rejected in its present form

CPRE have commented saying the CTMP provides little additional information on how the
scheme will operate and it should not be accepted. Additional information should be provided
on:
 The likely vehicle numbers going through the system at peak times and the impact this
will have on existing traffic movements. The vehicles will be very slow moving and could
close Coldharbour Lane for considerable periods for time.
 There is no explanation of the implications of no Saturday working
 Although much is made of replacing hardcore with aluminium trackway it is not clear if
this is achievable. It needs to be clarified and possibly conditioned if it is the only way the
CTMP can be made to work.
 There is no information on delays to emergency vehicles. It is not adequate to state that
mineral vehicles can be held up to allow emergency vehicles. How will this be achieved if
enroute. How will operators contact emergency vehicles as mobile phone connections
can be weak.
 There is no evaluation of the impact on existing parking on Knoll Road or increased
congestion in Dorking or the wider area.
 It is unsatisfactory to propose the Ryka Carpark as a holding area. This is already well
used by HGVs.
 It is clear there is little room for error for the movement paths of the HGVs and it is likely
the historic banks with their tree roots and ecology will be damaged
 The infrastructure is inadequate to cope with the additional HGV traffic.
Additional key issues raised by public
97 further letters of representation have been received since the Officer report was published.
Some of these letters are from residents who have previously made representations. Some are

Page
Page14
4

MO/2017/0911
from residents who have not. The following comments are issues raised within these
representations in addition to comments made and documented within the Officer report:
General
1) The whole application is driven by greed
2) The drilling will cause serious impact/ damage aquifers/ rig damaging the skyline/ should be
undertaken elsewhere
Consultation time period
3) Concern how consideration can be given to further comments when the meeting date is so
close to the consultation closing date
4) Object/ protest to rush the scheme through without adequate time for consultation
5) The 14 day consultation period is woefully short
6) Urge to extend the consultation period until the September meeting
7) Proposal should not be rushed through in weeks
Officer report
8) The report flies in the face of considerations and valid points which are raised and have not
been answered
Risk
9) Cannot see how this scheme is safe
Access to the site
10) Coldharbour Lane will effectively be closed to non-site traffic for the duration of the
development
11) The knock on effect on alternative routes will be chaotic and expensive
12) Coldharbour Lane is a vital link to our village
13) How will other small lanes (i.e. Anstie Lane) cope with extra traffic?
14) The sunken lanes are a challenge for car drivers let alone HGVs
15) Coldharbour Lane is narrow for 4km in length
Lorries and Traffic
16) There will be hundreds of lorries
17) The lorries bringing in equipment have shown damage to the lane. Dread to think what
1000+ lorries will do/ is unimaginable
18) There is already horrific traffic on Vincent Lane - the knock on effect has not been
assessed
19) The existing levels of traffic in Dorking are too high for this proposal
CTMP itself
20) The CTMP does not take into account Recommendation 3 of the Safety Audit
21) The CTMP does not take into account Recommendation 2 of the Safety Audit
22) Are SCC going to provide adequate Police time & funding for incidents that are inevitable
with the CTMP
23) Concern the CTMP would allow HGV movements through Dorking during rush hour and
school arrival/ leaving times
24) The marshalling of HGVs at 4 separate points along Coldharbour Lane was deemed
unworkable by the Inspector & this CTMP is the same
25) More analysis/ an independent analysis/modelling of the traffic management plan needs to
be done
26) Having movements on Saturday morning is unacceptable
27) The CTMP says that there will be no traffic movements on Saturday but this will concentrate
movements during the week
28) There should be a 20mph speed restriction along Coldharbour Lane for the HGVs
29) There is no evidence that the radios would work between the banksmen
30) What happens in the event of a vehicular failure along Coldharbour Lane

Page
Page 15
5

2

MO/2017/0911

2

31) The CTMP does little to allay concerns to both level of disruption and also environmental
damage
32) What time of day will these movements occur
33) Outraged at the lack of information in the revised CTMP
34) If 10 cars are travelling down Coldharbour Lane & meet a HGV, who reverses?
35) Do you have an analysis of HGV movements per phase?
36) The CTMP does not provide for the safety of other road users especially cyclists
37) Aluminium trackway must be used
38) There will be massive consequences of the CTMP
39) Has an assessment of the average length of time for HGV to travel to site been carried out?
40) You cannot approve this CTMP or in fact any CTMP for this site
41) The bus service will cease between Dorking and Coldharbour
42) Is it confirmed that a BDF28 Rig is planned as the CTMP is based on this
43) Appalled by decisions being made in light of overwhelming evidence that the drilling and
traffic management is unworkable
44) Any major project must include the identification of all potential risks and hazards with
appropriate actions to mitigate these risks and a contingency. This CTMP is woefully short
on all of these areas. Some risks are dismissed outright and it only takes one to potentially
result in a death.
Residents
45) The impact of those living on the route will be unacceptable
46) People won't have access or will have delayed or reduced access to emergency services/ it
would take double the time for an EV to get to Coldharbour
47) There is no provision for planning in case of an accident between a HGV and a cyclist
48) It will totally inconvenience those of use who work and live in the area/ people will be
trapped in their homes/ the CTMP shows no consideration to residents who will effectively
be imprisoned in their homes
49) There is no mobile signal so how will residents communicate with the applicant
50) There will be a risk to pedestrians/ cyclists/ equestrians
51) If a HGV travelling to the site at 30mph meets a cyclist doing 20/30mph then there is a high
safety risk of an accident
52) The report does not take into account the number of cyclists on weekdays
Businesses
53) Is the Plough pub to be closed for 18 weeks?
54) Businesses will be affected
55) Our local dog walking business will be affected by road closures and not being able to get to
woods to walk the dogs
Knoll Road
56) How are you going to get lorries along a residential road which already has traffic
problems/ it is inappropriate to use Knoll Road and it will become unusable
57) The junction of Coldharbour Lane & Knoll Road is a hazard with difficulties of crossing
junctions
58) The 3 minute waiting time for HGVs in Knoll Road has been withdrawn. It should be
reinstated
59) Parking on Knoll Road is difficult enough with the HGVs
60) The HGVs waiting with engines idling will be a huge burden
61) Knoll Road will experience heavy traffic, noise, air pollution and damage from the proposal
Flint Hill
62) Flint Hill is a key route into Dorking - has an assessment been done of the HGVs on this
road?
63) There is a lack of attention paid to Flint Hill (the A2003). The road is narrow with a single
footpath for much of its length. The photographs in Appendix 1 show this.

Page
Page16
6

MO/2017/0911
Three types of Proforma letter have been received from members of the public. These raise
issues all covered above in other representations received.
Officer response to new issues raised within representation letters
One key area of concern is with regards to access by Emergency Service vehicles in particular
ambulances. As outlined above under the Surrey Fire & Rescue response, Europa will be
required to establish an Operational Plan which would have to be put in place before work
commences on site. The Operational Plan would cover all emergency services and critical care
services to allow them to continue to operate unimpeded during the exploratory work. The
Operational Plan will require Europa to inform all the emergency services and critical care
services of their operational and its commencement. The Operational Plan follows on from the
planning stage and cannot be established until dates for commencement of development are
known and mobile telephone numbers are known. The establishment of an Operational Plan is a
formal process and a parallel regime that is used for any road events/ road closures such as the
recent Prudential Cycle Ride event. This falls beyond the remit of the planning system.
With regards to mobile phone signal, the applicant has stated that there is a mobile phone
provider that gives coverage on the Site, which will enable contact with the emergency dispatch
centres and local residents. Contact between the security cabin on the application site, the HGV
drivers, the escort vehicles and the banksmen would be via radio.
Type of rig
The applicant has confirmed that the rig cited in the CTMP is the worst case scenario.
Lack of consultation
Of the further comments received, 29 of those have stated that the consultation on the
amendments is inadequate/ too short. The following provides information on this:
 The planning application was validated on 10 May 2017and went out on consultation and
notification of the public on 25 May. This had a deadline for public responses of 21 June
(this is a period of 27 days). This consultation was carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the Development Management Procedure Order 2015.
 An amended CTMP was submitted with a revised plan on 17 July and this went out for
re-consultation and re-notification of the public on 17 July with a deadline for responses
on the re-consultation and re-notification on 31 July. This is a period of 14 days.
 There is no date set out within the Development Management Procedure Order 2015 or
the NPPG as to how long a further consultation should take place. The best practice
approach adopted by the County Planning Authority for all planning applications is to reconsult and re-notify for a period of 14 days.
Safety Audit Findings
LHAG have commented that neither Recommendation 2 or Recommendation 3 of the Safety
Audit form part of the CTMP and therefore the CTMP is “irresponsible and dangerous. It also
constitutes a failure to meet the requirement of Condition 19”. Paragraphs 34 and 35 of the
Officer report cover this point.
LHAG have also commented that the CTMP does not say what HGV drivers should do if they
encounter a cyclist travelling in the same direction as the HGV. As the HGV convoys would have
an escort vehicle in front of them the escort vehicle would see the cyclist first. The escort vehicle
driver height would be the same as a car or van. The escort vehicle would then manage the
HGV convoy to travel behind the cyclist in the same manner as any vehicle travelling behind a
cyclist on the public highway.
Bus Service

Page
Page 17
7

2

MO/2017/0911

2

The bus service that goes through Coldharbour is:
- Monday and Thursday leaving the Plough at 9:47am and 13:02pm (returning 12:32pm)
- Tuesday and Friday leaving the Plough at 2:02pm (returning 5:07pm)
A total of 10 buses to Coldharbour all week. The CTMP would not impact on Wednesdays.
There would be no impact on the evening service on Tuesdays and Fridays. The bus service
would be diverted through Surrey County Council passenger service. The service has been
diverted in the past due to other circumstances historically.

Page
Page18
8

Update Sheet for MO/2017/0911 Appendix 1a

2

Car turning right out of Knoll Road into Flint Hill

The junction of Knoll Road with Flint Hill facing south.

Page
Page 19
9

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

Update Sheet for MO/2017/0911 Appendix 1b

2

Looking south away from Knoll Road/ Flint Hill junction

Pedestrians walking along footpath on Flint Hill

Page
Page 21
11

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Appendix 2 for Update Sheet MO/2017/0911
Photo 1: Lorry travelling along aluminium trackway

Photo 2: HGV unloading aluminium trackway

Page
Page 23
13

2

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24

Item 7
7
TO:

PLANNING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

BY:

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT TEAM MANAGER

DISTRICT(S)

WOKING BOROUGH COUNCIL

DATE: 13 SEPT 2017

ELECTORAL DIVISION(S):
Woking South
Mr Forster

PURPOSE:

FOR DECISION

GRID REF: 499412 156015

TITLE:

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL PROPOSAL WO/2017/0898

SUMMARY REPORT

Freemantles School, Smarts Heath Road, Woking, Surrey GU22 0AN

1.) installation of new modular classroom unit comprising 4 classrooms and ancillary facilities
2.) provision of 23 additional parking spaces and new fire access route
3.) retention of existing demountable classroom unit permitted under application WO11/0011
all for a temporary period of 14 years.

Freemantles School is a specialised school for children aged between 4 and 19 with autistic
spectrum disorders (ASD). The school lies within the Green Belt at Mayford, 2 miles to the
south of Woking Town Centre. The expansion of Freemantles School as set out above to allow
for 4 consecutive bulge classes of 9 pupils all with an Education Health Care Plan is part of a
suite of proposals within the County to increase the number of Special school places available.
This proposal will help ensure that the council meets its statutory duty of providing a school
place for every resident pupil who requires one.

The main issue for consideration is the fact that the site lies within the Green Belt and the
proposal represents inappropriate development. Other issues have been considered such as
highways implications, residential amenity, trees, drainage, impact on playing fields and design
but are all found to be acceptable. In terms of the Green Belt Officers are of the view that the
very special circumstance put forward by the applicant, relating to the need for the development
and lack of suitable alternatives clearly outweighs the harm due to inappropriateness and the
moderate harm to openness.

Page 25

7
Other impacts in respect of amenity, highways, landscaping and drainage can be suitably
mitigated by the imposition of planning conditions.

All replies from consultees have raised no objection and though there have been five letters of
objection from local residents officers do not consider that these raise any issues which would
constitute grounds to reject the scheme.

The recommendation is to Permit subject to conditions

APPLICATION DETAILS

Applicant

SCC Property

Date application valid

25 July 2017

Period for Determination

19 September 2017

Amending Documents

None

SUMMARY OF PLANNING ISSUES

This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text
should be considered before the meeting.

Page 26

7

DESIGN
AND
AMENITY

Is this aspect of the proposal in
accordance with the development
plan?

Paragraphs in the report where this
has been discussed

Yes

16 - 18

Yes

19 - 22

VISUAL

IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL
AMENITY

DEVELOPMENT ON
EXISTING PLAYING FIELD
LAND

Yes
23 - 25

TREES AND
LANDSCAPING

Yes

26 - 29

FLOODING AND
SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE

Yes

30 - 33

Yes

34 - 36

No

37 - 58

HIGHWAYS IMPLICATIONS

GREEN BELT

ILLUSTRATIVE MATERIAL

Site Plan

Aerial Photographs

BACKGROUND

Page 27

7

Site Description

1

Freemantles School is a specialised school for children aged between 4 and 19 with
autistic spectrum disorders (ASD). The school lies within the Green Belt at Mayford, 2
miles to the south of Woking Town Centre. The application site lies to the south of the
existing school buildings on an open area of land. The majority of the school buildings
are single storey with some two storey elements. The buildings are constructed of facing
brickwork and render with aluminium roof. To the south of the school buildings are
playing fields, to the north an access road and beyond that are six residential properties
fronting Smarts Heath Road/Mayford Green the B380. These properties share the use
of the access road for rear access, including access to garages. The A320 Woking to
Guildford Road lies to the east.

2

Mayford Village lies beyond the immediate environs of the application site on the north
side of the B380. To the south is the Hoe Stream, sections of which are designated as a
Site of Nature Conservation Importance. The very southern part of the school site is in
an area subject to flooding from the Hoe Stream. Open countryside extends away to the
south, south east and west while to the northeast lies the edge of the built up area
leading in to Woking Town Centre.

Planning History

3

WO/04/1100 Erection of a special needs school Permitted February 2006

4

WO11/0011 Erection of a single storey modular building to provide classrooms, store
rooms, group meeting rooms and WCs. Permitted 30th March 2011 for 5 years (expired
30th March 2016)

THE PROPOSAL

5

Planning permission is being sought for a temporary period of 14 years for the following:



A new 4 classroom modular building on the site to the south of the existing
school buildings. This would be single storey under a flat roof to a height of
3.5m. It would be 25m wide by 17m deep and would be clad with colourcoat
plastisol sheet colour buttermilk under a steel roof. This building is currently
being used as temporary accommodation at Danetree school and would be
relocated to this site.

Page 28



Retention of an existing modular on the site which was granted planning
permission under reference WO11/0011 for a temporary period which
expired on 30th March 2016. This building is located to the south east of the
site and measures 23.3m by 9.8m and has a height of 3.5m.



A new fire brigade access route within the site to provide emergency access
to the proposed new building. This is required to meet the building
Regulations. The access route shown on the plans follows the line of an
existing track and will be upgraded using interlocking grass mats



New parking areas in three locations to provide a net additional 23 spaces for
new staff and emergency use (two spaces will be removed so although there
are 25 proposed spaces the net increase is only 23). 10 spaces would be
provided within an existing parking area next to the Mayford Centre to the
west of the school and a further 15 spaces would be provide in two locations
at the end of the access road which runs to the north of the school (known as
Chalk Lane)

:

CONSULTATIONS AND PUBLICITY

6

Woking Borough Council

Comments awaited

7

Arboriculturalist

Comments awaited

8

SuDS & Consenting Team

Requested additional
information

9

Transportation Development Planning

No objection subject to
conditions requiring
compliance with the CTMP
and parking spaces provided

10

Sport England

No objection as the new
Modular does not impact on
the school playing field

Page 29

7

7
Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups

11

Mayford Village Society

Comments awaited

Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public

12

The application was publicised by the posting of two site notices and an advert was
placed in the local newspaper. A total of 109 owner/occupiers of neighbouring properties
were directly notified by letter. 5 letters have been received as a result of this publicity
these raise the following objections:

a. The existing school on this site was given special permission by the Secretary of
State with strict limits on capacity and this proposal disregards that previous
permission (Officer comment: The original application for this school was ‘called in’
by the Secretary of State and considered at a Public Inquiry after which it was
permitted (decision notice dated 13th February 2006). There are no conditions on
that permission which would prevent the submission of further applications for the
expansion of this school)
b. The proposal is contrary to Green Belt Policy as it represents a disproportionate
addition to the school
c. The proposal will harm the appearance of the Green Belt
d. Trees have been removed from the site in preparation
e. There is spare parking capacity at the Mayford Centre which is run by Surrey
County Council so there is no need for more
f.

The single lane track to the rear of dwellings in Smarts Heath Road (known as
Chalk Lane) is already used for parking by the school but is not fit for purpose (or
an increase in vehicles) as it is narrow with potholes and the vegetation is not
maintained and trimmed back

g. As the access road is so narrow passing vehicles often have to reverse which is
unsafe
h. The school itself recently objected to a planning application for 2/3 additional
vehicles in this lane stating that additional traffic would be inappropriate along this
road – now they are proposing exactly the same themselves
i.

There is other land within the school site which could be used for parking

j.

There is already too much development in Mayford

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Page 30

7
Introduction

13

The guidance on the determination of planning applications contained in the
Preamble/Agenda frontsheet is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read
in conjunction with the following paragraphs.

14

In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists
of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the Development Management Policies
Development Plan Document 2016

15

In considering this application the acceptability of the proposed development will be
assessed against relevant development plan policies and material considerations. In
this case the main planning considerations are discussed in detail in the following
paragraphs of the report.

DESIGN AND VISUAL AMENITY
Woking Borough Core Strategy October 2012
Policy CS21

Design

Policy CS22

Sustainable Construction

Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
Policy DM21 Educational Facilities

16

Core Strategy Policy CS21 states that proposals for new development should create
buildings and places that are attractive with their own distinct identity; make a positive
contribution to the street scene and the character of the area; and pay due regard to the
scale, height, proportions, building lines, layout, materials and other characteristics of
adjoining buildings and land. Policy DM21 states, inter alia, that expansion of existing
education facilities will be permitted where it does not give rise to significant adverse
impacts on the environment.

17

In this case the proposed temporary buildings are of modular construction but they would
be located well within the school site and at the rear of the existing school buildings such
that they would not be prominent from outside of the school site. The proposed buildings
have a very shallow (almost flat) roof but the existing school buildings have flat roofs and
it is considered that the proposed building does pay due regard to the characteristics of
the existing school and will not look out of place on this site.

Page 31

7

18

It is therefore considered that the proposal accords with development plan policy and is
acceptable in this regard.

IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Woking Core Strategy October 2012
Policy CS21 – Design
Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
Policy DM21 Educational facilities

19

Core Strategy Policy CS21 requires new development to achieve a satisfactory
relationship to adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful impacts in terms of loss
of privacy, daylight or sunlight or an overbearing effect due to bulk, proximity or outlook
and states, inter alia, that expansion of existing education facilities will be permitted
where it does not give rise to significant adverse impacts on the environment, residential
character and amenity.

20

The proposed new buildings themselves are a significant distance from the nearest
residential dwellings which are located to the north of the school site. Given their height
and location there is no impact arising from these on residential dwellings.

21

The proposal also includes the provision of additional parking spaces some of which are
located at the end of a shared access with residential dwellings to the north of the school
site. The majority of the new spaces (15 in total) will be located close to the rear
boundary of properties known as 9 and 10 School Cottages. Objections have been
raised by residents living within School Cottages to the proposed additional car parking
in this location (summarised in paragraph 12 above). The grounds of objection relate to
inconvenience given that the road is single width (which means vehicles sometimes have
to give way to each other) as opposed to the proposal giving rise to impact in respect of
noise disturbance. The comments of the neighbouring residents are noted. Officers are
of the view that the provision of the additional parking in this location for the use of staff
and visitors to this school, given the number of spaces proposed and the nature of its
use, which would be limited to school hours, will not have any sustainable adverse
impact on the neighbouring residential dwellings such as to render it unacceptable.

22

Officers are of the view that the proposal therefore complies with Development Plan
Policy and is acceptable in this regard.

DEVELOPMENT ON EXISTING PLAYING FIELD LAND
Woking Core Strategy
CS17 Open Space, Green Infrastructure, Sport and Recreation
Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
Policy DM21 Educational Facilities

Page 32

23

Policy DM21 states, inter alia, that expansion of existing schools is acceptable ‘where
appropriate, adequate provision is made and/ or existing provision is retained for indoor
and outdoor recreation, outdoor sports and amenity space, to meet the needs of the
school’. In this case the proposed new classroom building and fire brigade access would
be located on part of the existing playing field land. The applicants have submitted
information which demonstrates that this part of the site is not part of the formal playing
pitch used by the school and there will be no impact arising on the existing playing pitch
arrangement. They state that the land to the east of the playing pitches is well
established for horticulture use and cannot therefore be used to extend the playing
pitches and the land on which the classroom is positioned is not large enough to be
utilised for any additional playing pitches. It is also not possible to join this area to any of
the playing pitches as the horticulture area separates the two.

24

Officers are of the view following a site inspection that the case presented by the
applicants in regards to the impact on the existing playing pitches is accurate and that
the proposed building is located on part of the site which could not effectively be utilised
for a playing pitch. Sport England has been consulted on the application and agree that
the proposal does not impact on the school playing field. Sport England has therefore
advised that they have no objection to the proposal.

25

Given the above officers are of the view that the proposal accords with Development
Plan policies in this regard and is acceptable.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING
Woking Core Strategy October 2012
Policy CS21 - Design
CS24 – Woking’s Landscape and Townscape
Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
DM2 – Trees and Landscaping
26

Core Strategy Policy CS21 states that development proposals should incorporate
landscaping to enhance the setting of development including the retention of any trees of
amenity value, and other significant landscape features.
Policy CS24 states that all
development proposals will provide a positive benefit in terms of landscape and
townscape character and, inter alia, will protect and encourage the planting of new trees.
Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document requires landscape proposals
for new developments which retain existing trees where practicable and include the
planting of new trees and other planting.

27

The applicants have submitted an Aboricultural Impact Assessment and a Method
Statement with this application. The Impact Assessment states that a total of 11
individual trees and 6 groups of trees were surveyed as part of the assessment as they
are situated near to the proposed developments. Of those trees surveyed 3 individual
trees and 2 small groups of trees will be required to be removed to facilitate the
development, as well as possibly a further Leyland cypress tree forming part of a group
(G6). These are all category B and C trees. The trees lie in the following locations:
 Two silver birch trees (T4 and T5) and a small group of lime and birch
trees (G2) will be removed from the centre of the existing parking area to

Page 33

7

the west of the site near the Maybury Centre. These will facilitate the
provision of extra parking spaces in this location.
 A group of horse chestnut trees (G5) and an ash tree (T9) will be
removed near the site of the proposed new classroom block
 One Leyland Cypress tree on the end of a group (G6) may need to be
removed to facilitate the additional car parking spaces to the east of the
site at the end of Chalk Lane

7

28

In terms of the impact that the loss of these trees will have on the local area the loss is
spread across a wide site area and therefore the impact will be reduced. None of the
trees which would be removed have any particular significant value in respect of amenity
and though their loss is regrettable this has to be balanced against the need for the
development. Furthermore the removal of the trees can be mitigated with additional tree
planting as there is plenty of opportunity within this site to achieve this. The applicant
has submitted a plan which shows the location and species of replacement tree planting
on the site and includes a maintenance scheme for the proposed new trees. In addition
there are other trees in the facility of the proposed development which will be retained
but which will require protection during construction and the applicants have submitted a
method statement which shows how these will be protected.

29

Officers are of the view that the tree removal in this case is acceptable and will not have
any significant adverse impact on the local area subject to the replacement planting
taking place and adequate measures being put into place during construction to ensure
that there is no adverse impact on the remaining trees which can both be secured by
conditions. Subject to appropriate conditions officers are of the view that the proposal
accords with development plan policy in this regard, and is acceptable.

FLOODING AND SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE
Woking Core Strategy October 2012
CS9 – Flooding and Water Management

30

Core Strategy policy CS9 requires that applicants for development should seek
opportunities to reduce flood risk through the appropriate application of sustainable
drainage systems (SuDS).

31

This site partially lies within Flood Zone 2 and therefore in accordance with Environment
Agency standing advice the applicants have undertaken and submitted a Flood Risk
Assessment for this application. This concludes that on the basis of the available
information from the Environment Agency and Woking Borough Council, the area of
development is not at risk of flooding from all modelled flood events up to and including
the 1% AEP including an allowance for climate change, and the 0.1% AEP. Furthermore
there are no formal defences in the area of the site, and the Hoe Stream is not tidally
influenced. The area of development is not shown to be at risk from surface water
flooding, although there are pockets of increased risk around the existing school building,
where depths are likely to be less than 300mm. In addition though the proposed
development has safe access and egress during an extreme flood event, as the site lies
within an Environment Agency flood warning area the school can sign up to a free
service which aims to provide advance flood warnings up to two hours prior to the onset
of flooding within this area, which may directly or indirectly affect them.

32

Given this context the Flood Risk assessment recommends that finished ground floor
levels within the proposed new building are set no lower than 150mm above the local

Page 34

ground level to offer protection against infrastructure failure in the event of flooding. With
this, the proposed facility would be safe from flooding hazards, would not impede the
path of flood water, and will remain safe for its lifetime while not increasing flood risk
elsewhere. In addition it is recommended that surface water should be managed
through the incorporation of water butts. The applicants have confirmed that they would
incorporate the conclusions of the Flood risk Assessment in the finished design and the
proposal is therefore acceptable though a condition is recommended to ensure that this
takes place.
33

In respect of Sustainable Drainage the Local Lead Flood Authority has been consulted
on the application and has advised that the application does not provide sufficient
information to demonstrate that the site will be acceptably drained. The SuDS team
require a detailed drainage layout plan and full calculations and evidence to demonstrate
that the site can be acceptably drained. The applicants have been advised of this and
are working on submitting the additional information required but at the date of the
completion of this report this had not been submitted. Any additional information
received will be reported on an update sheet at the Committee but given the situation as
it stands a pre-commencement condition has been recommended to secure these details
in the event they are not submitted in time for them to be incorporated in this decision.
Subject to this condition, which will require the details of the drainage strategy to be
submitted prior to commencement, the application is considered to be acceptable.

HIGHWAYS IMPLICATIONS
Woking Core Strategy October 2012
Policy CS18 Transport and Accessibility
Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
Policy DM21 Educational facilities

34

Core Strategy Policy CS18 seeks to achieve a balanced community connected by a
sustainable transport system by locating most development in urban areas served by a
range of sustainable transport modes, including walking and cycling to minimise the
need to travel; ensuring development proposals provide appropriate infrastructure
measures to mitigate the adverse effects of development traffic; requiring development
proposals which generate significant traffic to be accompanied by a Travel Plan; and
implementing maximum car parking standards for all types of non-residential
development provided it does not create, or exacerbate existing on-street parking
problems. However, applying standards should not undermine overall sustainability
objectives. Policy DM21 states, inter alia, that expansion of existing education facilities
will be permitted where (i) it makes an appropriate provision for on-site car parking and
stopping, access to public transport, cycling and walking, and the effect on traffic
movement and highway safety is in accordance with Policy CS18 of the Core Strategy;
(ii) where appropriate, a School Travel Plan is provided with the proposal to manage the
travel needs of pupils and staff; it does not give rise to significant adverse impacts on the
environment, and (iii) it does not give rise to significant adverse impacts on the
environment.

35

As this is a school for special needs the pupils that attend and the teachers that are
employed will originate from a wide catchment area. The proposal will give rise to an
increase in the number of vehicles accessing the site and given these circumstances it is
not reasonable or necessary to seek to secure the use of more sustainable transport
modes. Also given these unique circumstances a Travel Plan has not been required in
this instance though the applicants have submitted a Construction Traffic Management

Page 35

7

Plan which covers issues such as parking, loading and storage of materials during the
construction phase, as well as hours of deliveries.

7

36

Transportation Development Planning have assessed the proposal and have advised
that given the relatively small increase in pupils arising from the proposal and the
location of the school with its access to existing highway networks the proposal will not
have any adverse impact on the highway. In addition the provision of the additional onsite parking provision will ensure that the increase in vehicles can park satisfactorily
without impacting on the neighbouring area. TDP therefore raises no objection to the
proposal subject to conditions to ensure the implementation of the Construction Traffic
Management Plan.

Officers are of the view that subject to appropriate conditions as requested by TDP the
proposal complies with development Plan Policy in this regard and is acceptable.

GREEN BELT
The National Planning Policy Framework 2012
Chapter 9, paragraph’s 87 - 89: Protecting Green Belt Land
Woking Core Strategy October 2012
CS6 Green Belt
Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016
DM13 Buildings in and adjacent to the Green Belt

37

Paragraph 87 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 states that as with
previous Green Belt policy, inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the
Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Paragraph
89 states that Planning Authorities should regard the construction of new buildings as
inappropriate in the Green Belt except in specific circumstances which include 1) where
the proposal would be for the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in
the same use and not materially larger than the one it replaces and 2) For the extension
or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in a disproportionate addition
over and above the size of the original building.

38

Policy CS 6 states that within the Green Belt strict control will continue to apply over
inappropriate development, as defined by Government policy currently outlined in
the NPPF. Policy DM13 states that unless very special circumstances can be clearly
demonstrated, the Council will regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate
in the Green Belt.

39

This proposed development is a new building within the Green Belt which does not fall
within any of the accepted categories listed within the NPPF and Development Plan
documents. The proposal therefore represents inappropriate development within the
Green Belt. In these circumstances it is for the applicant to then demonstrate very

Page 36

special circumstances exist in order to justify the inappropriate development. The NPPF
states that ‘When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should
ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special
circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations’
(para 88). The applicants have submitted a statement setting out the very special
circumstances which they consider exist in this case which relates to the need for the
provision and the lack of suitable alternative sites within the urban area. The applicants
also contend that the proposal will have minimal harm on the open character of the
Green Belt in this location and will not cause any other harm. These issues are
addressed below.

Need for the development

40

The existing school on this site caters for children and young adults with specific special
needs. The applicants state that the need for additional Special Primary School places
in the County for pupils with an Education Health and Care Plan (formerly a Statement of
Educational Need) with specific special needs (Complex Social and Communication
needs - CSCN) is high. This reflects a significant increase in the latent population within
the area, births within Surrey have increased over 20% since 2002, due to house
building and inward migration. This increase in population has had a consequent impact
on the number of pupils who require special school places. In addition changes in pattern
of diagnosis have further increased the number or pupils who are eligible for an
Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP).

41

The provision of appropriate school places within the County is vital in order to ensure
that the Local Authority (LA) fulfils its duty to provide appropriate school places. The LA
must develop specialist in-county provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs
and Disabilities (SEND) to ensure the efficient and effective use of public resources.
There are periodic reviews of the SEND provision across the county which inform future
proposals to ensure the needs of this cohort of pupils is met in appropriate school
places. The most recent review, called the Learning Difficulties Review (LD review) took
place in 2012 and since that point a number of proposals have been developed. The
Council is currently undergoing a programme of change called SEND 2020 which will
reshape the Special Educational Needs and Disability offer in the county.

42

The expansion of Freemantles School to allow for 4 consecutive bulge classes of 9
pupils all with an EHCP is part of a suite of proposals within the County to increase the
number of Special school places available. This proposal will help ensure that the council
meets its statutory duty of providing a school place for every resident pupil who requires
one. The school is a vital part of the education offer and pattern of special provision
within the County and its temporary expansion is vital to the provision of sufficient school
places for pupils with an Education Health and Care Plan within the County. These
places could not reasonably placed at any other Surrey maintained provision as
Freemantles is the only designated CSCN School in the west of the County for the
Boroughs of Woking, Guildford, Waverley, Surrey Heath and Runnymede areas. This
proposal will also support some of the most vulnerable students within Surrey as a
whole.

43

Freemantles School is an Ofsted rated ‘Outstanding’ school that currently meets the
needs of primary and secondary aged pupils with CSCN and Autism. It is one of only two
specialist schools in Surrey making provision for pupils from the whole of the county with
CSCN. The other school is Linden Bridge, based in Worcester Park.

County Need for additional school places for specialist provision

Page 37

7

7

44

In the interim period between the LD Review and the proposals for a SEND 2020 Capital
programme there has been a significant rise in demand for specialist places for pupils
with CSCN and Autism. The LA is committed to improve outcomes for young people and
to reduce the number of SEND students placed in schools within the Non-Maintained
and Independent (NMI) sector, often at a higher cost and located outside of the Surrey
boundaries.

45

The current issue faced by the LA in making school provision for students with SEND is
increasing demand. In November 2016, there were 329 secondary applicants and 109
junior applicants considered at admissions forums for places in special or specialist
provision. In March 2017, there were 174 reception applicants considered at admissions
forums for places in special or specialist provision. These numbers do not include
children with an EHCP who are mainstream appropriate and so were not considered at
admissions forum. Of those applicants considered at admissions forum, it was initially
not possible to offer 20% special school places in part due to a lack of provision. As a
result it was necessary to commission the following places over two years to meet pupil
demand:
Bulge classes for 2016/17
School name
Brooklands
Freemantles
Gosden House
Linden Bridge
William Cobbett
Epsom and Ewell High
Woodfield
Pond Meadow
Total number of places

Year group

Number of places

Reception
Reception
Reception
Reception
Reception
Year 7
Year 7
Year 7

8
9
4
8
2
5
10
12
58

Bulge classes for 2017/18
(information to date)
School name
Freemantles
The Hythe
Ashford Park
William Cobbett
Freemantles
The Park
Woodfield
Total number of places

Year group

Number of places

Reception
Reception
Reception
Reception
Year 3
Year 7
Year 7

9
3
2
3
9
4
10
40

46

Parents have the right to express the naming of any maintained school in their child’s
EHCP and it may not be the school that is most local to where they live. When looking at
school expansions and providing additional classrooms, the Local Authority seeks to
balance a variety of different factors including parental preferences, planning and site
constraints, cost, diversity and choice. Another factor is the actual location of demand.

47

In 2016 the Council provided additional school places within the Special School Sector to
meet a range of specific pupils needs. Forecasts of future demand within the CSCN
sector indicate that for entry in September 2017 and 2018 a further 18 pupils, who will be
most local to Freemantles School and appropriate for that provision will require
placement above existing capacity levels.

Page 38

48

Failure to provide additional places at Freemantles Special School would necessitate
alternative additional provision being provided at another Surrey Maintained CSCN
School. Currently there is 1 other maintained school that offers specialist provision for
pupils with an EHCP with CSCN. This school is based in Worcester Park which is in
excess of 20 miles from Freemantles School. The site of Linden Bridge School is very
constrained and the Council has been unable to identify a suitable area on the school
site which will allow development of additional classroom space without impacting
negatively on the current cohort of pupils.

49

The provision of an additional provision within Freemantles will therefore enable the
Council to offer local appropriate placements and reduce the need for vulnerable pupils
to travel outside of the area to receive specialist schooling. This will reduce unnecessary
travel for some of the Councils most vulnerable pupils.

50

The requirement to meet this temporary demand will need to be met by the provision of a
new modular block to the rear of the existing school building providing four classroom
spaces, together with group rooms and outside break out space. This area has been
identified to be the most suitable on the site as it has little impact on the main school
building and will allow for some internal reorganisation of classroom space to
accommodate younger aged pupils in the main school building. The utilisation of this
area will enable the school to develop strategies with secondary aged pupils which will
promote working towards independence in their adult life after formal education has
finished.

51

In addition the proposal addresses the retention of an existing double demountable
utilised for the purposes of providing an educational offer to pupils aged 16-19 years old.
These pupils are working towards preparation for adulthood and the FE centre, located
in this area, offers an independent learning space from which individual programmes of
study can be coordinated. This location offers access to minibuses from which activities
in the community can be easily facilitated without having an effect on the other areas of
the school and reducing any negative impact to younger pupils in the main school
building.

Conclusions on Educational Need
52

The applicants have demonstrated that there is a strong educational case for the
proposed expansion at Freemantles School especially in the context of current demand
within the County. Officers are of the view that the temporary expansion to Freemantles
School by 4 bulges of 9 pupils over two consecutive years, is reasonable and necessary
and meets the need for additional places in the most effective way. Officers are of the
view that the provision of an additional modular building and the retention of an existing
modular building is required to facilitate the expansion in an acceptable way.

Whether need for additional school places constitutes very special circumstances

53

Officers consider that a robust case has been made by the applicants demonstrating a
need to increase the number of special needs school places at this site as summarised
above and given the rural location, there are no alternatives available. Paragraph 72 of
the NPPF states that the Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a
sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new
communities. It continues by stating that local planning authorities should take a
proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to
development that will widen choice in education. It states that Local Planning Authorities
should inter alia give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools. Both
Policy CS18 and Policy CS19 in the Woking Core Strategy encourage the location of

Page 39

7

new development, and specifically school related development within Urban Areas
served by a range of sustainable transport modes. Policy DM21 states that expansion of
existing education facilities will be permitted where it meets an identified need, makes
appropriate highways provisions including the provision of a travel plan, does not give
rise to any adverse environmental impact and makes appropriate provision for recreation
to meet the needs of the school.

7

54

Officers consider that the need set out above coupled with the lack of suitable alternative
sites are factors capable of amounting to very special circumstances.

Other Harm to the Green Belt

55

In accordance with paragraph 88 of the NPPF the impact of the development needs to
be assessed in terms of any other harm to the Green Belt in addition to the
inappropriateness of the proposal as discussed above in paragraph 42 above. The
extent of harm to the Green Belt, and in particular the impact the proposal has on the
purposes of including land in Green Belts through its impact on openness is influenced
by the scale and location of the proposed development.

56

In this case the proposal is for a temporary extension to the existing school comprising
the installation of a modular building and the retention of an existing modular building
plus additional car parking spaces. In respect of the existing modular building this was
assessed in 2011 and officers considered at that time that the scale of the development
was such that it would have a limited impact upon the openness of the Green Belt given
that it is single storey in height and of an acceptable scale when taken in the context of
the existing buildings on this site. These considerations still apply now in the
consideration of the retention of that building.

57

In respect of the proposed new additional modular building this would be situated near
the existing modular but a further distance from the school buildings. The modular is
well within the school boundary and the view of the school site from the south and east is
obscured by the presence of a belt of large trees on the school boundary and adjacent to
the A320 highway though these are predominantly deciduous so would not provide
screening all year. Officers consider that this element of the proposal will cause
moderate harm to the Green Belt in this location in that it may be visible, albeit that it is
single storey, and will by its nature result in some loss of openness and encroachment
on the countryside. Nevertheless officers consider that the scale of the extension is
proportionate to the need and the development cannot be located elsewhere to meet the
need identified for the locality. Officers do not consider that there would be any
significant harm arising from the provision of the additional car parking spaces to the
west and north of the school building as these are in areas where existing parking
already existing.

Conclusion on Green Belt

58

Officers consider that the applicant has demonstrated that there is a clear need and lack
of suitable alternatives for the development given that there is a requirement to provide

Page 40

appropriate special educational facilities and that these buildings and additional parking
are required to accommodate that demonstrated need. Officers are of the view that this
need and lack of suitable alternatives constitutes ‘very special circumstances’ which
clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by virtue of inappropriateness and also the
moderate harm caused by the new modular building to openness such that an exception
to policy can be made.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS

59

The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation, contained in the Preamble to the
Agenda is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with
the following paragraph.

60

In this case, the Officer’s view is that the proposal is not considered sufficient to engage
Article 8 or Article 1 of Protocol 1. As such, this proposal is not considered to interfere
with any Convention right.

CONCLUSION

61

Officers consider that the development would be in keeping with the design and visual
amenity of the existing site and surrounding area. The flat roofed design would integrate
with the main school building. The location and scale of the building would ensure that
the development would not adversely impact upon residential amenity. Officers consider,
whilst there will be a small increase in traffic to and from the school, this increase will not
have any significant impact subject to the provision of the additional on-site car parking.
The loss of a number of trees is acceptable in this case in view of the nature of those
trees and the existence of larger trees along the site boundary subject to replacement
trees being planted.

62

The development constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Officers
consider that the need for the additional school places within the area which cannot be
accommodated elsewhere amount to factors which constitute very special circumstances
which clearly outweigh the harm due to inappropriateness and the loss of openness.
Officers are satisfied that the scale of the proposal is proportionate to the need and the
harm to the Green Belt has been limited by locating the new building close to the existing
buildings coupled with the sympathetic design of the building and appropriate use of
materials .

63

Officers consider that the development can be permitted as an exception to Green Belt
policy subject to the imposition of conditions.

Page 41

7

7

RECOMMENDATION

64

That pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations
1992, that application WO/2017/0898 be PERMITTED subject to the following
conditions:

Conditions:

1.

The use of the classroom buildings and the provision of the additional parking spaces in
connection with that use as hereby permitted shall be for a temporary period expiring on
1 August 2031. Within 1 month of the cessation of the use the temporary buildings shall
be permanently removed from the site and the land upon which they were sited, as well
as the land provided for the temporary car parking, shall be restored to their former use
as grassed amenity land.

2.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with
the following plans/drawings:

282 08O 01 Rev B Location Plan dated 09.05.2017
282 08O 13 Rev B Location Plan dated 09.05.2017
282 08O 11 Existing and Proposed Parking Bays 1 dated June 2017
282 08O 12 Existing and Proposed Parking Bays 2 dated June 2017
282 08O 14 Existing Double Classroom Building dated June 2017
282 08O 02 Proposed Modular Classroom Plan dated June 2017
282 08O 03 Modular Quadruple Classroom Elevations dated 11/05/17
282 08O 04 Rev A Proposed Site Plan dated 13/06/17
282 08O 05 Existing Site Plan dated June 2017
282 08O 07 Proposed Modular Classroom Roof Plan dated June 2017
TP01 Tree Planting Plan dated 20/07/17
TPP01 Tree Protection Plan dated 20/07/17

3.

The development shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the 'Construction
Traffic Management Plan' submitted with the application unless otherwise agreed by the
County Planning Authority in an application on that behalf.

4.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space has
been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for vehicles to be
parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear.

Page 42

Thereafter the parking areas shall be retained and maintained for their designated
purposes.

5.

3. a.) Before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site
for the purposes of carrying out the development hereby permitted, protective
fencing in accordance with the details contained in Appendix 2 and drawing no.
TPP01 dated 20/07/2017 contained in the Arboricultural Method Statement
submitted with the application shall be installed and shall thereafter be
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been
removed from the site. For the duration of works on the site no materials, plant or
equipment shall be placed or stored within the protected area.

b.)
The development shall be carried out in all respects in full accordance
with all other measures to protect trees during construction set out in Sections 5
to 9 of the above Arboricultural Method Statement

6.

Within the first planting season following the occupation of development the replacement
tree planting within the site as shown on drawing TP01 dated 20.07.17 shall be
completed and maintained in accordance with the details on that plan. Any tree which is
removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes in the opinion of the County
Planning Authority seriously damaged or defective within five years shall be replaced
with a new species of similar size.

7.

The new modular building hereby permitted shall be installed such that it has a floor level
set a minimum of 150mm above existing ground level and shall be retained as such
whilst on the site.

8.

No part of the drainage system for the site shall be constructed until the following details
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority:

1. A drainage layout plan showing the existing drainage system.
2. A drainage layout plan showing the proposed system that includes pipe levels and
diameters.
3. Evidence as to why infiltration is to be used / not viable
4. Full calculations detailing the proposed discharge rate currently offsite for the 1 in1, 1
in 30 and 1 in 100 + CC year storm events. Including any sensitivity checks. We
recommend designing for the 40% climate change event
5. Details of any onsite storage and reasons (to include calculations showing) the
volumes chosen have been chosen.
6. Details of any flow restrictions into the watercourse.

Page 43

7

7. Evidence that Thames Water (if used) accept the flow into their sewers

7

The drainage system for the development shall be constructed in accordance with the
approved details.

9.

No part of the drainage system for the site shall be constructed unless details of how the
Sustainable Drainage System will be protected and maintained during the construction of
the development (to include details of how pollutants and sediments from construction
will be managed to prevent being washed into the watercourse) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The development shall
thereafter be carried out in strict accordance with those approved details.

10.

Prior to the occupation of the building hereby approved the following additional drainage
information shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the County Planning Authority

1. A maintenance plan showing the maintenance regimes for each SuDS element and
who will be responsible for maintaining these.
2. An exceedance flow plan that shows where water will drain to during exceedance or
system failure.

Reasons:

1.

To reflect the terms of the application as submitted

2.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CS18 of the Woking Core
Strategy October 2012 and Policy Policy DM21 of the Development Management
Policies Development Plan Document 2016

4.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CS18 of the Woking Core
Strategy October 2012 and Policy Policy DM21 of the Development Management
Policies Development Plan Document 2016

5.

To ensure the protection of trees to be retained in accordance with Policies CS21 and
CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy October 2012 and Policy DM2 of the Development
Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016

Page 44

7
6.

To replace trees to be removed in accordance with Policies CS21 and CS24 of the
Woking Core Strategy October 2012 and Policy DM2 of the Development Management
Policies Development Plan Document 2016

7.

To minimise the risk of the building flooding in accordance with Policy CS9 of the Woking
Core Strategy October 2012

8.

To reduce flood risk through the applictaion of sustainable drainage systems in
accordance with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy October 2012

9.

To reduce flood risk through the applictaion of sustainable drainage systems in
accordance with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy October 2012

10.

To reduce flood risk through the applictaion of sustainable drainage systems in
accordance with Policy CS9 of the Woking Core Strategy October 2012

Informatives:

1.

This approval relates only to the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
and must not be taken to imply or be construed as an approval under the Building
Regulations 2000 or for the purposes of any other statutory provision whatsoever.

2.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the requirements of Sections 7 and 8 of the
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 and to Building Bulletin 102 'Designing
for disabled children and children with Special Educational Needs' published in 2008 on
behalf of the Secretary of State for Children, Schools and Families, or any prescribed
document replacing that note.

3.

In determining this application the County Planning Authority has worked positively and
proactively with the applicant by: entering into pre-application discussions; scoping of
the application; assessing the proposals against relevant Development Plan policies and
the National Planning Policy Framework, providing feedback to the applicant where
appropriate. Further, the County Planning Authority has: identified all material
considerations; forwarded consultation responses to the applicant; considered
representations from interested parties; liaised with consultees and the applicant to
resolve identified issues; and determined the application within the timeframe agreed
with the applicant. Issues of concern have been raised with the applicant including SUDs
drainage through negotiation and additional information has been secured. . This
approach has been in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Page 45

7

4.

Details of the highway requirements necessary for inclusion in any application seeking
approval of reserved matters may be obtained from the Transportation Development
Planning Division of Surrey County Council.

5.

If the applicant proposes to undertake structural works to an ordinary watercourse then
consent is required forms are available on request from SuDS@surreycc.gov.uk.

6.

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (Section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild
bird while that nest is in use or is being built. Planning consent for a development does
not provide a defence against prosecution under this Act.

Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1 March and 31 August
inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are assumed to
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity during this period
and shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – GUIDANCE ON THE DETERMINATION OF
PLANNING APPLICATIONS

This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations
section in the report.

Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when
determining planning applications to have regard to (a) the provisions of the development plan,
so far as material to the application, (b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to
the application, and (c) any other material considerations. This section of the 1990 Act must be
read together with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (2004 Act),
which provides that: if regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Development plan

In Surrey the adopted development plan consists of the:




Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011(comprised of the Core Strategy and Primary
Aggregates Development Plan Documents (DPD))
Surrey Waste Plan 2008 (comprised of the Core Strategy, Waste Development and
Waste Development Control Policies DPDs
Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD for the Minerals and Waste Plans 2013 (Aggregates
Recycling DPD 2013)

Page 46





Any saved local plan policies and the adopted Local Development Documents
(development plan documents and supplementary planning documents) prepared by the
eleven Surrey district/borough councils in Surrey
South East Plan 2009 Policy NRM6 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
(apart from a policy relating to the former Upper Heyford Air Base in Oxfordshire the rest
of the plan was revoked on 25 March 2013)
Any neighbourhood plans (where they have been approved by the local community at
referendum)

Set out in the report are the development plan documents and policies which provide the
development plan framework relevant to the application under consideration.

Material considerations

Material considerations will vary from planning application to planning application and can
include: relevant European policy; the March 2012 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and updates; the March 2014 national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and updates; National
Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) October 2014; Waste Management Plan for England 2013;
extant planning policy statements; Government Circulars and letters to Chief Planning Officers;
emerging local development documents (being produced by Surrey County Council, the
district/borough council or neighbourhood forum in whose area the application site lies).

National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance

The March 2012 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and subsequent updates
replaced 30 Planning Policy Statements, Planning Policy Guidance Notes, Minerals Policy
Statements and Minerals Policy Guidance Notes and related Practice Guides, some
Government Circulars and letters to Chief Planning Officers and provides consolidated guidance
for local planning authorities and decision takers in relation to decision-taking (determining
planning applications) and in preparing plans (plan making).

The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides
related guidance. The NPPF should be read alongside other national planning policies on
Waste, Travellers, Planning for Schools Development, Sustainable Drainage Systems, Parking,
and Starter Homes .

At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development which the
document states: should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making and
decision-taking (paragraph 14). The NPPF makes clear the purpose of the planning system is to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development which has three dimensions:
economic, social and environmental. These give rise to the need for the planning system to
perform a number of mutually dependent roles: an economic role, a social role and an
environmental role. The NPPF sets out 12 core land-use planning principles that should
underpin both decision-taking and plan making.

Page 47

7

7

The NPPF does not change the statutory principle that determination of planning applications
must be made in accordance with the adopted development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The NPPF is one of those material considerations. In determining planning
applications the NPPF (paragraph 14) states that development proposals that accord with the
development plan should be approved without delay; and where the development plan is
absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, permission should be granted unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole; or specific policies in the NPPF indicate
development should be restricted.

The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 215 states that in determining planning applications local planning
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the
greater the weight they may be given). For emerging plans the NPPF (paragraph 216) states
that, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, weight may also be given to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given), and;
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998
GUIDANCE FOR INTERPRETATION

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights
into English law. It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act. As such, those
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to
claim a breach of their human rights. Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact
of the development against the benefits to the public at large.

The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article
1 of Protocol 1. These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act.

Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing. Officers must be satisfied that the
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received
have been properly covered in the report.

Page 48

Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life. This has been interpreted as the
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference. Officers must judge whether the
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8.

Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions
and possibly other rights. Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions.

These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.

Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective. This
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe.

European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be
engaged.

CONTACT
Dawn Horton-Baker
TEL. NO.
020 8541 9435

BACKGROUND PAPERS
The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the
proposal, responses to consultations and representations received as referred to in the report
and included in the application file and the following:

Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Page 49

7

7

The Development Plan
Woking Core Strategy 2012
Woking Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 2016

Page 50

7

Application Site Area

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Application Number : WO/2017/0898

2012-13 Aerial Photos

Aerial 1 : Freemantles School, Woking

Page 53
7

All boundaries are approximate

7

Application Number : WO/2017/0898

2012-13 Aerial Photos

Aerial 2 : Freemantles School, Woking

Page 54

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : WO/2017/0898

2012-13 Aerial Photos

Aerial 3 : Freemantles School, Woking

Page 55
7

All boundaries are approximate

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 8

TO:

PLANNING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13 September 2017

BY:
PLANNING DEVELOPMENT TEAM MANAGER
DISTRICT(S)
ELECTORAL DIVISION(S):
MOLE VALLEY DISTRICT COUNCIL
Dorking Rural
Mrs Clack

PURPOSE:

FOR DECISION

GRID REF: 518846 148651

TITLE:

MINERALS/WASTE MO/2017/0916

SUMMARY REPORT
Brockham Well Site, Felton's Farm, Old School Lane, Brockham, RH3 7AU
Installation of on-site facilities comprising hardstanding, site office, site toilet facilities, site
security office and mess facility; storage containers; lighting units incorporating CCTV
equipment; 2.4 metres high palisade fence and gates; electrical control buildings; portable site
generator with 2 no. enclosed fuel tanks, and parking area for car/van until 31 December 2036
with restoration to agriculture (retrospective).
The Brockham Well Site is found on land at Felton’s Farm, which is accessed via the existing
access track which connects to Old School Lane, approximately 600m east of the well site. An
approximately three metres high grassed bund forms the north and east boundary, with
hedgerows forming the southern and western boundaries. The closest residential properties are
the cottages adjacent to Felton’s Farm buildings just off Old School Lane approximately 585m to
the east. The well site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the Site of Special Scientific
Interest Impact Risk Zones.
The installation of on-site facilities would normally constitute permitted development under the
terms of Class A and B Part 17 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (GDPO), however Condition 4 of existing planning
permission ref: MO06/1294 has withdrawn these rights requiring the prior agreement in writing
of the County Planning Authority before the commencement of the development. As these
facilities are already on-site, this procedure of prior agreement in writing of the County Planning
Authority is not applicable and therefore a planning application is required for these facilities in
this case.
Brockham Parish Council, Brockham Oil Watch, Campaign to Protect Rural England and 54
letters of representation all object and raise various concerns with this application, in respect of:
planning issues, climate change and the use of green energy resources, heritage and visual
impact, environment and public health, traffic, concerns regarding oil production and drilling
activities and legal matters. Officers consider the facilities under this retrospective application
are for the purposes of administrative, parking and equipment storage uses ancillary to the
existing permitted oil production activities.
This retrospective application is for the retention of the on-site facilities at the Brockham Wellsite
for the duration of the existing planning permission, which is until 31 December 2036. Officers
consider following advice from technical consultees and subject to the imposition of planning
conditions, the facilities would not result in an unacceptable lighting, visual and noise impact on
the amenity. Officers also consider that a relevant condition is imposed to the data protection
issue for the use of CCTV equipment. The development is for a temporary period,

Page 57

8

8

commensurate with the existing operational wellsite, and once restored would preserve the
openness of the Green Belt in the long term. Officers therefore do not consider the proposal to
be inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and is in accordance with the development
plan.
The recommendation is to PERMIT subject to conditions.

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant
Angus Energy
Date application valid
26 May 2017
Period for Determination
22 September 2017
Amending Documents
None

SUMMARY OF PLANNING ISSUES
This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text
should be considered before the meeting.

Lighting and Visual Impact
Data Protection
Noise
Other Issues
Green Belt

Is this aspect of the
proposal in accordance with
the development plan?
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Paragraphs in the report
where this has been
discussed
43 – 46
47 – 48
49 – 52
53 – 56
57 – 64

ILLUSTRATIVE MATERIAL
Site Plan
Drawing Ref. 1215/2237/2D Brockham Site Location Plan dated 1/2/17
Drawing Ref. 1215/2237/11B Brockham Site Layout dated 1/2/17
Aerial Photographs
Aerial 1
Aerial 2

Brockham Well Site
Brockham Well Site

Site Photographs

Page 58

Figure 1
Figure 2
Figure 3
Figure 4
Figure 5
Figure 6
Figure 7
Figure 8
Figure 9
Figure 10
Figure 11
Figure 12

Security gate and fencing
Lighting unit incorporating CCTV equipment
Site office
Site security office
Site toilet facility
Mess facility
Storage containers for onsite equipment
Electrical control building
Site generator with two enclosed fuel tanks
Hardstand and parking area
View from the main entrance
View from the northern bund

BACKGROUND
Site Description
1. The Brockham Well Site is found on land at Felton’s Farm, which is situated approximately
570 metres (m) west of Old School Lane. The site lies approximately 1 kilometres (km)
southwest of Brockham Village and 2km south east of Dorking. The Dorking to Horsham
railway line runs approximately 250m to the west of the well site compound. Tanners Brook
is found some 465m to the east of the well site and footpath No 86 crosses the access
track some 260m to the east of the compound. The application site is within the
Metropolitan Green Belt and the Site of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones.
2. There are three existing wellheads at Brockham Well Site, namely Brockham 1 (BRX1),
Brockham 2 (BRX2) and Brockham 4 (BRX4). There is a sidetrack well off of BRX1 which
is used for water reinjection and this has been numbered as Brockham 3 (BRX3) by the Oil
and Gas Authority (OGA). There are also two sidetrack wells off of BRX2 which have been
used for production of oil and these have been numbered BRX-2Y and BRX-2Z. BRX-2Y
was last in production in January 2016 and was producing from the Portland Sandstone.
The BRX4 well was drilled in 2007. The applicant states that a sidetrack well off of BRX4,
which is known as BRX4-Z drilled in 2017, is a proposed production well. No planning
permission has been granted for the drilling of and production from BRX4-Z. Surrey
County Council is now in discussion with the applicant on this matter.
3. The application site is accessed via the existing access track which connects to Old School
Lane, approximately 600m east of the well site. An approximately three metres high
grassed bund forms the north and east boundary, with hedgerows forming the southern
and western boundaries. The closest residential properties are the cottages adjacent to
Felton’s Farm buildings just off Old School Lane approximately 585m to the east.
Planning History
4. In May 1987, planning permission (ref. MO86/1112) was granted for the drilling of an
exploratory well and access road. An exploratory borehole known as BRX1 was drilled in
August 1987.
5. In January 1995, planning permission (ref. MO92/0969) was granted for the retention of the
existing wellsite for further appraisal and drilling of up to 5 additional wells, installation of
production and road tanker facilities. This included the drilling of wellhead BRX 2 which
was drilled in 1998. This planning permission was also subject to a legal agreement dated
9 January 1995 for lorry routing to/ from the wellsite, which restricted the number of tankers
to 6 loads (12 movements) per day for a maximum of 6-months for the duration of flow
testing.

Page 59

8

8

6. In December 2000, planning permission (ref. MO00/1706) was granted for the retention of
an existing well site and access road for a temporary period of 12 months and temporary
installation of equipment for the carrying out of production testing operations over 3 month
period. This testing was for wellhead BRX1 which was completed in May 2001.
7. In December 2001, planning permission (ref. MO01/1288) was granted “For the retention of
the existing 1.2 ha well site and access road, the erection of production equipment and the
production of oil and export by tanker”. This was primarily for BRX1 as the applicant stated
that BRX2 would need further reservoir evaluation. Condition 4 limited the development to
cease on or before 31 December 2006 and Condition 5 restricted General Permitted
Development Rights (GPDO). This planning permission was also granted for a set of onsite equipment, which includes the following:









A beam pump
Four/five stock oil tanks
An oil/water heater
Oil and water export pumps
A gas vent stack
A diesel powered generator
A small office/site hut
Two storage containers

8. On 10 May 2007, planning permission (ref. MO06/1294) was granted for the continued use
of 1.2ha of land for the production, treatment and export of crude oil from an existing well
site without compliance with Condition 4 of planning permission ref: MO01/1288 dated 11
December 2001 such that the development shall cease and site restoration be completed
by 31 December 2036 and GPDO rights are also restricted. The legal agreement dated 9
January 1995 was superseded and updated by the Section 106 legal agreement dated 25
April 2007. This planning permission was for BRX1 and BRX2 to allow production from
both these wellheads for a period until 2036. Planning permission was also granted for
various on-site equipment, which includes the following:













Gas and diesel storage tanks
Security lighting and fencing
Container storage facility
Container workshop
Port-a-cabin site office
Containerised steam boiler
Containerised super silenced generator
Heat exchangers
Two wellheads and beam pumps with equipment
Electrically driven pump
Three oil storage tanks
Water holding tank

9. On 19 June 2007 planning permission (ref: MO07/161) was granted for the installation and
operation of a drilling rig for a workover programme on an existing well (BRX1) and the
drilling of a new well (BRX4). This permission was time limited and required all works to
cease by 31 December 2008. A letter on file confirms that BRX4 was drilled in July 2007.
The Officer report for this application outlines that BRX4 was to replace the lost production
from BRX1. For the avoidance of doubt, no planning permission has been granted for oil
production from BRX4.
10. On 1 September 2008, planning permission (ref. MO08/0894) was granted for the
construction of a concrete hardstanding of some 1,841 square metres. The hardstanding is
a result of an environmental review and discussions with the Environment Agency. The

Page 60

hardstanding will then be removed from the site on or before 31 December 2036 and the
land restored in accordance with the approved restoration scheme.

THE PROPOSAL
11. This retrospective application is to seek planning permission for the installation of on-site
facilities until 31 December 2036 with restoration to agriculture comprising:

Fencing and Security Gate


The applicant states that the original fence was in a poor condition. Therefore, a new
fence is needed to replace the old fence. The new fence is painted green with a
“palisade” design and approximately 2.4 metres in height. Security gates are also
provided for entrance and rear emergency access. They are altogether approximately
315 metres in length.

Lighting units incorporating CCTV equipment




Five lighting units of approximately 6 metres in height incorporating CCTV equipments
are installed. The CCTV equipment is installed towards the top of the lighting columns
and face inwards at low level at the site.

Site office


The site office was originally located at the present position of the site security office.
The old site office was removed from the site. The current site office is located at the
eastern part of the site and is a dark green painted steel cabin of approximately 2.60
metres high x 2.90 metres wide x 6.10 metres long, which covers an area of
approximately 17.69 square metres.

Site security office, site toilet facility and mess facility


The site security office, site toilet facility and mess facility are located at the southeastern part of the site, which is next to the site entrance gate. The site security office is
a green painted steel container/office of approximately 2.44 metres high x 3.05 metres
wide x 9.75 metres long, which covers an area of approximately 29.74 square metres.
The site toilet facility is a purpose-built dark green painted steel block/cabin of
approximately 2.40 metres high x 2.48 metres wide x 2.10 metres long, which covers an
area of approximately 5.21 square metres. The mess facility is a dark green painted steel
container/office of approximately 2.58 metres high x 2.43 metres wide x 8.17 metres
long, which covers an area of approximately 19.85 square metres.

Storage containers


Two storage containers for on-site equipment are located at the eastern part of the site.
They are green painted, which each of them is approximately 2.59 metres high x 2.43
metres wide x 6.06 metres long. Two containers cover an area of approximately 29.45
square metres.


Electrical control building and portable site generator with two enclosed fuel tanks


The electrical control building and a site generator with two enclosed fuel tanks are
located at the western part of the site. The electrical control building is approximately 3
metres long x 3 metres wide x 2.5 metres high. A portable site generator is to provider

Page 61

8

power to the onsite-site facilities and two small enclosed fuel tanks are located adjacent
to the generator.

8


Concrete hardstanding and parking area


A total area of approximately 48.50 square metres concrete hardstanding is installed to
provide support to the facilities, including site office, site security office, site toilet facility
and mess facility. A car/van parking area is also provided and is located at the southern
part of the site, which is next to the mess facility. It covers a total area of approximately
7.40 square metres.

CONSULTATIONS AND PUBLICITY
District Council
12. Mole Valley District Council
No objection.
Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory)
13. County Environmental Assessment Officer
A screening opinion under the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations 2017
was adopted on 16 May 2017, which evaluated the proposed development in line with the
EIA Regulations and the advice set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance on EIA.
It was concluded that there are not likely to be any significant environmental effects in
terms of the meaning of significant given in the above Regulations and therefore the
proposed development would not be EIA development.
14. County Noise Consultant
Noise emissions from the development are subject to Conditions 12, 13 and 14 of the
existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294). Although these conditions do not accord
with the current guidelines and regulations, it is not recommended to set out two separate
conditions covering oil production and the current application as this is considered to be not
practicable and enforceable.
15. Environment Agency
No objection.
16. Transportation Development Planning
No objections.
17. Rights of Way
No comments received.
18. SES Water
No comments received.
19. Thames Water
No comments received.
Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups
20. Brockham Parish Council
 The applicant informed the Parish Council that the improvement and refurbishments of
the facilities are needed for the increased production.

Page 62

 The consideration of this retrospective application should be postponed as this
application is premature and there is currently a legal dispute between the applicant and
the Surrey County Council.
21. Brockham Oil Watch
 Objection to the application as the applicant has not demonstrated adequately that there
is a need for the proposed development. With the exception of the parking area and the
installation of the CCTV cameras, planning application is not required for the
maintenance and renewal of the facilities.
 There is a direct relationship between the disputed sidetrack and the current application.
Therefore, no new applications including this current application should be considered
unless the dispute is resolved.
22. Campaign to Protect Rural England
 The County Planning Authority should not determine this planning application until a
retrospective application has been submitted for the sidetrack BR-X4Z.
 This planning application is also considered an improvement of facilities for a drilling
operation or increased oil production.
23. Brockham Green Village Society
 No comments received.
Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public
24. The application was publicised by the posting of 2 site notices and an advert was placed in
the local newspaper. A total of 9 of owner/occupiers of neighbouring properties were
directly notified by letter.
25. On 26 July 2017, Officers consider that the development is ancillary to hydrocarbon
production at the application site, which is a form of development not inappropriate in the
Green Belt. Therefore, the application was re-publicised by the posting of 2 site notices and
a total of 9 of owner/occupiers of neighbouring properties were directly re-notified by letter.
26. 55 letters of representation have been received. 1 letter supports this application, while 54
letters object to the development. These letters raise the following comments:
Economic benefit
 Job opportunities
Legal Concern
 This application should be postponed until the current legal dispute is settled
Concerns regarding oil production and drilling activities
 No planning permission for the drilling activities
 Drilling activities outside the permitted working hours
 Vehicles do not follow the permitted routes
 Oil production is not in line with the national plan which keeps the area in a rural
character
 Toxic and hazardous chemicals will be use during the proposed extraction process
 The purpose of these facilities is to facilitate illegal extraction activities
Traffic
 A potential increase in traffic flow along a cycle route
 Concerns regarding the HGV’s movements
Environment and Public Health
 A potential to flood risk

Page 63

8

8







Contamination of groundwater and water bodies
Air pollution
Light and noise pollution
A disregard to natural environment and wildlife
A threat to public health

Heritage and Visual Impact
 Impacts on the six grade 2 listed buildings which are within 1km of the application site
Climate Change and Green Energy
 Green energy should be used
 Not appropriate to use fossil fuels
Planning Issues
 Planning permission is not required for these facilities
 These facilities are without planning permission
27. Of the comments received, the areas of most concern are:
 This application should be postponed until the current legal dispute is settled (21
comments)
 The purpose of these facilities is to facilitate illegal extraction activities (11 comments)
 Planning permission is not required for these facilities (3 comments)
 These facilities are without planning permission (1 comment)
 Light and noise pollution (1 comment)
 Six grade 2 listed buildings are within 1km of the application site (1 comment)
28. Officers received other concerns regarding the drilling activities and its impacts on
economy, environment and public health. However, this retrospective application is the
facilities for the purposes of administrative, parking and equipment storage use ancillary to
the existing permitted oil production activities. Officers do acknowledge the concerns made
by the public.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Introduction
29. The guidance on the determination of planning applications contained in the
Preamble/Agenda frontsheet is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in
conjunction with the following paragraphs.
30. In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists of
the Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011, Mole Valley District Core Strategy Development Plan
Document 2009 and Mole Valley Local Plan 2000.
31. Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) is currently being reviewed and will eventually
be replaced by the Mole Valley District Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2009
(MVDCS 2009). Officers consider that both MVLP 2000 saved policies and the
MVDCS2009 are relevant for consideration of this application.
32. In considering this application the acceptability of the development will be assessed
against relevant development plan policies and material considerations.
Removal of Permitted Development Rights

Page 64

33. 3 letters of representation have commented that the facilities in this application are without
planning permission, while 1 letter of representation stated that planning permission is not
required for these facilities.
34. Officers consider that these facilities would normally constitute permitted development
under the terms of Class A and B Part 17 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (GDPO). However, Condition 4 of the
existing planning permission (ref: MO06/1294) has withdrawn these rights requiring the
prior agreement in writing of the County Planning Authority1.
35. Paragraph 0232 of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) clearly states that for the
purposes of planning, contact with the local planning authority is necessary before carrying
out permitted development where prior approval from the local planning authority is
required in advance of development. Paragraph 0683 of the PPG continues to state that a
statutory undertaker should give notice to a local planning authority before carrying out
permitted development if it is a condition in a relevant class in Schedule 2 to the General
Permitted Development Order. As the facilities are already on site, the procedure of prior
agreement in writing of the County Planning Authority is not applicable and therefore
planning application is required for these facilities in this case.
EIA Screening
36. The proposed development was evaluated by the County Planning Authority in line with the
Town & Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and the
advice set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance on Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA). On 16 May 2017 the County Planning Authority adopted a screening
opinion under Regulation 7 of the above EIA Regulations, where it considered the
proposed development in the context of Schedule 2, and based on the information
submitted, is of the opinion that there are not likely to be any significant environmental
effects (in terms of the meaning of significant in the EIA Regulations) and therefore it was
recommended that the proposed development would not be EIA development.
37. In assessing the application against development plan policy it will be necessary to
determine whether the proposed measures for mitigating any environmental impact of the
development are satisfactory. In this case the main planning considerations are:
Environmental & Amenity Issues and Green Belt.
ENVIRONMENTAL & AMENITY ISSUES
Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (SMP 2011)
Policy MC14 – Reducing the adverse impacts of mineral development
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000)
Policy ENV22 – General Development Control Criteria
Policy ENV23 – Respecting for Setting
Policy ENV57 – Lighting Proposals
38. Paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the County
Planning Authority attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, which is indivisible from good planning
and should contribute positively to making places better for people. Paragraph 109 also
states that new development should be prevented from contributing to or being put at
unacceptable risk, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or
noise pollution or land instability. Paragraph 122 states that the County Planning Authority
should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land and the
impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or emissions themselves where
1

See condition 4 of planning permission ref. MO06/1294 dated 10 May 2007
Reference ID: 13-023-20140306
3
Reference ID: 13-068-20140306
2

Page 65

8

8

these are subject to approval under pollution control regimes. Paragraph 123 also states
that planning policies and decisions should aim to:
 Avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life as
a result of new development;
 Mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse impacts on health and quality of life
arising from noise from new development, including through the use of conditions;
 Recognise that development will often create some noise and existing businesses
wanting to develop in continuance of their business should not have unreasonable
restrictions put on them because of changes in nearby land uses since they were
established; and
 Identify and protect areas of tranquillity which have remained relatively undisturbed by
noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason.
39. SMP 2011 Policy MC14 states that mineral development will be permitted only where a
need has been demonstrated and the applicant has provided information sufficient for the
mineral planning authority to be satisfied that there would be no significant adverse impacts
arising from the development. In determining planning applications, potential impacts will
be considered.
40. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV22 states that where the principle of proposed development
accords with the other policies of this Plan a design and layout will be required which is
appropriate to the site in terms of its scale, form and appearance and external building
materials; does not significantly harm the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring
properties by reason of overlooking or its overshadowing or overpowering effect, noise,
traffic or other adverse environmental impact; respects the character and appearance of
the locality; has regard to attractive features of the site such as trees, hedges, walls or
buildings that contribute to the character of the locality; provides any necessary screening
and landscaping suitable to the character of the locality; provides safe access to the site
and adequate parking to adopted standards; and provides a satisfactory environment for
occupiers of the new development. Paragraph 4.109 states that a planning condition to
limit the working hours of operation of a proposed use will be imposed on any permission
where the use is only acceptable if occupiers of affected properties are not disturbed at anti
social times. These will normally be during the night, early morning, Saturday afternoons,
Sundays and Bank Holidays.
41. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV23 also states that development will normally be permitted where it
respects its setting taking account of the following: (1) the scale, character, bulk,
proportions and materials of the surrounding built environment. Developments will not be
permitted where it is considered they would constitute over-development of the site by
reason of scale, height or bulk or in relation to the boundaries of the site and/or
surrounding developments; (2) public views warranting protection. Opportunities will be
sought to create attractive new views or vistas; (3) townscape features such as street
patterns, familiar landmark buildings, and the space about buildings; (4) the roofscape.
Pitched roofs will normally be expected and any plant, machinery or lifts being incorporated
within the roof structure; (5) the impact of the development within or conspicuous from the
Green Belt on the rural amenities of the Green Belt by reason of its siting, materials or
design; (6) the impact on the landscape of the proposed siting and appearance of new
agricultural buildings or works or any other appropriate/exceptional development in the
countryside.
42. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV57 states that proposals for the illumination of buildings and other
facilities will not be permitted where they would significantly and adversely affect the
amenities of residential properties, Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings, or the character
and appearance of the countryside. Where permission is granted, consideration will be
given to imposing conditions to limit the impact of the illumination.
Lighting and Visual Impact

Page 66

43. 1 letter of representation has commented that this application would lead to light pollution.
Another letter of representation has also raised a concern that the current application may
affect six Grade II buildings, which are all located within 1km of the site. The five lighting
units of approximately 6 metres in height incorporating CCTV equipments are considered
to have a potential visual impact on the nearby environment.
44. In accordance with the Committee’s Report dated 14 November 2001 for the planning
application (ref. MO/2001/1288), paragraph 10 states that artificial lighting would be
required so as to permit safe working during the winter months. This would not be
necessary outside normal working hours. Paragraph 7 of the Committee’s Report dated 11
October 2006 for the planning application (ref. MO06/1294) also states that the compound
is secured by a fence line and security lights, remaining locked when unmanned. Officers
consider that lighting units have been installed at the site and they are for the purposes of
security and operational need.
45. Paragraph 4.245 of MVLP 2000 states that lights should be appropriately shielded directed
to the ground and sited to minimise the impact on adjoining areas, and be of a height and
illumination level reasonably required to serve their purpose. Conditions may be imposed
to control the hours of illumination. The application site is currently subject to a condition on
the restriction of activities under the existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294)4.
Condition 5 states no light except intermittent security or safety lighting within the site shall
be illuminated, except between 0730 and 1800 hours Mondays to Fridays, and 0800 to
1300 hours Saturdays, and there shall be no working on Sundays or National and Bank
Holidays.
46. The site has been worked for oil production and it is not covered by any landscape
designations or heritage conversation areas. The site is over 500 metres away from the
nearest property and the site has a lower level than the surrounding areas. The site is also
well-screened by existing hedgerows, trees and a 2 to 3 metre high-grassed bund. Given
the nature of the site and the lighting units temporarily provided are within the boundaries
of the application site, Officers consider that they would not give rise to any adverse visual
impacts on the surrounding environment. All the facilities including the lighting units will be
removed by 31 December 2036 and the site will be restored to agriculture. However, a
condition regarding the restriction on the operations and working hours will be imposed in
this application to impose control on the operations and lighting, so as to protect local
amenity.
Data Protection
47. CCTV equipments are installed towards the top of the lighting columns and face inwards at
low level in with the site. The CCTV equipments are fixed bullet cameras for monitoring
purpose. The applicant also submitted the Code of Practice for Surveillance Cameras and
Personal Information dated 21 May 2015 in this application. The applicant sets out that
they are required to follow the Code as they are one of the registered members of the
Information Commissioner’s Office. They are also required to meet the legal requirements
operators of surveillance cameras under the Data Protection Act 1998, the Freedom of
Information Act 2000, the Protection of Freedom Act 2012 (POFA), the Human Rights Act
1998 and the Surveillance Camera Code of Practice issued under the POFA code.
48. Officers consider that the CCTV equipments are for the purpose of monitoring. The
applicant has also provided sufficient information to demonstrate the protection of data and
use of CCTV cameras are strictly in accordance with the legal requirements. Should
planning permission be granted, a condition is imposed on the relevant permission to
require compliance with the said Codes of Practice and Acts.

4

See condition 5 of planning permission ref. MO06/1294 dated 10 May 2007

Page 67

8

8

Noise
49. 1 letter of representation has commented that this application would cause noise pollution.
The application site is currently subject to three conditions on noise control under the
existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294)5. Conditions 12 requires the applicant to
take appropriate measures to minimise noise disturbance from operations by including
appropriate acoustic enclosures on all suitable equipment so as to protect nearby residents
and users of the local network of public rights of way. Condition 13 requires the applicant to
ensure that the noise arising from the operations or the use of any plant or equipment
associated with such operations on the site of the development hereby permitted, may not
exceed the 1/3 octave values (criterion value), when measured in free field conditions or
recalculated as at, any noise sensitive location. Condition 14 then limits noise generated
from the generators to no more than 35dBA Leq (1 hour) during the night time hours
between 22.00 and 07.00.
50. The County Noise Consultant (CNC) recognises that the portable site generator is
considered to be the only potential item which will generate noise. Although the CNC
agrees that there are conditions under the existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294)
to control the noise emissions, these conditions do not accord with current legislations and
guidelines. The CNC considers that this retrospective application is for the on-site facilities.
It is not considered to be practicable or enforceable to have two sets of noise conditions
covering the same site. Therefore, the CNC considers the development acceptable and
that noise can be covered by the existing conditions.
51. According to paragraph 003 of the PPG6 and paragraph 206 of the NPPF, both documents
state that planning conditions should only be imposed where they are necessary, relevant
to planning and to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in
all other respects. Paragraph 0047 and 0058 of the PPG continues to state that whether it is
appropriate for the County Planning Authority to impose a condition on a grant of planning
permission will depend on the specifics of the case. Conditions should help to deliver
development plan policy and accord with the requirements of the NPPF, including
satisfying the 6 tests for conditions. The 6 tests must all be satisfied each time a decision to
grant planning permission subject to conditions is made. Any proposed conditions that fail
to meet any of the 6 tests should not be used.
52. Officers consider that this retrospective application is for the installation of the on-site
facilities only and the application site is subject to the existing planning permission (ref.
MO06/1294). Officers consider that it is not enforceable to have two sets of planning
conditions on noise control covering the same site. The proposed noise conditions are
considered to fail to meet the 6 tests for conditions. Officers therefore consider that this
application should be covered by the existing conditions on noise control. However, an
informative shall be imposed to remind the applicant regarding the noise control under the
existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294).
Other Issues
53. Brockham Parish Council, Brockham Oil Watch, Campaign to Protect Rural England and
10 letters of representation also have objections to this retrospective application as these
facilities are considered to be the improvement of facilities to increase oil production. 21
letters of representation, Brockham Parish Council, Brockham Oil Watch and Campaign to
Protect Rural England also have commented that this retrospective application should also
be postponed until the legal dispute regarding the drilling activities on the sidetrack well
BRX-4Z between the Surrey County Council and the applicant is settled.

5

See conditions 12, 13 & 14 of planning permission ref. MO06/1294 dated 10 May 2007
Reference ID: 21a-003-20140306
Reference ID: 21a-004-20140306
8
Reference ID: 21a-005-20140306
6
7

Page 68

Permitted Oil Production Activities

8

54. The existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294) was granted to allow the applicant to
produce oil by using permitted production wellheads BRX1 and BRX2 until 31 December
2036. Under this existing planning permission, the permitted development rights were also
withdrawn and therefore prior agreement in writing of the County Planning Authority is
required before carrying out any development under Condition 5 of this existing planning
permission. Whilst these ancillary facilities are for the purposes of administrative, parking
and onsite equipment storage uses only, they are already at the site, and therefore (i.e.
retrospective) planning permission is required.
Other Oil Production Activities
55. According to the PPG, planning permission is required for each phase of hydrocarbon
extraction9. The applicant can also make a planning application to cover more than one
phase of extraction, provided that all relevant information, including environmental
information, is adequate to support the full extent of the application10. Paragraph 147 of the
NPPF also states that minerals planning authorities should clearly distinguish between the
three phases of development (exploration, appraisal and production) and address
constraints on production and processing within areas that are licensed for oil and gas
exploration or production when planning for on-shore oil and gas development, including
unconventional hydrocarbons.
56. Officers are in a discussion with the applicant in respect of the drilling activities on the
sidetrack well BRX-4Z. In the views of Officers, it is a fact that no planning permission has
been granted by the County Planning Authority for the production of oil from the wellheads
other than BRX1 and BRX2. In any event, there are no proposed or new oil production and
drilling activities in this retrospective application. For the avoidance of doubt, Officers
recommend that an informative is imposed to remind the applicant that the grant of
planning permission relates solely to the installation of the on-site facilities as ancillary
development to the permitted drilling and production activities under planning permission
(ref. MO06/1294) which relates to BRX1 and BRX2.
GREEN BELT
Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (SMP 2011)
Policy MC3 – Spatial Strategy – mineral development in the Green Belt
Policy MC17 – Restoring mineral workings
Mole Valley District Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2009 (MVDCS 2009)
Policy CS1 – Where Development will be Directed (A Spatial Strategy)
57. The protection of Green Belts around urban areas is one of the key planning principles of
the NPPF. Paragraph 79 of the NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy
is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics
of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence. Paragraph 90 of the NPPF
identifies that mineral extraction is not appropriate in Green Belt provided they preserve
openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land in Green
Belt.
58. SMP 2011 Policy MC3 states that mineral extraction in the Green Belt will only be
permitted where the highest environmental standards of operation are maintained and the
land restored to beneficial after-uses consistent with Green Belt objectives within agreed
time limits. Policy MC17 states that mineral working will be permitted only where the
mineral planning authority is satisfied that the site can be restored and managed to a high
standard. The restoration of mineral workings should be completed at the earliest
opportunity and progressive restoration will be required where appropriate. The applicant
9

Reference ID: 27-093-20150415
Reference ID: 27-094-20140306

10

Page 69

8

will be expected to agree a scheme with the mineral planning authority detailing how the
land will be restored and managed before, during and after working. Restored sites should
be sympathetic to the character and setting of the wider area; and capable of sustaining an
appropriate after-use.
59. MVDCS 2009 Policy CS1 states that development will be considered in the light of
Government Policy on Green Belt.
Openness of the Green Belt
60. This retrospective application includes a range of temporary supporting facilities, which are
located on s permitted oil production wellsite. Consequently, these facilities would
introduce structures and activities to land where they would adversely impact the openness
of the Green Belt, albeit for a temporary period until 31 December 2036.
61. According to submitted supplementary information and the Committee Report dated 11
October 2006 for the planning application for the continued use of the site for production
wells until 31 December 2036 (ref. MO06/1294), some of these facilities have already been
installed on the site, including the following:
Security fencing
The applicant states that the original fence was in a poor condition and has been replaced
with a green, palisade design fence with rear emergency access and the security gates of
approximately 2.4 metres in height.
Security lighting
The lighting units of approximately 6 metres in height are retained and CCTV equipment is
installed towards the top of the lighting columns and face inwards at low level at the site.
Site office
The original Portakabin site office was removed from the site. The current site office is a
dark green painted steel cabin of approximately 2.60 metres high x 2.90 metres wide x
6.10 metres long, which covers an area of approximately 17.69 square metres.
Container storage facility
The original container storage facility is replaced by the two green painted storage
containers, which each of them is approximately 2.59 metres high x 2.43 metres wide x
6.06 metres long and a mess facility, which is a dark green painted steel container/office of
approximately 2.58 metres high x 2.43 metres wide x 8.17 metres long. They all cover an
area of approximately 49.3 square metres.
62. The original container workshop and the gas and diesel storage tanks were removed from
the site, while the containerised generator is remained at the site. The following items are
considered to be new on-site facilities, including:
Site security office
The site security office is located at the south-eastern part of the site, which is next to the
site main entrance gate. The site security office is a green painted steel container/office of
approximately 2.44 metres high x 3.05 metres wide x 9.75 metres long, which covers an
area of approximately 29.74 square metres.
Site toilet facility

Page 70

The site toilet facility is located next to the site security office. The site toilet facility is a
purpose-built dark green painted steel block/cabin of approximately 2.40 metres high x
2.48 metres wide x 2.10 metres long, which covers an area of approximately 5.21 square
metres.
Electrical control building and portable site generator with two enclosed fuel tanks
The electrical control building and a site generator with two enclosed fuel tanks are located
at the western part of the site, which is next to the original containerised generator. The
electrical control building is approximately 3 metres long x 3 metres wide x 2.5 metres high.
A portable site generator is to provider power to the onsite-site facilities and two small
enclosed fuel tanks are located adjacent to the portable generator.
Concrete hardstanding and parking area
A total area of approximately 48.50 square metres concrete hardstanding is installed to
provide support to the facilities, including site office, site security office, site toilet facility
and mess facility. Parking area is also provided for car/van and it is located at the southern
part of the site, which is next to the mess facility. It covers a total area of approximately
7.40 square metres.
Officers’ Assessment
63. This retrospective application includes a range of temporary supporting facilities, which are
located on an active oil wellsite. All of these facilities have already been installed at the site
and so the impacts are understood. The site is well-screened by existing hedgerows, trees
and a 2 to 3 metre high-grassed bund. The operation and removal of the facilities will also
be tied to the approved timescale for the permitted oil production activities and operations
on the site, which is until 31 December 2036 under the existing planning permission (ref.
MO06/1294) with restoration to agriculture.
64. The proposed development is reversible and would not prevent the long term restoration
and aftercare of the site. Since the facilities are all within the site boundary, this application
also would not increase the footprint of the site area. The scale of the development is
modest and proportionate to the need for infrastructure at the site to enable lawful
hydrocarbon production. Officers therefore consider that the facilities would have a minor
impact on the Green Belt, and therefore limited harm and would otherwise accord with
Green Belt policy nationally and in the Development Plan.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
65. The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation, contained in the Preamble to the
Agenda is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with the
following paragraph.
66. Officers consider that the use of CCTV equipment and the data protection may be one of
the concerns in human rights. However, given the development is small in scale and
temporary, it is the Officers view that the scale and duration of any potential impacts are
not considered sufficient to engage Article 8 or Article 1 and that potential impact can be
mitigated by the imposition of planning conditions. As such, this proposal is not considered
to interfere with any Convention right.

CONCLUSION

Page 71

8

8

67. This retrospective application seeks planning permission for the installation of the on-site
facilities until 31 December 2036 with restoration to agriculture. These facilities are located
within an active and lawful wellsite. An approximately three metre high grassed bund forms
the north and east boundary, with hedgerows forming the southern and western
boundaries. The closest residential properties are the cottages adjacent to Felton’s Farm
buildings just off Old School Lane approximately 585m to the east.
68. The installation of on-site facilities would normally constitute permitted development under
the terms of Class A and B Part 17 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (GDPO). However, Condition 4 of existing planning
permission ref: MO06/1294 has withdrawn these rights requiring the prior agreement in
writing of the County Planning Authority before the commencement of the development.
The procedure of prior agreement in writing of the County Planning Authority is not
applicable and therefore planning permission must be sought to retain the development.
69. Officers consider following advice from technical consultees and subject to the imposition
of planning conditions, the facilities would not result in an unacceptable impact on the
amenity including lighting, visual and noise. Officers also consider that relevant condition is
imposed to the data protection issue for the use of CCTV equipment. The development is a
temporary use of the land concerned, commensurate with the existing operational wellsite,
and once restored would preserve the openness of the Green Belt in the long term.
Officers therefore consider that planning permission is in accord with National and
Development Policy and should be granted subject to conditions/.
RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation is to PERMIT the application subject to the following conditions.
Conditions:
Approved Documents
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with the
following plans/drawings:
Drawing No

Title

Dated

1215/2237/2D
1215/2237/11B
1215/2237/12

Brockham Site Location Plan
Brockham Site Layout
Brockham CCTV Camera Location

1/2/17
1/2/17
May 2017

2. From the commencement of the development to the cessation of operations hereby
permitted, a copy of this planning permission including all documents and plans shall be
displayed on the site during working hours in a location which is readily accessible to any
person undertaking the development and officers of the County Planning Authority.
Duration
3. The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 December 2036, by which
date all fixed plant or machinery, access and hardstandings subject to this permission
together with their foundations and bases shall be removed from the site and the land
restored in accordance with an approved restoration scheme, as required under Condition
16 of the planning permission (ref. MO06/1294) dated 10 May 2007 .
Removal of Permitted Development Rights

Page 72

4. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary under Part 17 (Class A & B) of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any
subsequent Order,


No plant, building or machinery whether fixed or moveable shall be erected on the
application site without the prior written approval of the County Planning Authority in
respect of the location, design, specification and appearance of the installation, such
details to include predicted levels of noise emission and their tonal characteristics;



no external lighting or fencing other than those permitted by this application shall be
installed or erected at the application site

Restriction of Activities
5. Except in emergencies to maintain safe site operations which shall be notified to the County
Planning Authority as soon as practicable, no operations or activities authorised or required
by this permission shall be carried out, and no light except intermittent security or safety
lighting within the site shall be illuminated, except the following times:
0730 – 1800 hours Mondays to Fridays
0800 – 1300 hours Saturdays
There shall be no operations or activities carried out on Sundays, National Holidays or Bank
Holidays.
Data Protection
6. The 5No. CCTV cameras installed as part of the development hereby permitted shall only be
operated in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998, the Freedom of Information Act
2000, the Protection of Freedom Act 2012, the Human Rights Act 1998 and the Surveillance
Camera code of Practice issued under the Protection of Freedom Act 2012 code or any
orders or procedures revoking or re-enacting these orders.
Reasons:
1. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2. To enable the County Planning Authority to control the development and to ensure that the
development is undertaken in accordance with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Mineral Plan
2011.
3. To enable the County Planning Authority to control the development and to ensure that the
development is undertaken in accordance with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Mineral Plan
2011.
4. To enable the County Planning Authority to control the development and to ensure that the
development is undertaken in accordance with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Mineral Plan
2011.
5. To enable the County Planning Authority to control the development and to ensure that the
development is undertaken in accordance with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Mineral Plan
2011.
6. To enable the County Planning Authority to control the development and to ensure that the
development is undertaken in accordance with Policy MC14 of the Surrey Mineral Plan
2011.
Informative:

Page 73

8

8

1. The applicant is reminded that the noise control on the facilities under this application should
be in accordance with the requirements under Condition 12, 13 and 14 in respect of noise
control of the existing planning permission (ref. MO06/1294).
2. The applicant is reminded that this retrospective application is for the installation of on-site
facilities only. Planning permission is required for each phase of hydrocarbon extraction.
Applications can be made to cover more than one phase of extraction. However the
applicant has to provide all relevant information, including environmental information, to
support the full extent of the application.
3. In determining this application the County Planning Authority has worked positively and
proactively with the applicant by: entering into pre-application discussions; scoping of the
application; assessing the proposals against relevant Development Plan policies and the
National Planning Policy Framework including its accompanying technical guidance and
European Regulations providing feedback to the applicant where appropriate. Further, the
County Planning Authority has: identified all material considerations; forwarded consultation
responses to the applicant; considered representations from interested parties; liaised with
consultees and the applicant to resolve identified issues; and determined the application
within the timeframe agreed with the applicant. Issues of concern have been raised with the
applicant including impacts of and on data protection, noise, visual impact and Green Belt
and addressed through negotiation and acceptable amendments to the proposals. This
approach has been in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
____________________________________________________________________
CONTACT
Jeffrey Ng
TEL. NO.
020 8541 8095
_________________________________________________________________________
BACKGROUND PAPERS
The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the
proposal, responses to consultations and representations received as referred to in the report
and included in the application file and the following:
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
Planning Practice Guidance
The Development Plan
Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document
Mole Valley District Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2009
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000
Other Document
Committee Report dated 14 November 2001 (ref. MO/2001/1288)
Committee Report dated 11 October 2006 (ref. MO06/1294)
Code of Practice for Surveillance Cameras and Personal Information
Data Protection Act 1998
Freedom of Information Act 2000
Protection of Freedom Act 2012
Human Rights Act 1998
Surveillance Camera code of Practice issued under the Protection of Freedom Act 2012

Page 74

8

Application Site Area

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Application Number : MO/2017/0916

2012-13 Aerial Photos

Aerial 1 : Brockham Well Site

Page 77
8

All boundaries are approximate

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916

2012-13 Aerial Photos

Aerial 2 : Brockham Well Site

Page 78

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 1 : Security Gate and Fence

Page 79
8

Figure 2 : Lighting Unit with CCTV equipment

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 80

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 3 : Site Office

Page 81
8

Figure 4 : Security Office

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 82

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 5 : Toilet

Page 83
8

Figure 6 : Mess Facility

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 84

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 7 : Storage containers for on site equipment

Page 85
8

Figure 8 : Electrical Control Building

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 86

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 9 : Site Generators

Page 87
8

Figure 10 : Hard Standing

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 88

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Figure 11 : View from Entrance

Page 89
8

Figure 12 : View from Bund

8

Application Number : MO/2017/0916 Brockham Well Site

Page 90

Item 9
9

ITEM NO
TO:

PLANNING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13 SEPT 2017

BY:

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL TEAM MANAGER

DISTRICT(S)

ALL

ELECTORAL DIVISION(S):
ALL

PURPOSE:

FOR DECISION

TITLE:

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL’S LOCAL LIST: REQUEST FORMAL
ADOPTION OF LOCAL LIST FOR THE VALIDATION OF COUNTY
DEVELOPMENT AND COUNTY MATTERS PLANNING APPLICATIONS

SUMMARY REPORT
This report is to advise Members of the responses in regard to the consultation on the
proposed Local List for the Validation of Planning Applications received by Surrey County
Council and the amendments that have been made as a result.
Officers request that the committee formally adopt the document allowing for periodic
reviews of the document and officers to update technical notes, in engagement with relevant
consultees, when and if required.
Recommendation: that Members adopt the Local List of Validation of County
Development and County Matters Planning Applications
Introduction
1. Under Article 11 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 local authorities are required to produce lists of the
information that they require to make a planning application. These are called local
lists (validation checklists), and they are lists of the information required for different
types of applications. Paragraph 193 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) makes it clear that planning authorities should only request supporting
information that is relevant, necessary and material to the application. Paragraph 44
of the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) requires all planning authorities to
redress their validation checklists, consult on amended checklists, and then adopt the
amended checklists every two years.
2. In April 2014 Surrey County Council formally adopted a Local List for the Validation
of County Development and County Matters Planning Applications. The Planning
Department is now in the process of reviewing the local list which is the purpose of
this document.
Process for reviewing the current local list
3. The local validation list affects all types of planning related applications handled by
the County Planning Authority including applications for express planning
permission, Listed Building consent, variation of conditions, and extensions of time.

Page 91

9

4. The recommended process for reviewing and revising local lists involves the
following 3-step process:


Step 1: Reviewing the existing local list

Planning Authorities should identify the drivers for each item on their existing local list
of information requirements. These drivers should be statutory requirements, policies
in the National Planning Policy Framework or development plan, or published
guidance that explains how adopted policy should be implemented.
Having identified their information requirements, local planning authorities should
decide whether they need to revise their existing local list. Where a local planning
authority decides that no changes are necessary, it should publish an announcement
to this effect on its website and republish its local list.


Step 2: Consulting on proposed changes

Where a planning authority considers that changes are necessary, the proposals
should be issued to the local community, including applicants and agents, for
consultation.


Step 3: Finalising and publishing the revised local list

Consultation responses should be taken into account by the planning authority when
preparing the final revised list. The revised local list should be published on the
planning authority’s website.
5. The current Local List for Surrey County Council comprises of:
Introductory information – setting out what types of application the document is
intended for, the purpose of the document, where there is a dispute between the
County Planning Authority and the applicant as to whether an application is
considered invalid
National Requirements – e.g. site plan, block plan, floor plans, elevations
Appendix 1 – the local list requirements for Minerals applications
Appendix 2 – the local list requirements for Waste related applications
Appendix 3 – the local list requirements for County Own Development (Regulation 3
applications)
6. Failure to supply the above information will result in the application being declared
invalid. However, Planning Authorities are unable, since the introduction of the
guidance in 2010, to treat applications as invalid if they meet these statutory
requirements, unless and until they have adopted a local list of further information
requirements.
7. A number of changes are proposed to the current lists, the majority of which are
updating the current text to bring it in line with current Government legislation as well
updating the information requirements so that the documents are more concise and
easier for the applicants / agents to follow. It is also proposed to alter the layout of
the National Requirements from a list to a table as well as re-organising the individual

Page 92

annexes so that they are grouped under subject headings each with a contents page.
A copy of each of the annexes is attached to this report.
8. Section 5.2 of the Guidance sets out five principles to guide the review of local lists.
These are as follows:
Principle
Necessity

Precision

Proportionality

Fitness for
purpose
Assistance

Key considerations
All local list requirements should be based on statutory requirements,
national, regional or adopted local policy, or on published guidance
which explains how adopted policy should be implemented
It should be clear what types of development require the provision of
particular supporting information. Where appropriate, the LPA should
also identify specific areas where the information requirements arises
The information required is likely to be dependent on the nature and
scale of the proposal and the sensitivity of its location. Where possible,
the LPA should identify size thresholds below which certain information
is not required or where only limited information is required
It should be clear what information is required to satisfy the requirement
– with a strong emphasis on a proportionate approach and succinct
documents
For each element of the list it should be clear where further information
or answers to queries can be obtained.

9. Officers consider that the proposed changes would meet the above five principles.
Consultation
10. The Guidance recommends that Planning Authorities consult with the local
community, applicants and agents for a consultation period that should last no less
than eight weeks. Any responses to this consultation should be taken into account by
the Planning Authority when preparing the revised list after which the local list should
be approved and published on the Planning Authority’s website.
11. A consultation exercise took place between 18 April 2017 and 11 June 2017. Given
the nature of the document and those who would be using it, consultations were
limited to applicants and agents who had submitted planning applications to the
County Council within the last 5 years; statutory consultees including Natural
England, English Heritage, the Environment Agency and Surrey District and Borough
Councils; non-statutory consultees including Surrey Wildlife Trust, and colleagues in
the Planning and Development Service within Surrey County Council.
12. Over 335 individuals / organisations were consulted. The consultation documents
were in the main emailed but some were posted to the individuals and organisations.
The planning pages on Surrey County Council’s website were updated to make users
aware of the consultation providing links and an opportunity to provide comments online.
13. In response to the consultation, 7 comments were received from
individuals/organisations, 3 from Surrey County Council Officers, 3 from external
consultees, and one from a resident.
14. The comments received are documented in the Schedule of Modifications displayed
at the end of this report. In summary the comments in the main related to the
consistency of the annexes that make up the document and some inaccuracies

Page 93

9

9

which have been corrected. Concern was raised in regard to the ‘quick reference
guide’ which was considered to be too detailed yet not specific enough and not user
friendly. The Schedule of Modifications shows the detailed comments of those who
have responded to the consultation and also the actions taken by officers in response
to these comments.
Amendments made as a result of the consultation comments
15. As a result of the comments received, the annexes have been updated to ensure
they are all consistent, where required and grammatical and spelling errors have
been corrected. The ‘quick reference guide’ has been removed altogether as it was
not considered to be a useful tool raising more questions rather than answers. This
aspect can be reviewed in the light of further experience and ongoing review of
process. Further, additional references to planning policies have been added and
some text altered to ensure greater clarity for applicants. A table of all the comments
received can be found at the end of this report.
Other Matters
16. The validation checklist will be monitored and reviewed periodically to ensure that the
document is kept up to date with changes in legislation and policy. Officers request
that the committee endorse the periodic review of this document and also allow
officers to update technical notes, in engagement with relevant consultees, when and
if required.
Conclusion
17. Following the expiration of the consultation period and amendments made as a
result, Officers now request that the Planning and Regulatory Committee adopt
Surrey County Council’s Local List for the Validation of Planning Applications.
Recommendation
18. To ADOPT Surrey County Council’s Local List for the Validation of Planning
Applications allowing for periodic reviews of this document and officers to update
technical notes, in consultation with relevant consultees, if necessary.

CONTACT
Alex Sanders / Samantha Murphy
TEL. NO.s
020 8541 9462/7107

BACKGROUND PAPERS
The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the
proposal, responses to consultations and representations received as referred to in the
report and included in the application file and the following:
Guidance on information requirements and validation, Department for Communities and
Local Government, 2010.
Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 1238 (The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2013.

Page 94

National Planning Policy Framework 2012
APPENDICES
Schedule of Modifications
Local List introductory text
National Validation Requirements
Final version - Annex 1
Final version - Annex 2
Final version - Annex 3

Page 95

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Schedule of Modifications

Page 97

Who said it
County Air
Quality
Consultant Waste Annex

What was said
Actions taken
p.3 - Add Planning Practice Guidance: Air Quality to the guidance documents column.
P.4 second column - indent and add bullet point to sentence 'where development proposal is likely to generate dust…'
p.4 references - change reference 5 to '(Jan 2017) (v1.2)' and add a weblink for reference 7.
p.5 Operational Dust- Add SCC Dust Impact Assessment guidance note and Dust Impact Management Plans guidance note. Also add Planing Practice Guidance: Air Quality.
p.5 Odour - Change sentence to 'For proposals involving putrescible waste and composting within 250m...'
p.6 Odour - Move 'Guidance on the assessment of odour for planning, Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM), 2014' to top of guidance section.
p.6 Odour top sentence - indent and bullet point 'details of control/mitigation measures proposed...'
p.6 Odour - Add an additional bullet point; the residual odour impacts and their effects.
p.6 Odour - Add sentence to start of 'The applicant should justify the methodolgy...' Add 'In accordance with the IAQM guidance on assessment of odour for planning, the...'
All changes accepted
p.6 Odour final paragraph - Change to 'The assessment should also describe...
p.7 Bio-aerosols - Add 'and there are sensitive receptors' to 'Where the proposal involves the rnanagement of putrescible waste or has the potential to suspend biologically-active particles
in the air'.
p.7 Bio-aerosols - Add 'such activities include, but are not necessarily limited to...'
p.7 Bio-aerosols - Add 'Guidance on the evaluation of Bioaerosol Risk Assessment for Composting Facilities, Cranfield University (2009)' to guidance section.
p.8 Other pollutants - Change last bullet point in When Required to 'Other CHPs and centralised boilers ≥ 450kWth gas boiler or 30kw CHP'

County Air
Quality
Consultant Minerals
Annex

p.4 Air Quality Assessment - Add 'Planning Practice Guidance: Air Quality' and change 'Planning Guidance' to 'Planning for Air Quality'
p.4 reference 5 - Change to '(Jan 2017) (v1.2)'
p.4 reference 7 - Add a weblink to this reference.
P.5 Operational Dust - Add 'SCC Dust Impact Assessment guidance note and Dust Management Plan guidance note' and 'Planning Guidance Practice: Air Quality'

County Air
Quality
Consultant Regulation 3
Development
Annex

p.13 Air Quality Assessment (When Required) - Add to 3rd bullet point: 'that is proposed in or adjacent to an AQMA'
P.13 - Air Quality Assessment - Add 2 bullet points to When Required section: 'proposals that would generated development traffic exceeding the EPUK-???? indicative thresholds'
proposals that introduce any centralised biofueled plant or any combustion plant with ???? single or combined gas boiler rating of ≥ 450kWth or 30kwe CHP.
P.13 - Add an 11th reference to page - 'HDV flows (AADT) of 25 within/adjacent to an AQMA, or 100 elsewhere; LDV flows (AADT) of 100 within/adjacent to AQMA, or 500 elsewhere.

All changes accepted

All changes accepted

9

1

9

Planning
Under the guidance documents, we should refer to the AMR, Surrey Local Aggregate Assessment and the Aggregates Monitoring Update. These are all updated annually.
Officer I am validating an application where the Planning Statement relies on the latest published AMR 2014/15 (as of time of writing), and includes no reference to more relevant and up to date
Annex 1 and 2 monitoring info contained in the LAA and the Aggregates Monitoring Update. Hence the reason for mentioning.
All changes accepted
These monitoring documents are also relevant for inclusion under "Planning Statement" in relation to Annex 2 - Waste concerning proposals for aggregates recycling / secondary aggregate
production facilities - if not picked up already ?
County Noise - The contents is a mix of environmental topics, developments (airports) and required supporting documentation – items 12 and 13. The mix seems a bit odd – maybe the contents could
Consultant - be split into sections?
Minerals
- AQ is standalone but noise is included under amenity. This seems a little odd as you get nuisance dust etc.
Annex
- Assessments/Reports/Survey – Suggest rewording: For any noise sensitive development, existing or consented, potentially affected by the minerals development, a noise assessment
should be prepared by a competent person that defines the baseline sound environment, following appropriate guidance, usually established through measurement, and the impact of
the proposed development using prediction and measurement techniques as appropriate. Where criteria in appropriate guidance may be exceeded, mitigation measures should be
All changes accepted
provided such that the criteria are not exceeded.
- BS 4142:2014 provides guidance on competent persons if this is required to be defined.
- BS 5228-1:2009+A1:2014 provides guidance on plant noise levels and prediction methods.
- As you are aware, the SCC guidelines are being revised – should this be stated?

Page 98

County Noise
Consultant Waste Annex
County Noise
Consultant Regulation 3
Development
Annex
Planning
Officer Introduction
and National
Validation
Requirements

Comments as for minerals.
Should BS 4142:2014 be included for developments not subject to minerals guidance?

All changes accepted

- Suggest using the bold text above.
- I don’t see that the EA is relevant for these or that the SCC Guidelines would apply in their current form.
- BS 4142:2014 would be relevant to industrial sources – HVAC etc in schools, fire stations etc.
- Should the DMRB be included for roads + Calculation of Road Traffic noise?

All changes accepted

1. Page 2, final para re Invalid Applications - I think this should refer to Part 3 of Statutory Instrument 2015 no. 595: The T&CP (DM Procedure) (England) Order 2015 - rather than 2013;
2. Page 5 - 'The correct fee'. Might be worth adding somewhere that in the case of a section 73 application, the correct fee needs to be received by the CPA before permission expires and
that there is no postal delivery to County Hall on a Saturday or Sunday. Legal advised as such when I discussed two cases with them for example an application where the cheque is dated
Friday, planning permission expires 2 days later on Sunday, and the cheques were received a day later on Monday - hence not valid;
3. Page 5 - 'Ownership Certificates' - I think the third column should refer to Article 13 or 14 of the T&CP DM Procedure (England) Order 2015 rather than Article 11 ?
All changes accepted
NB: The above statutory instrument requires the local list to be published or republished every 2 years. Otherwise, we cannot rely on it as justification for finding an application invalid
under Article 11 (3d) of the above as we would be open to challenge through a validation dispute. This appears to be a drawback with the current local list which will shortly be addressed.
Might be worth adding a clear publication date to the list. If too onerous to update every 2 years, all we need to do is simply republish it, pending the next review.

2

Resident

The current document only requires a limited and unspecified need to demonstrate that the developer has consulted locally. I suggest the requirement shown on Page 2 of this document
beginning "Details of consultations with the County Planning Authority and wider community/statutory consultees...." should be changed to "Details of consultation with the County
Planning Authority and wider community (SUCH AS LOCAL RESIDENTS ASSOCIATIONS, WHERE THESE EXIST) as well as statutory consultees ..." Details of most, if not all, Residents
Associations in Surrey are available from local borough councils, although I believe Surrey should be required to maintain a central list of these. My addition would help ensure that the
community impacted by the minerals related development was involved at the earliest opportunity. It would hopefully also mean that communication between the community and
All changes accepted
developers was as transparent and open as possible and thus might alleviate some of the issues and problems which often arise as a result of lack of early communication. I strongly feel
that my suggested change is in keeping with paragraph 189 of the National Policy Planning Framework (Pre-Application Engagement and Front Loading).

Woldingham
Association all Annexes

Our comments have three common themes that apply to Annexes 1,2 and 3. To ensure that they are recorded against each document, we have repeated this attachment.
1. Sloping sites and undulating topography: Where proposals are located in areas with sloping or undulating topography, all of the planning statements, assessments and other supporting
information that are required by Annexes 1-3 should include sufficient information so that the relationship between the proposal and nearby areas, buildings, public and private
viewpoints, can be assessed in order to understand the full impact of the proposal. Undulating topography can create surprising views into and out of a site as well as a whole range of
issues with adjacent landowners in all directions from the proposal, and so it is important that sloping site issues are recognised in all of the application documents.
For example, the Planning Statement section of Annexes 1-3 could be amended to “describe the topography of the site and the surrounding area”. Plans will be required that show
contours of the site and nearby areas. Landscape and visual impact assessments must consider the impact from a range of heights, ridges, hillsides and valleys.
2.For the Water section, the Assessment Reports must include the impact on adjacent areas. This is to address unexpected situations that arise on sloping sites, e.g. perimeter
hardstanding areas or soakaways flooding downhill landowners. For Amenity/Lighting, the report/assessments required must taken into account the impact of lighting from all relevant
near and far viewpoints.

Page 99

3. Habitats, trees and landscaping: We have seen numerous examples where developers have removed habitats and felled trees just prior to submission, and in so doing, were granted
permission for larger schemes than we believe would otherwise have been allowed. We would like to see this unintended incentive for habitat destruction and tree felling eliminated, if
possible, and would urge Surrey County Council to consider adding some words to that effect in the validation checklist.

1. changes accepted
2.
this is already covered 3.
this is outside the control of
the validation checklist
4. changes accepted

4. Traffic and Highways: Where traffic is intended to be restricted to certain routes, the proposal must include details of how this is to be accomplished with certainty, which may include
penalties for non-compliance. This would help ensure that appropriately robust traffic schemes are implemented so that the actual realised traffic patterns occur as intended.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment and please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions.

SCC
Please add a reference to the Council's Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) as a 'policy driver' in all three Annexes
Countryside
Access Team all Annexes
SCC
Aboricultural
Manager - all
All comments are simple wording issues or errors, so I have not included them here. I will accept these changes as they seem reasonable.
Annexes

All changes accepted

9

3

All changes accepted

This page is intentionally left blank

9

Surrey County
Council

Local List for the
Validation of County
Development and
County Matters
Planning Applications

1

September 2017

Page 101

9

Introduction
Surrey County Council, as the County Planning Authority (CPA), has a statutory duty to
control three categories of development within Surrey:
 those relating to mineral workings (extraction, processing etc.) like sand, gravel or
clay
 those relating to the recycling, recovery, processing or disposal of waste
 those relating to County own development including schools, fire stations and roads
The planning policies concerned with waste-related development undertaken in Surrey are
contained in the Surrey Waste Plan Development Plan Document, which was adopted by the
council in May 2008, and planning policies relating to mineral working across Surrey are set
down in the Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy Development Plan Document , which was
adopted by the council in July 2011. The Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan
Document for the Minerals and Waste Plans was adopted by the council in February 2013
and contains specific policies relating to proposals for the production of recycled and
secondary aggregates.
Under Article 11 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 local authorities are required to produce lists of the information that
they require to make a planning application. These are called local lists (validation
checklists), and they are lists of the information required for different types of applications.
Paragraph 193 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) makes it clear that
planning authorities should only request supporting information that is relevant, necessary
and material to the application. Paragraph 44 of the National Planning Policy Guidance
(NPPG) requires all planning authorities to redress their validation checklists, consult on
amended checklists, and then adopt the amended checklists every two years.
The Purpose of this Document
The purpose of this document is to provide guidance to applicants and agents on the
validation requirements of planning applications submitted to the CPA. It will:
 Provide greater certainty to applicants about the type and extent of information
required as part of their application at the earliest possible stage
 Enable Surrey County Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee or the CPA to
have all the information it needs to determine applications in a considered and timely
manner
 Minimise the need to request additional information from the applicant at a later stage
thereby making the determination process more efficient
 Ensure greater consistency in registering and validating applications submitted to the
CPA
Please note: The subsequent annexes to this document relate to validation purposes only
and applicants should be aware further information can be requested throughout the
determination of the application.
Invalid Applications
An application for planning permission from Surrey County Council will only be considered
valid where it meets both the National Requirements for validation and the requirements of
the Local Validation List. Where the CPA considers an application to be invalid it will contact
the applicant. After which, should the applicant disagree with the particulars Surrey County
Council are requesting, they are entitled to dispute this requirement and follow the procedure
as set out in Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595 (The Town and Country Planning
Development Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015.
2

Page 102

LOCAL VALIDATION LIST

9

The list of ‘local requirements’ has been structured in the following way:
National Requirements – Compulsory information which must be submitted with every
application.
Annex 1 - Minerals applications for full planning permission (including S73 applications and
change of use) includes mineral exploration, extraction, processing, ancillary operations and
associated development; and proposals involving major surface disposal of mine and quarry
wastes. Where minerals proposal includes restoration by means of landfilling, this element
should be included within the application for minerals development and not waste
development.
Annex 2 - Waste applications for full planning permission (including S73 applications and
change of use) includes disposal, recovery, land raising, recycling, treatment, processing,
storage, transfer.
Annex 3 - County own development includes schools and roads including change of use.
The ‘local requirements’ also includes information requirements relating to Conservation
Areas and Listed Buildings.
The ‘local requirements’ do not apply to Certificates of Lawful Existing/Proposed Use or
Development applications or non-material amendments. Please contact the CPA’s Technical
Support Team on 020 8541 9897 or mwcd@surreycc.gov.uk for further details in respect of
these types of applications.
Planning Portal: Planning applications should be submitted via the Planning Portal but
please note there is a 5mb data limit for each document, therefore some documents will
need to be split to meet the size requirements or a CD / hardcopy should be provided. It
would also be beneficial for larger applications and/or EIA applications to receive one
hardcopy of the entire submission.
Surrey County Council’s Local List of Information Requirements will be regularly monitored
and kept up to date.
Should you have any feedback or questions relating to Surrey County Council’s Local List of
Information Requirements document please contact the CPA’s Technical Support Team on
020 8541 9897 or mwcd@surreycc.gov.uk.

3

Page 103

9

NATIONAL VALIDATION REQUIREMENTS
The following information is compulsory and must be submitted with all applications for full planning permission.
DOCUMENT
Application form

WHEN IS IT REQUIRED
All applications

WHAT IS REQUIRED
A fully completed and original planning application form applicable to the nature of
the development proposed.
The differing types of planning application forms can be found here.

All applications

This should:

Be an appropriate scale (typically 1:1250 or 1:2500)

Scaled to fit A3 or A4 sized paper

Based on an up to date metric or an OS map

Wherever possible show at least two named roads, surrounding buildings and
features

Show a north point

Provide a drawing reference number and date

All the land necessary to carry out the proposed development including land
required for access to the site must be edged red

Any other land owned by the applicant and close to or adjoining the application
site must be edged blue

Other plans

All applications (where relevant)

Plans could include:
 Block plan of the site (e.g. 1:100 or 1:200) showing any site boundaries
 Existing and proposed elevations at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100
 Existing and proposed floor plans at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100
 Existing and proposed sections and/or site levels at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100
 Roof plans at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100

Page 104

The site location
plan

All plans/drawings should:
 Show a north point
 Provide a drawing reference number and date
 Be at an appropriate scale and include a scale bar and calibration scale
 Be printed on the correct sized paper according to the scale
4

The correct fee

All applications (where a fee is necessary)

A fee guide and calculator can be found on the Planning Portal website.
No on-line or cash payments can be accepted by the CPA, accordingly all cheques
should be made payable to Surrey County Council (NB please note that there is no
postal delivery to County Hall on a Saturday or Sunday1).
Journal transfers can be made but only for County Development applications.
Please contact the CPA’s Technical Support Team on 020 8541 9897 or
mwcd@surreycc.gov.uk for further details.

Ownership
All applications
certificates (part
of the
application form)

This should form part of the planning application form.
Certificate A: applicant is the sole owner, no agricultural tenants.

Page 105

Certificate B: applicant is not the sole owner, or there are agricultural tenants, and
the details of all owners/ tenants are known.
Certificate C: applicant is not sole owner and does not know the name and address
of all the owners and/ or agricultural tenants.
Certificate D: applicant is not sole owners and does not know the name and
address of any of the owners and/ or agricultural tenants.
A notice to owners of the application site must be completed and served in
accordance with Article 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.
For the avoidance of doubt, an ‘owner’ is anyone with a freehold interest or leasehold
interest in the land and/or property concerned with an unexpired term of not less than
seven years.

Agricultural
Holding

This certificate is required whether or not
the application site forms part of or includes

All agricultural tenants must be notified prior to the submission of the application.

1

For Section 73 planning applications, the correct fee needs to be received by the County Planning Authority before the planning permission expires therefore care should be taken
to ensure any cheques posted arrive with adequate time to allow for this.

5

9

9

Certificate (part
an agricultural holding
of the
application form)
Design and
Access
Statement

All major development applications2
In designated historic areas 3where:
-the extension of an existing building where
the floorspace created exceeds 100 square
metres
-the erection of a building or buildings
where the cubic content of the development
exceeds 100 cubic metres

The Design and Access Statement should cover both the design principles and
concepts that have been applied to the proposed development and how issues
relating to access to the development have been dealt with. The level of detail
required in a statement will depend on the scale and complexity of the application
and therefore Design and Access Statements should be proportional to the
complexity of the application. Further information on Design and Access Statements
can be found on the Planning Portal here.

Page 106

Applications for development in a
designated area: where additional floorspace of 100m² or more proposed in
relation to buildings.
However, the following applications are
exempt from this requirement:
 For applications relating to engineering or
mining operations
 For applications relating to a material
change in use of the land or buildings
 For applications relating to waste
development
Environmental
Impact
Assessment

2
3

An Environmental Impact Assessment will
be required for the following development
proposals:

For proposals that are ‘EIA development’, applicants should provide an
Environmental Statement (ES) and a Non-Technical Summary (NTS). The ES should
address the County Planning Authority’s information requirements as specified in any
adopted Scoping Opinion (which can be requested under Regulation 13 of the Town

Major development, as referred to in this document, is defined under Article 2 of the Town and County Planning (Development Management Procedure (England) Order 2015
Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites

6

Page 107

 For development of a type listed in
Schedule 1 of the Town & Country
Planning (EIA) Regulations 2017 (as
amended) (please refer to Statutory
Instrument 2017 No.571 The Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017)
 For development of a type listed in
Schedule 2 of the Town & Country
Planning (EIA) Regulations 2017(as
amended) and for which a Screening
Opinion has been adopted by the County
Planning Authority, or a Screening
Direction has been issued by the
Secretary of State, stating that the
proposal is ‘EIA development’ (i.e. is likely
to have significant effects on the
environment).

& Country Planning (EIA) Regulations 2017 (as amended)). The ES must contain all
the information specified in Part 2 of Schedule 4 of the Town and Country Planning
(EIA) Regulations 2017 (as amended) and as much of the information specified in
Part 1 of the same Schedule as can be reasonably provided. A short summary and
conclusion must be provided at the end of each section or chapter, and also
incorporated into the NTS. The ES should set out what significant environmental
impact the proposal may have and identify the measures that will be taken to avoid
or mitigate those impacts.
When an application accompanied by an ES is submitted, details will also need to be
provided of the person(s) who the public can write to in order to obtain a copy of the
ES, and of the charge that will be made for provision of copies of the ES, including
the cost of post and packing. Where appropriate a web-site address should also be
provided where the ES can be viewed, and an address in the locality of the site of
the proposed development should be identified at which the ES can be inspected by
members of the public.

An exception to this is where:
 A Screening Opinion has been adopted by
the County Planning Authority stating that
the proposal is not ‘EIA development’; or
 A Secretary of State Screening Direction
has been issues stating that the
development is not ‘EIA development’.

7

9

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 1 – MINERALS-RELATED DEVELOPMENT
The policy drivers for all the subjects listed below are the Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document and Primary
Aggregates Development Plan Document, relevant Borough or District Local Plans, the National Planning Policy Framework and the National Planning
Policy Guidance. Specific policies or paragraphs of these policy drivers may be detailed within a specific subject below when relevant. This is also true
of the Surrey Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan Document and the Restoration and Enhancement Supplementary Planning Document.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
1.

Planning Statement
Air Quality
Ecology
Landscape, Landscaping and Trees
Restoration and Aftercare
Traffic and Highways
Geological, Land and Soils

CONTENTS
8. Water Environments
9. Heritage and Archaeology
10. Amenity
11. Airports
12. Sustainable Design and Waste Management
13. Statement of Community Involvement

PLANNING STATEMENT

Page 109

SUBJECT
Planning
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED
All planning
applications.
The extent of the
information required
will be site/ planning
application specific –
contact Surrey
County Council
Planning Department
for clarification on
specific applications.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The planning statement should set out the context and
justification for the development, including:
 A site description setting out the physical features of the site
and its surroundings;
 A description of any use, planning designations,
environmental designations or physical constraints i.e.
nearby housing;
 Context and need for the development. I.e. existing demand,
projected future demand, expected annual tonnage for the
proposal, how the proposal would contribute towards the
landbank.
 Information on the geology and topography of the site
identifying where relevant land stability, water table levels,
ground conditions including surface water drainage, and any

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
Development Plan Document 2011
including Surrey Aggregates
Recycling Joint DPD
 Planning Practice Guidance:
determining an application
 Surrey County Council Annual
Monitoring Report (AMR)
 Surrey County Council Local
Aggregate Assessment
 Surrey County Council Aggregates
Monitoring Update

1

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS






Page 110







geological or geomorphological features adjacent to the site.
Topographical information should provide spot heights and
contours for the application site and surrounding area;
Details on boundary treatment should include height, location
and specification of screen bunds and fencing.
Identification of any international, national and local
environmental and planning designations and physical
constraints applicable to the application site and surrounding
land e.g. SPA, SAC, SSSI1, highways, water courses,
housing, Listed Buildings, AONB2, public footpaths, Ancient
Semi-Natural Woodland, Flood Zone(s) etc.
Identification and discussion of National planning policy and
guidance, Development Plan policy, and any other material
considerations applicable to the proposal justifying why
planning permission should be granted
Summaries of any supporting and technical information
submitted as part of the application, including relevant key
development criteria for preferred areas/areas of search
identified in the Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 (Core Strategy
and Primary Aggregates DPDs) and Aggregates Recycling
Joint DPD for Minerals and Waste Plans 2013.
An assessment of the cumulative effect of the proposal in
combination with other existing or permitted development in
the vicinity;
Restoration and aftercare including landfilling: please see
Landfill and Restoration and Aftercare below. A summary of
this can be included in this Statement.

1

SPA= Special Protection Area; SAC=Special Area of Conservation; SSSI=Sites of Special Scientific Interest

2

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
2

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

Details of consultations with the County Planning Authority and
wider community3/ statutory consultees undertaken prior to
submission and to demonstrate that regard has been taken to
ensure that individuals and hard to reach groups are not
discriminated against because they share certain protected
characteristics as set out in the Equality Act 2010.
Proposals may involve a combination of mineral and waste
related development and if this is the case, the planning
statement should address both. The subjects listed below can
be incorporated within the Planning Statement or can be
submitted as individual, supporting documents as appropriate.
Green Belt

Page 111

Where the application
site lies within the
Green Belt and the
proposal would be for
development other
than mineral
extraction and
primary treatment.

Need to demonstrate what factors amount to very special
circumstances to outweigh the potential harm by reason of
inappropriateness and any other harm. Need to demonstrate the
proposal preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does
not conflict with the purposes of including land in Green Belt.
An alternative site assessment may be required to demonstrate
why the proposal cannot be sited beyond the Green Belt. The
alternative site assessment should cross refer to the County
Planning Authority’s Alternative Site Assessment advice note.

 National Planning Policy Framework
(Paras 79-92)
 Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core
Strategy DPD Policy MC3
 The County Planning Authority’s
Alternative Site Assessment advice
note.
 Surrey County Council Annual
Monitoring Report (AMR)
 Surrey County Council Local
Aggregate Assessment
 Surrey County Council Aggregates
Monitoring Update

3

To include parish councils, resident associations and action groups.
3

9

9

2. AIR QUALITY
SUBJECT
Air Quality
Assessment

Page 112

Construction Dust

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

Where development
is to be located within
or adjacent to an Air
Quality Management
Area (AQMA) or
where the
development is likely
to generate significant
vehicle movements
as defined by the
EPUK4- IAQM5
guidance6 (or
subsequent updates)

Assessment of vehicle emission air quality impacts on local
sensitive receptors, with mitigation measures and/ or
compensation measures identified. Traffic pollutants most likely
to have local significance are nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and
suspended particulate matter (PM2.5 and PM10). To be carried
out in accordance with EPUK-IAQM and Defra TG(16) guidance.
To cover impacts from vehicles at the construction phase and
the operational phase whenever the indicative thresholds7 in the
EPUK-IAQM guidance are to be exceeded.

 Where
development is to
be located within
an AQMA
 Where
development
proposal is likely to
generate dust and
human and
ecological
sensitive receptors

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Department for Environment Food,
and Rural Affairs policy guidance
and technical guidance.
 The Environmental Protection UK
(EPUK) and Institute of Air Quality
Management (IAQM) guidance –
Planning for air quality
 Planning Practice Guidance: Air
Quality
 IAQM: Planning for Air Quality

Construction-phase dust impacts should be assessed using a
methodology based on the good-practice approach described in
The Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) “Guidance on
the assessment of dust from demolition and construction”
(version 1.1 or subsequent revisions), to estimate the impacts of
both PM10 and nuisance dust, together, through a single riskbased assessment procedure.
The controls and mitigation that will be applied to avoid adverse
impacts should be stated, based on the same IAQM guidance.

4

 IAQM, Guidance on the Assessment
of Mineral Dust Impacts for Planning
(May 2016 or subsequent revisions)
 IAQM Guidance on the assessment
of dust from demolition and
construction (Version 1.1 or
subsequent revisions).
 Surrey County Council Dust Impact
Assessment guidance note and Dust

Environmental Protection UK
Institute of Air Quality Management
6
“Land Use Planning and Development Control: Planning for Air Quality” ( January 2017) (v1.2)
7
Indicative minimum threshold or HDV flows (AADT) of 25 within/adjacent to AQMA, or 100 elsewhere; LDV flows (AADT) of 100 within/adjacent to AQMA, or
500 elsewhere.
5

4

SUBJECT

Operational Dust

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

are within 350m
from the site or
within 100m from
construction road
route.

Monitoring should be based on the separate IAQM Guidance on
Air Quality Monitoring in the Vicinity of Demolition and
Construction Sites (2012) and additional advice from Surrey
County Council.

Page 113

A dust assessment is
required for any
minerals
developments where
dust emissions are
likely to arise. This
can be expected to
cover the vast
majority of
applications.
The distance criteria
in the IAQM minerals
guidance9 specify
whether the dust
impact assessment
should be a detailed
one or a simple
qualitative statement.

9

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
Management Plans (DMPs)
guidance notes8
 Planning Practice Guidance: Air
quality

An assessment of the impact of dust on surrounding land users
(receptors) is required. The assessment should be based on the
IAQM approach described in Guidance on the Assessment of
Mineral Dust impacts for Planning.
The assessment will need to cover nuisance dust deposition
impacts; if there are sensitive receptors close by (within 1000 m)
then the assessment will also need to cover the impacts of
suspended particulate matter (PM10).
The assessment should state the controls and mitigation that will
be applied to avoid adverse impacts, including where necessary:
appropriate design and layout of the site; management of the
site (e.g. Dust Management Plans); use of appropriate
equipment; appropriate control and mitigation measures; and an
appropriate scheme of on-going dust monitoring.
Applicants should contact SCC to agree the scope and detailed
methodology of the assessment. SCC has produced guidance
for applicants on what it expects to form a suitable and sufficient
dust assessment to support planning applications, the minimum
contents of Dust Management Plans to minimise impacts, and
the minimum contents of reports of dust monitoring results

Section 3 of the Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust impacts for Planning
5

9

9

3. ECOLOGY
SUBJECT
Preliminary
Ecological
Assessment
(PEA)

Page 114
Ecological Impact
Assessment

10

WHEN REQUIRED
Where the
development is
 likely to affect a
designated site
 is in a SSSI
Impact Risk
Zone
 is 0.4ha or
larger
 where the
development is
within 100m of
or is likely to
affect a Priority
Habitat or
Species
Where
 the
development
would affect
natural or seminatural habitats
 require a
protected
species Survey
 for the
demolition or
works in the
roof space of

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) provides up-to-date  Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2010
information on habitats on the application site and links to other
habitats, species present or likely to be, likely impacts, mitigation  Surrey Biodiversity Information
Centre
and enhancement opportunities. For all but the most minor
applications, the PEA should include the results of a search from  Surrey Wildlife Trust
the Surrey Biodiversity Information Centre. If the PEA has
 Chartered Institute of Ecology and
recommendations that further surveys should be carried out, the
Environmental Management
results of these must be included with the submission
 Natural England - Standing advice
documents.
for protected species
 Natural England – SSSI Impact Risk
Zones
 MAGIC website
 Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
(ODPM) Circular 06/2005
“Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation – statutory obligations
Where the PEA identifies the need for habitat and species
and their impact within the planning
surveys, these need to be carried out and assessed in an
system” and the Good Practice
Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) to establish their
Guide
presence/absence, the population levels, likely impacts and
 BS 42020 Biodiversity Code of
scheme of mitigation and compensation. Where mitigation and
practice for planning and
compensation for biodiversity are proposed, these should be set
10
development
out in a Biodiversity Mitigation Plan .
 Planning Practice Guidance: Natural
Environment
 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
 Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2010

This can be the subject of a condition.
6

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

buildings which
may be used by
bats.

4. LANDSCAPE, LANDSCAPING AND TREES
SUBJECT

Page 115

Area of
Outstanding
Natural Beauty
Exceptional
Circumstances
Test

WHEN REQUIRED
For major
development11 within
an Area of
Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB)

An assessment of:
 The need for the development including in terms of any
national considerations; and the impact of permitting it, or
refusing it, upon the local economy
 The cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside
the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some
other way;
 Any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape
and recreational opportunities, and the extent to which that
can be moderated
 The impact of the proposal on the setting of the AONB

 National Planning Policy Framework
(Para 116)
 Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan
2014 – 2019
 High Weald Management Plan 2014 2019
 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Landscape Character Areas for the
AONBs on Surrey Interactive Map

Landscape
Assessment

 Planning
applications that
require an EIA12.
 Planning
Applications that

Assessments may be carried out for developments proposed in
rural or urban landscapes and townscapes. Assessments
should follow best practice guidance provided in ‘Guidelines for
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (Third Edition)’ as
published by the Landscape Institute/IEMA. In all cases the

 The Landscape Institute
www.landscapeinstitute.org
 Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (Third Edition),

11

There is no definition of major for development in the AONB – it is a matter for the decision maker to determine whether a proposed development in the
AONB context is major development.
12
EIA – Environmental Impact Assessment as required under the Environmental Impact Assessment (England) Regulations 2011
7

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

Page 116

are within or visible
from the High
Weald Area of
Outstanding
Natural Beauty or
Surrey Hills Area
of Outstanding
Natural Beauty.
 All planning
applications
outside these
areas where
development could
have an effect on
landscape
features,
treescapes or
historic
landscapes.
 All planning
applications for
development
which could have
an effect on an
existing landscape
scheme

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
approach and scope of the assessment should be proportional
to the scale and nature of the proposed development.
Where the landscape assessment is part of an EIA, it should
fulfil the requirements of a formal Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA).
Applicants should demonstrate how landscape or townscape
character and visual sensitivity has been taken in to account,
and how the development may be integrated in to the landscape
by location, layout and design.
Assessments should be informed by County, District and
Borough landscape and townscape character assessments,
Conservation Area Assessments, landscape or nature
conservation designations, AONB management plans, Listed
Buildings, Historic Parks and Gardens, Scheduled Monuments
or other heritage assets, and existing landscape features.
Photographs, visualisations and photomontages to be provided
as appropriate.
The assessment should help determine whether further details
or mitigation measures in the form of a landscape scheme or
other compensation will be required (potentially see below).

2011
 Landscape Character Assessment
Guidance for England and Scotland
and topic papers
www.naturalengland.org.uk
 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Surrey Historic Landscape
Character Assessment (use the
Surrey Interactive Map and highlight
this layer)
 The High Weald AONB Management
Plan 2015 - 2019
 Surrey Hills Management Plan 2015
– 2019
 Advice can be sought from the
County Landscape Architect

Landscape and visual impact assessments must consider the
impact from a range of heights, ridges, hillsides and valleys
including plans which show the surrounding contours and
topography with a discussion on the impacts.
Landscape
Scheme

All applications where
landscape mitigation,
compensation, or
restoration is

A landscape scheme should show how the proposal reflects the
landscape assessment, and /or is informed by, the existing
features and landscape character both within, and in the vicinity
of the site. A scheme should include written and schematic
8

 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Advice can be sought from the

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED
required.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
plans, providing details of hard and soft landscaping, existing
vegetation to be retained, and arrangements for future
maintenance and long term management *

Page 117

Where relevant it should include landscape/habitat restoration
and enhancement and new landscape features to compensate
for those lost to development.
Where new planting13 is proposed the application should provide
as a minimum, a schedule of plants, noting species, plant or
stock size, and proposed spacing, numbers or planting
densities, notes on cultivation, and timing of planting.
Other information that should be provided may include:
 Proposed finished ground levels or contours; sections
 A soil management strategy where significant earthworks
are required;
 Means of enclosure; fences and boundary treatments
 Protection measures for existing and new planting
 Tree pit size, protection, staking/guying
 Extent and provision of all construction operations,
including site compounds, temporary haul roads or access
points; and Construction Method Statement
 Access and Car parking layouts.
 Services
 Implementation timetables

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
County Landscape Architect
 BS8545: 2014 “Trees: from nursery
to independence in the landscape.
Recommendations”

*A landscape management plan should consist of a plan
showing management compartments for each landscape type or
feature, and a report with descriptions of each landscape type
of feature, management objectives, prescriptions and annual
operations, a matrix indicating timing of annual operations, and
responsibilities and timescales for implementation, monitoring
and review. For larger and more complex applications a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) may be
13

This should be native species of local provenance and that species such as Ash and Elm should be avoided where possible
9

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
required for nature conservation based restoration schemes and
usually for a 25 year period (5 years aftercare plus 20 years
management).

Page 118

Ancient Woodland Where development
is to take place in an
ancient woodland or
within 500m of the
boundary of an
ancient woodland as
shown on the Surrey
Inventory of Ancient
Woodland
‘Aged’ or
‘Veteran’ trees

On site or within
100m

Where new trees are proposed, to ensure planted trees become
successfully established, applicants will be required to organise
and outline suitable post planting maintenance arrangements
that includes regular scheduled watering. In determining the
maintenance details required and submitted, reference will be
made to BS8545: 2014 “Trees: from nursery to independence in
the landscape. Recommendations” annexes G1 and G2.
An impact assessment to be provided. To consist of an appraisal 
of the biodiversity and historic features of the ancient woodland
or veteran tree(s) and an assessment of how they are affected

by the development. This assessment should include ecological
and historic surveys.
Ecological surveys should follow guidance approved by the
Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management
(CIEEM).

The assessment will need to cover direct impacts on the
habitat(s), species and archaeological features, as well as
secondary impacts resulting from changes in air, soil and water
quality, disturbance or fragmentation. The assessment should
state the controls and mitigation that will be applied to avoid
adverse effects. Tree surveys should be in accordance with
guidance in British Standard BS:5837 2012 ‘Trees in relation to
demolition, design and development’.

10













National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (paragraph 118)
Natural England and Forestry
Commission Standing Advice on
Ancient Woodland
Forestry Commission Standing
Advice for Ancient Woodland and
Veteran Trees
Surrey Ancient Woodland Inventory
The Surrey Interactive Map
Surrey Biodiversity Information
Centre
Surrey historic and landscape
character assessments & Historic
Environment Record
The Forestry Commission
Natural England
Woodland Trust
Veteran Trees: A Guide to Good
Management

SUBJECT
Trees and
Arboricultural
Implications

WHEN REQUIRED
All development
proposals where
there are trees,
woodland or
hedgerows (protected
by a tree preservation
order or not) either
on, or adjacent to, the
application site and
which could be
influenced or be
affected by the
development.

Page 119

The full sequence of
events might not be
applicable in all
instances – applicants
are advised to contact
the County Planning
Authority for advice

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
An Arboriculture Impact Assessment including an assessment
that evaluates the direct and indirect effects of the proposal
including mitigation and compensatory measures where
necessary to include a tree survey of trees on or adjacent to the
site. The assessment will take account of the effects of any tree
loss required to implement the development and any potentially
damaging activities proposed in the vicinity of retained trees.
Impact of the proposals access, working space and provision for
the storage of materials should also be taken into account.
A tree constraints plan including:
 A plan showing all existing trees (and/or hedgerows
where considered relevant by an arboriculturalist)
potentially affected by the development (or temporarily
affected) including their crown spread, indicating those to
be retained and those to be felled.
 Information on which trees are to be retained and felled
including details of their height, trunk diameter, species,
age, life expectancy, proposed root protection zone and
an assessment of the condition and amenity value
 Illustrate the calculated and/or adjusted Root Protection
Areas (RPA’s) for each tree.
 Measures for protecting retained trees during site works.
 Where necessary indicate other trees or landscape
features on land adjacent to the development site which
might be affected by the development or might serve as
screening.
 Evaluation of impact of proposed tree losses and
compensatory planting required including number, species,
age/girth, recommended locations and maintenance
schedule.
 Trees protected by a tree preservation order should be
identified and details provided.
A tree protection plan to illustrate all protective measures to
include protective barrier fencing/ ground protection.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Where relevant, the Hedgerows
Regulations 1997
 A tree survey should be carried out
by a suitably qualified and
experienced arboriculturist to British
Standard BS:5837: 2012 ‘Trees in
Relation to Construction –
Recommendations’. Each surveyed
tree will be categorised according to
the cascade chart for tree quality
assessment, Table 1 of the standard.
 NPPG: Tree Preservation Orders
 BS 5837:2012 – Trees in relation to
design, demolition and construction.
Recommendations.
 BS 3998: 2010 – Tree work:
Recommendations
 BS 8545:2014 – Trees: from nursery
to independence in the landscape.
Recommendations.
 Arboricultural Association’s directory
of registered consultants

11

9

9

5.

RESTORATION AND AFTERCARE
SUBJECT

Restoration

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

All mineral proposals
except for those
applications seeking
to vary/ remove a
condition which has
no impact on the final
restoration/ aftercare
of the site

A statement setting out the restoration proposals for the land
following cessation of operations to include:
 An overall restoration strategy, identifying the proposed
afteruse of the site
 Voidspace and total volume and type of fill material (if
required) to restore the application site alongside filling rates
 Phasing of restoration and if it shall be progressive including
phasing plans to demonstrate this
 Information on soil resources, including whether the
importation of additional soils is required and how top soil,
subsoil, overburden and soil making materials are to be
handled and their proposed depths.
 Pre and post settlement contours of the restored area and
its relationship to surrounding land.
 Drainage of the restored area to include grading to promote
natural drainage, surface water catchment, proposed field
drains, ditches, culverts, sumps and watercourses, direction
of flow and site drainage plan and erosion control measures
 Proposals for the removal of buildings, plant, equipment,
roads and hardstandings.
 Proposed cultivation techniques, cropping and grazing
including an assessment of agricultural land classification
 Landscape strategy and planting details.

Page 120

WHEN REQUIRED

Aftercare

All mineral proposals
except for those
applications seeking
to vary/ remove a
condition which has

An outline strategy to include:
 the strategic aims and objectives for the site and identified
land use for the aftercare period
 how the methods used in the restoration and aftercare
12

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(Paras 109 & 118).
 Surrey Minerals Plan Mineral Site
Restoration SPD (2011)

 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
DPD 2011 Policies MC17 MC18
 Good Practice Guide for Handling
Soils’ prepared on behalf of MAFF
 The good quarry website
www.goodquarry.com has
information on soil handling, habitat
creation, geodiversity and afteruses.
 The Mineral Product Association
www.mineralproducts.org

SUBJECT

no impact on the final
restoration/ aftercare
of the site

Enhancement

Page 121

6.

All mineral proposals
except for those
applications seeking
to vary/ remove a
condition which has
no impact on the final
restoration/ aftercare
of the site

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHEN REQUIRED

enable the land to retain its longer term capability
 information on the steps to be taken, who will undertake
them and the period during which they are taken
 details of any hard or soft landscaping
 details of drainage (if required)
 details of an annual programme to be provided no later than
two months prior to the annual Aftercare meeting
 details of annual aftercare meetings

 Surrey Biodiversity Opportunity
Areas Guidance, Surrey Nature
Partnership

Details on what enhancement measures and positive
contribution the site makes to biodiversity can be provided on
other land within the applicant’s control.
Details of interim measures that can take place whilst awaiting
final restoration.

TRAFFIC AND HIGHWAYS
SUBJECT

Construction
Traffic
Management Plan

WHEN REQUIRED
Where it is proposed
to bring large plant
(which may or may
not be classified as
abnormal loads) onto
the site or where the
access (by virtue of
existing land used or
designation) is
considered sensitive.
This is not required
where a proposal
does not involve any

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The plan should include details of:








parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and
visitors
loading and unloading of plant and materials
storage of plant and materials
programme of works including measures for traffic
management, vehicle routing, hours of operation and
design of delivery areas.
provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
specifications for vehicle turning within the site so that
vehicles leave the site in forward gear
Measures for the suppression and control of dust during



Transport Development Planning



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Paras 32 & 56)
 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
DPD 2011 Policy MC14



Surrey Transport Plan LTP3



Surrey County Council’s
Transportation Development Control
Good Practice Guide

13

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED
physical development
/traffic movements.

Traffic Statement

The scale of
development is
anything too small to
require a Transport
Assessment.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

construction
Information on the existing or proposed access arrangements,

including the width of the access shown on a plan giving visibility
splays. If the access is to be altered details should be given of
the proposed width of the altered access and the method of

construction.
The mode of transport should be made clear and if all or some
transportation is by means other than by road, details should be
provided.

Page 122

Should state the likely average and maximum daily vehicle
movements generated by the proposed development; a
breakdown of quantity and type of traffic associated with the
various activities i.e. Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs), Light
Goods Vehicles (LGVs) or cars along with the average and
maximum capacity of the HGVs in tonnes or cubic metres.
Details of how the vehicle movements would be spread over a
typical working day with any peak periods ie 0700 to 0900 hours
specified, and any variations during the course of the
development identified.
A summary of the routes to be used by the application site
vehicles, or alternatively, roads which the applicant may seek to
prohibit site vehicles using, should be provided.
Should address the measures proposed for preventing/
minimising the deposit or spread of mud or waste materials onto
the public highway. Adequate provision for parking,
loading/unloading and manoeuvring of vehicles will be required.
The Transport Statement should also give an indication of the
current level of traffic generation from the site.
Where a public right of way is affected by the proposed
14

Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
DPD 2011 Policy MC14
NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in
decision-taking

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
development, details should be provided.

Transport
Assessment

Page 123

When a development
proposal has
significant14 transport
implications. A TA is
likely to be required
for development:
 generating 30 or
more two-way
vehicle
movements per
hour
 100 plus two-way
vehicle
movements per
day
 any development
proposed in a
location within or
adjacent to an
AQMA.

When a development is EIA development, a Transport
Assessment can be included with the Environmental
Assessment. When this is the case it will, however, need to
consider the environmental impact of the traffic not just the
impact on the highway network.
Should illustrate accessibility to the site by all modes of
transport, and the likely modal split of journeys to and from the
site. Should also give details of proposed measures to improve
access by public transport, walking and cycling, to reduce the
need for parking associated with the proposal and to mitigate
transport impacts.
All submissions should include proposals to reduce the
transportation impact of the development and adequate
mitigation.

 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
DPD 2011 Policy MC14
 Chapter 4 of ‘Guidance on Transport
Assessment’ gives more detail on
preparing a transport assessment,
the framework and information and
type of assessment required.
 Department for Transport Circular
02/13 “The Strategic Road Network
and the Delivery of Sustainable
Development”



NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in
decision-taking

Applicants are
advised to discuss
this matter during preapplication
discussions. If
proposals have an
impact on the
Strategic Road
Network, the
applicant should
discuss the proposal
with the Highways
14

Significant normally means a 10% increase in HGV movement but should be considered on a case-by-case basis.
15

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

Agency.

7. GEOLOGICAL, LAND AND SOILS

Page 124

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

Contaminated
Land Assessment

When contamination
of soil, groundwater,
or from hazardous
soil gas is known or
suspected, on or in
the vicinity of the site,
based on present or
previous uses of the
site or its
surroundings.
Also when there is a
potential risk from
naturally occurring
hazards in the ground
such as arsenic,
radon and methane
/carbon dioxide.

The Applicant should provide proportionate but sufficient site
investigation information (a risk assessment) to assess the
existence or otherwise of contamination, its nature and extent,
and the risks it may pose to whom/what (i.e. all identified
receptors) so that the risks can be assessed and if necessary
reduced to an acceptable level by remediation or mitigation.
The risk assessment should identify the potential sources,
pathways and receptors (‘pollutant linkages’) and evaluate the
risks. This information will enable the County Planning Authority
to determine whether further more detailed investigation is
required, or whether any proposed remediation or mitigation is
satisfactory.
As a minimum, a desktop study, site walkover and initial Tier 1
risk assessment will be required (Phase 1). This may be
sufficient to develop a conceptual model of the source of
contamination, the pathways by which it might reach vulnerable
receptors and options to show how the identified pollutant
linkages can be broken. The study shall be carried out by a
competent and suitably qualified specialist.



 Environment Agency Groundwater
Protection guides (March 2017)


Borough or District Council
Contaminated Land Officer.



Environment Agency Guidance



http://planningguidance.communitie
s.gov.uk/blog/guidance/landaffected-by-contamination/landaffected-by-contaminationguidance/



BS 10175:2011 +A1:2013
Investigation of potentially
contaminated sites. Code of
Practice

Unless this initial assessment clearly demonstrates with
complete confidence that the risk from contamination can be
satisfactorily reduced to an acceptable level and the remedial or
mitigation measures are viable, further site investigations and

Tiers of risk assessment (Phase 2 intrusive ground investigation)
and the development of a mitigation or remediation strategy and
verification plan will be needed before the application can be
16

National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) 2012. Paragraphs 109, 120,
121, and the definition of “Site
Investigation Information” given in
Annex 2, page 56.

CL:AIRE Model Procedures for the
Management of Land
Contamination

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS


determined.
The Applicant is required to ensure that land, after development,
is not capable of being determined as contaminated land under
Part 2A of the EPA 1990.


Early consultation with the CPA and Environment Agency is
recommended to determine likely requirements for submission
with the planning application.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
Approved Document C - Site
preparation and resistance to
contaminates and moisture (2004
Edition incorporating 2010 and 2013
amendments)
National Quality Mark Scheme for
Land Contamination Management
(NQMS)

For EIA development the risk assessments undertaken of land
potentially affected by contamination should inform the
Environmental Impact Assessment.

Page 125

Stability
Assessment

A land/ slope stability
report will be required
when
 the proposal
involves
substantial
engineering works
 there are good
reasons to believe
that the ground is
unstable
 the proposed
development
could affect the
land or adjoining
land15.
This may include the
effects of both natural

A land/ slope stability investigation should be carried out by a
professional qualified engineer and involve site investigations
and a geotechnical appraisal.
A land/ slope stability risk assessment report should be
submitted and should include information on :
 an understanding of the factors influencing stability
 an assessment of whether or not the site is stable and has an
adequate level of protection
 land is capable of supporting the loads to be imposed;
 development will be threatened by unstable slopes on or
adjacent to the site;
 development will initiate slope instability which may threaten
neighbouring land;
 site could be affected by ground movements due to natural
cavities or past, present or future mining activities. Any
remedial or precautionary measures necessary to reduce or

 Planning Policy Guidance: Land
Stability

 National Planning Policy Guidance:
Quarry Slope Stability

15

The County Planning Authority accept that during quarrying operations that quarry slope stability falls within the remit of the Health and Safety Executive
(HSE). However when a quarry site has gone into restoration and aftercare, this remit falls within the scope of the County Planning Authority.
17

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED
and manmade
underground cavities;
unstable slopes and
ground compression.

Agricultural Land
Classification and
Soils

Where proposal
affects the best and
versatile agricultural
land classified as
Grade 1, 2 or 3a and
can also include
applications involving
land filling for the
purposes of
restoration.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

overcome the risk of instability should be put forward.

Information which demonstrates:

Page 126

 The quality of existing agricultural land
 The quality of imported soils/ other waste materials and how
they would improve the land for agricultural purposes
 Measures that would be taken to safeguard the soil qualities
during storage and restoration
 How the agricultural land classification would be protected
or on completion of proposed operation, would be returned
to the same agricultural land grade classification and the
quality off any agricultural land lost and justification for its
loss

 Agricultural Land Classification of
England & Wales 1988
 Natural England Technical
Information Note TIN049
“Agricultural Land Classification:
protecting the best & most versatile
agricultural land”
http://publications.naturalengland.org
.uk/publication/35012
 Good Practice Guide for Handling
Soils (April 2000) prepared on behalf
of MAFF.

8. WATER ENVIRONMENT
SUBJECT
Flood Risk
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
All development
proposals located
within Flood Zones 2
and/or 3.
Where the
development is to be
located within Flood
Zone 1 and the site
area is greater than 1
hectare in size and
where the

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Assessment to establish the impact of the proposed
development on the floodplain and level of risk of all forms of
flooding to and from the development demonstrating
 whether a proposed development is likely to be affected by
current or future flooding from any source
 whether it will increase flood risk elsewhere;
 how these flood risks will be managed now and over the
developments lifetime,
 whether the measures proposed to deal with these effects
and risks are appropriate;
 consideration of climate change
 opportunities to reduce the probability and consequences of
18

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Para 93-108).
 Environment Agency Guidance
“Flood risk assessment for planning
applications”, October 2015
 NPPG: Flood Risk and Coastal
Change
 District and Borough Strategic Flood
Risk Assessments

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED
Environment Agency
or Local Drainage
Engineer has
indicated that there
may be a land
drainage problem.

Page 127

All proposals for new
development
(including minor
development and
changes of use) in an
area within Flood
Zone 1 which has
critical drainage
problems and/ or
where a Surface
Water Management
Plan or equivalent
document is in place
which indicates that
the site may be
subject to drainage
problems; and/ or
where the proposed
development or
change of use to a
more vulnerable class
may be subject to
other sources of
flooding.
Sustainable
Drainage Systems

Required for all major
developments:

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

flooding,
 evidence for the County Planning Authority to apply (if
necessary) the Sequential Test
 mitigation measures and emergency evacuation procedures
necessary.
 whether the development will be safe and pass the
Exception Test, if applicable.
The sequential and exception tests required for a site and for
development within site (i.e. siting vulnerable development
outside the flood plain) can be found on the Environment
Agency webpages “Guidance: flood risk assessment for
planning applications”

An assessment (taking into account different factors including
the layout of the site, the topography and geology)

 Planning Policy Guidance para 051

19

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

(SuDS)

Page 128

 where the
development is
located in Flood
Zone 2 or 3
 where known
drainage problems
exists
 where the
development
includes
impermeable hard
surfacing
 where the
development
involves land
raising activities

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
demonstrating how any surface water generated from the
development will be controlled as near to its source as possible.
A drainage strategy (including FRA where applicable, proposed
drainage layout and calculations) shall be submitted to
demonstrate that the development does not flood or increase
flooding downstream. Sustainable drainage for the site shall be
proposed in accordance with SUDs surface water management
hierarchy of prevention, reduction, source control, site control
and regional control (the accepted hierarchy of surface water
discharge options is infiltration, then attenuation and discharge
to: watercourse, surface water sewer, other sewer).
Evidence shall be provided to demonstrate that the most
sustainable strategy is proposed taking into account flood risk,
site layout, topography, geology, etc). Any assessment should
be accompanied by the Surrey County Council Model Surface
Water Drainage Statement Proforma16.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

 Written Ministerial Statement 201418
 Surrey Advice Note supporting the
provision of a Surface Water
19
Drainage Statement
 Water. People. Places: A guide for
master planning sustainable
drainage into developments20
 Sustainable drainage systems: nonstatutory technical standards 201521

 LASOO Guidance on meeting the
national standards
 The Lead Local Flood Authority

Where the intention is to incorporate infiltration SUDS, their
feasibility shall be demonstrated through approved intrusive
geotechnical surveys to establish infiltration rates, ground water
levels and ground contamination.
Should actual infiltration rates (via intrusive tests) not be readily
available (reason to be stated in drainage strategy), desktop
study demonstrating evidence of likely ground conditions (from
British Geological Survey or other sources) of the site could be
used. In such instance, an alternate strategy shall also be
submitted to demonstrate how the site would drain if infiltration is
16

Can be found on http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice/more-about-flooding/sudsplanning-advice
18
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2014-12-18/HCWS161
19
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/_data/assets.pdf_file/0011/52769/SUDS-Advice-Notes.pdf
20
http://eastsussex.gov.uk.blob.core.windows.net/media/1997/se7-suds-masterplanning_low_res_reduced.pdf
21
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-statutory-technical-standards
20

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

not feasible. House or rubble soakaways are not acceptable.
Should it be proposed to dispose of surface water into a
watercourse, surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system, should be accompanied by evidence that the
rates are being restricted to greenfield values and the system
has adequate capacity downstream and is in a suitable state to
accept the water. Where an application is part of a larger site
which already has planning permission it is essential that the
new proposal does not compromise the drainage scheme
already approved.

Page 129

Any works to be carried out which will affect the flow or storage
of water within, or which place or alter a structure/obstruction
within an ordinary watercourse will require Ordinary
Watercourse Consent from Surrey CC17.
Hydrogeological/
hydrological
report

Applications that:
 Involve significant
ground works,
dewatering,
abstraction; or
 Propose to infill
land

All applications should include:
 details of existing groundwater levels;
 impacts of the development on existing water levels;
 mitigation measures and management of such impacts; and
 for applications within a groundwater source protection zone,
a risk assessment will be required considering the impact on
water quality and resources.

 The EU Water Framework Directive

For applications involving dewatering or abstraction, the
assessment should also include:
 calculations of the extent and volumes of dewatering;
 details of topography and surface drainage, artificial ground,
superficial deposits, landslip deposits, rockhead depth,

 NPPG: Water supply, wastewater
and water quality

 National Planning Policy Framework
(Para 144)
 British Geological Survey
(www.bgs.ac.uk/research/groundwat
er/datainfo/datainformation.html)

 NPPG: Flood Risk and Coastal
Change

17

These can include permanent or temporary structures or works. An ‘ordinary watercourse' is a watercourse that is not part of a main river and includes
rivers, streams, ditches, drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, sewers (other than public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and
passages, through which water flows. Consent within Surrey is issued by the Sustainable Drainage and Consenting Team within Surrey County Council. The
team can provide information on the requirements for consent and the application procedure and is contactable by email on SuDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please
note consent cannot be issued retrospectively. Works affecting designated Main River require consent from the Environment Agency
21

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS








Page 130



bedrock geology and details of any borehole reports
including any information with regard to both licensed and
unlicensed abstractions, where necessary;
details of the natural water table including its depth, source
catchment areas and characteristics;
consideration of the potential impact upon any wetland SSSI;
evidence that third parties will not be affected by the
dewatering, and where there is a potential impact upon public
and private water supplies, water bodies or watercourses
details of mitigating measures must be included in the
application;
details of proposed methods of dewatering and proposed
methods of water disposal;
proposed measures to control potential pollution to protect
ground and surface water; and
any necessary drainage and flood control measures; and
proposed monitoring measures, including any requirements
for the provision of settlement lagoons; the way in which
surface water is to be disposed of; the avoidance of impairing
drainage from adjoining areas; and the prevention of material
entering open watercourses.

Monitoring of the existing water regime for at least 12 months
prior to submission of the application may be necessary in order
to ensure that surface and groundwater can be safeguarded.

22

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 British Hydrological Society
 Environment Agency: Groundwater
protection: principles and practice
GP3

9. HERITAGE AND ARCHAEOLOGY
SUBJECT
Heritage Assets

Archaeology

WHEN REQUIRED
Where Heritage
Assets22 or features
may be affected by
the proposal.

Page 131

Where archaeological
sites or features may
be affected by the
proposal.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A Heritage Statement setting out the significance of all Heritage
Assets affected by a proposed development. The statement
should be comprehensive, but proportionate to the level of
potential harm posed by the development proposal. Loss of, or
damage to, any Heritage Asset will need to be justified within a
wider context of enhanced understanding of the asset, or an
mitigation of greater benefit to the preservation and continued
sustainability of heritage features elsewhere within the
development.
An archaeological assessment is required when a Heritage
Statement or pre-application discussion indicates that a Heritage
Asset with an Archaeological Interest23 is likely to be present on
site and/or affected by a development proposal. An assessment
should examine the nature and significance of the
archaeological resources of the site, in comparison with the
nature of the development proposal, and detail the likely
implications for the future survival and management of the
resource that arise.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Surrey County Council Heritage
Conservation Team Officer
 Surrey Historic Environment Record
 Schedule of Ancient Monuments
 Historic England Registered Parks
and Gardens
 Historic England Listed Buildings
Register
 Historic England Good Practice
Advice notes: GPA1, GPA2 and
GPA3
 Surrey Historic Landscape
Characterisation Assessment
 NPPG: Conserving and enhancing
the historic environment

22

A Heritage Asset would be considered to be a nationally or locally Listed Building, Nationally Registered or locally listed Park or Garden, Registered
Battlefield, Conservation Area, Historic Landscape and/or associated natural heritage features, or undesignated features or structures of demonstrable
historic or cultural heritage interest.
23

An asset of Archaeological Interest is considered to be a Scheduled Monument, a County Site of Archaeological Importance, an Area of High
Archaeological Potential, or development application area exceeding 0.4 hectares in size, where it is reasonably considered that previously undocumented
archaeological remains might survive.
23

9

9

10. AMENITY
SUBJECT
Lighting
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
All minerals
developments
involving any external
lighting, including
temporary,
construction and
security lighting.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
An assessment providing full details of any external lighting
including details of:
 The number, type, location and height of any lighting
including those on columns and/ or buildings
 The intensity of the installation (in Lux levels) and spill
patterns shown on a plan
 The proposed hours of use.
 Potential for impacts on ecological features
 Proposed mitigation measures
 Measures for unforeseen impacts and monitoring

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Department for Communities and
Local Government’s Lighting in the
Countryside 1997.
 Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Light (2011), Institute of
Lighting Professionals
 Bats and Lighting in the UK (2009),
the Bat Conservation Society

Page 132

 An appropriately qualified Lighting
Engineer
 NPPG: Light pollution
Noise

Where:
 the development is
likely to affect
sensitive land uses
such as dwelling,
school, or carehome
 where the
development
involves the use of
mobile site plant,
processing plant or
machinery such as
a crusher,
screener,
conveyor, or
trammel

A noise assessment outlining the existing noise climate
(established normally by measurement) and the impact of the
proposed development assessment from the noise viewpoint
using prediction and measurement techniques as appropriate for
any potential noise sensitive development in the locality. If
mitigation measures are proposed the impact of noise on
sensitive locations should be assessed following implementation
of the proposed mitigation measures.
For any noise sensitive development, existing or consented,
potentially affected by the minerals development, a noise
assessment should be prepared by a competent person that
defines the baseline sound environment, following appropriate
guidance, usually established through measurement, and the
impact of the proposed development using prediction and
measurement techniques as appropriate. Where criteria in
appropriate guidance may be exceeded, mitigation measures
24

 A qualified acoustic specialist.
 Your relevant Borough or District
Council Environmental Health
Officer.
 “Guidelines for Noise Control –
Minerals and Waste Disposal”, 1994
Surrey County Council
 NPPG: Noise
 NPPG: Minerals
 BS 4142:2014 “Methods for rating
and assessing industrial and

SUBJECT

Page 133
High Pressure
Pipeline Search24

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

 where the
development
involves
engineering
activities such as
earth moving,
bund creation or
soil stripping
 where the
development is
likely to affect a
designated
(international,
national or local)
Nature
Conservation or
Geological site
 where the
development is to
be located within
the Surrey Hills
AONB and Area of
Great Landscape
Value

should be provided such that the criteria are not exceeded.

For all developments
involving excavation
or below ground
works. There are
special requirements
for safe working in
close proximity to a
high pressure pipeline

Evidence to show that a high pressure pipeline search has been
carried out.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
commercial sound”
 BS 5228-1:2009+A1:2014 “Code of
practice for noise and vibration
control on construction and open
sites. Noise”

 Linesearch before u dig

 National Grid

24

Pipeline operators do not have statutory powers although may have legal agreements in place on land and clearly this is a matter that has significant health
and safety implications.
25

9

9

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

and proposed works
require approval from
a pipeline operator
prior to commencing.
Open Space
Assessment
including Rights
of Way

Any development
proposals that would
result in the loss of
open space, or have
implications for Public
Rights of Way.

An assessment of any open space or Public Rights of Way lost,
directly or indirectly affected by a proposed development
including any measures to replace or compensate for such
impacts and identification of any opportunities to improve
facilities for walkers, cyclists, horse riders. This includes any
right of way which is outside a site boundary

 Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core
Strategy DPD Policy MC14
 Surrey County Council’s Countryside
Access Team.
 Rights of Way shown on Surrey’s
Interactive Map

Page 134

 Rights of Way Improvement Plan
(ROWIP)
 NPPG: Open space, sports and
recreational facilities, public rights of
way and local green space

11. AIRPORT SAFEGUARDING
SUBJECT
Airport
Safeguarding
Statement

25

WHEN REQUIRED
All applications within
the consultation area
of civil and military
aerodromes and
airstrips25 and where:
 The proposal
involves landfilling
 The development

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The statement should show how the development will not
constitute a hazard to air traffic, with or without mitigation
proposed.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Annex 2 to the Department for
Transport/ODPM Circular 1/2003
 Safeguarding Aerodromes, Technical
Sites and Military Explosive Storage
Areas’ ‘Potential Bird Hazards from
Sustainable Urban Drainage
Schemes (SUDS) August 2006.

including Heathrow, Gatwick, Biggin Hill, Farnborough, Fairoaks, Northolt, Odiham
26

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

involves features
attractive to
hazardous birds
such as: amenity
landscaping and
water features,
this includes the
enhancement of
existing wet areas
or water courses
and buildings with
ledges, gantries
and flat roofs

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Guidance on civil aviation (CAA)
planning consultation requirements,
August 2012
 The Airport Operators Association
(AOA) the General Aviation
Awareness Council safeguarding of
Aerodromes Advice Notes: Advice
Note 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5

Page 135

Where the proposal
includes lighting
which may impact on
airport safety (i.e.
dazzling) Where a
proposal involves the
venting and flaring of
gas.
Applicants are
advised to discuss
non-official
safeguarding areas
with planning officers

12. SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND WASTE MANAGEMENT
SUBJECT
Landfill and
Landraising

WHEN REQUIRED
Any proposal
involving landfilling

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Statement on the proposed capacity, amount of material
involved, rates of fill, type and source of material, expected

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Landfill (England and Wales)
Regulations 2002.

27

9

9

SUBJECT
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

including reworking or
reclamation of former
mineral sites.

levels of settlement including justification thereof, and proposed
methods of compaction (pre and post settlement levels).
Demonstration that the amount of fill proposed is the minimum
requisite required.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy for Waste
2014
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policies
WD7, WD8; and DC3
 NPPG: Waste

Sustainable
Design and
Construction
Statement

Major developments26
(Over 1000sqm)

Statement detailing how sustainable forms of design/
construction have been incorporated into the new development
and any proposed renewable energy technologies.

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 policy CW1
and DC3
 NPPG: Climate Change

Page 136

13. STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
SUBJECT
Statement of
Community
Involvement

WHEN REQUIRED
For any proposals
with substantial
community interest.
Any proposal where
this is a requirement
under Section 61 (w)
of the Localism Act
2011 when enacted
and required by the
Town and County
Planning

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A Statement explaining how the applicant has complied with the
pre-application engagement recommendation made in Surrey
County Council’s Statement of Community involvement.
Developers are encouraged to inform the community of their
plans to ensure that a link is established at an early stage in the
process.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Surrey County Council’s Statement
of Community Involvement.
 Section 61W of the Localism Act
2011 (when enacted)
 The Local Government Association,
British Property Federation & Others.
 The Ten Commitments to Effective
Pre-application engagement

26

As defined in the General Development Management Procedure 2015 www.legistlation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made however there isn’t a definition
of major for use in the AONB – it is a matter for the decision maker to determine whether a proposed development in the AONB context is major
development.
28

 NPPG: Before submitting an
application

(Development
Management
Procedure) (England)
Order 2015
subsequent
regulations.

Page 137
29

9

9

APPENDIX 1:
List of Planning Departments of Local Borough and District Councils in Surrey












Elmbridge
Epsom and Ewell
Guildford
Mole Valley
Reigate and Banstead
Runnymede
Spelthorne
Surrey Heath
Tandridge
Waverley
Woking

Page 138

APPENDIX 2:
Other Statutory Consultees













Natural England
Historic England
Highways England
Environment Agency
Lead Local Flood Authority
County Highway Authority
Water or sewage undertaker(s)
Surrey Hills AONB Office
High Weald AONB Office
The Health and Safety Executive
The Garden History Society
Parish Councils

30

ANNEX 2 – WASTE-RELATED DEVELOPMENT
The policy drivers for all the subjects listed below are the Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Core Strategy, relevant Borough or District Local Plans, the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, National Planning Policy for Waste 2014, Waste Management Plan for England 2013 and the National Planning
Policy Practice Guidance. Specific policies or paragraphs of these policy drivers may be detailed within a specific subject below when relevant. This is
also true of the Surrey Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan Document 2013.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
1.

Planning Statement
Air Quality
Ecology
Landscape, Landscaping and Trees
Restoration and Aftercare
Traffic and Highways
Geological, Land and Soils

CONTENTS
8. Water Environments
9. Heritage and Archaeology
10. Amenity
11. Airports
12. Sustainable Design and Waste Management
13. Statement of Community Involvement

PLANNING STATEMENT

Page 139

SUBJECT
Planning
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

All planning
applications. The
extent of the
information required
will be site/ planning
application specific –
contact Surrey County
Council Planning
Department for
clarification on
specific applications.

The planning statement should set out the context and
justification for the development, including:
 A site description setting out the physical features of the site
and its surroundings;
 A description of any use, planning designations or physical
constraints i.e. nearby housing;
 Context and need for the development. i.e. existing demand,
projected future demand, expected throughput for the
proposal and capacity, how the proposal would contribute
towards identified need, predicted need and the waste
hierarchy Information on the geology and topography of the
site identifying where relevant land stability, water table
levels, ground conditions including surface water drainage,
and any geological or geomorphological features adjacent to
the site. Topographical information should provide spot

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008
 Surrey Aggregates Recycling Joint
DPD
 Planning Practice Guidance:
determining an application
 Waste Management Plan for
England 2013
 EU Waste Framework Directive
2008/98/EC
 The Environment Agency
 Department for Food, Environment

1

9

9









Page 140





heights and contours for the application site and surrounding
area;
Information on capacity/ throughout of the proposal
Details on boundary treatment should include height, location
and specification of screen bunds and fencing.
Identification of any international, national and local
environmental and planning designations and physical
constraints applicable to the application site and surrounding
land e.g. SPA, SAC, SSSI1, highways, water courses,
housing, Listed Buildings, AONB2, public footpaths, Ancient
Semi-Natural Woodland, Flood Zone(s) etc.
Identification and discussion of National planning guidance,
Development Plan policy, and any other material
considerations applicable to the proposal justifying why
planning permission should be granted .
Summaries of any supporting and technical information
submitted as part of the application, including relevant key
development criteria for preferred areas/areas of search
identified in the Surrey Waste Plan 2008 and Aggregates
Recycling Joint DPD for Minerals and Waste Plans 2013.
An assessment of the cumulative effect of the proposal in
combination with other existing or permitted development in
the vicinity.
Where the proposal includes landfilling and landraising
proposals should include the volume of imported material by
origin and type (the total annual rate where possible) and void
space capacity in metres cubed (m³).

Details of consultations with the County Planning Authority and
wider community3/ statutory consultees undertaken prior to
submission and to demonstrate that regard has been taken to
1

SPA= Special Protection Area; SAC=Special Area of Conservation; SSSI=Sites of Special Scientific Interest

2

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

3

To include parish councils, resident associations and action groups.
2

and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)
 Surrey County Council Annual
Monitoring Report (AMR)
 Surrey County Council Local
Aggregate Assessment
 Surrey County Council Aggregates
Monitoring Update

ensure that individuals and hard to reach groups are not
discriminated against because they share certain protected
characteristics as set out in the Equality Act 2010.
Proposals may involve a combination of mineral and waste
related development and if this is the case, the planning
statement should address both. The subjects listed below can
be incorporated within the Planning Statement or can be
submitted as individual, supporting documents as appropriate.
Green Belt

Where the application
site lies within the
Green Belt and the
proposal would be for
development other
than mineral
extraction and primary
treatment

Need to demonstrate what factors amount to very special
circumstances to clearly outweigh the potential harm by reason
of inappropriateness and any other harm. Need to demonstrate
the proposal minimises or limits the impact on openness of the
Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of including
land in Green Belt.

Page 141

An alternative site assessment may be required to demonstrate
why the proposal cannot be sited beyond the Green Belt. The
alternative site assessment should cross refer to the County
Planning Authority’s Alternative Site Assessment advice note.

 National Planning Policy Framework
(Paras 79-92)
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy CW6
 Surrey Aggregates Recycling Joint
DPD
 Surrey County Council Annual
Monitoring Report (AMR)
 Surrey County Council Local
Aggregate Assessment
 Surrey County Council Aggregates
Monitoring Update
 The County Planning Authority’s
Alternative Site Assessment advice
note to be provided upon request.

2.

AIR QUALITY
SUBJECT

Air Quality
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

Where development
is to be located within
or adjacent to an Air
Quality Management
Area (AQMA) or

Assessment of vehicle emission air quality impacts on local
sensitive receptors, with mitigation measures and/ or
compensation measures identified. Traffic pollutants most likely
to have local significance are nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and
suspended particulate matter (PM2.5 and PM10). To be carried

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Department for Environment Food,
and Rural Affairs policy guidance and
technical guidance.
 The Environment Agency guidance.

3

9

9

Construction Dust

where the
development is likely
to generate significant
vehicle movements
as defined by the
EPUK4- IAQM5
guidance6 or revision
or subsequent
updates

out in accordance with EPUK-IAQM and Defra TG(16) guidance.
To cover impacts from vehicles at the construction phase and
the operational phase whenever the indicative thresholds7 in the
EPUK-IAQM guidance are to be exceeded.

 Where
development is to
be located within
an AQMA;

Construction-phase dust impacts should be assessed using a
methodology based on the good-practice approach described in
The Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) “Guidance on
the assessment of dust from demolition and construction”
(version 1.1 or subsequent revisions), to estimate the impacts of
both PM10 and nuisance dust, together, through a single riskbased assessment procedure.

Page 142

 Where
development
proposal is likely to
generate dust and
sensitive receptors
are within 350m
from the site or
within 100m from
construction road
route.

 The Environmental Protection UK
(EPUK) and Institute of Air Quality
Management (IAQM) guidance
 Planning Practice Guidance: Air
quality

The controls and mitigation that will be applied to avoid adverse
impacts should be stated, based on the same IAQM guidance.
Monitoring should be based on the separate IAQM Guidance on
Air Quality Monitoring in the Vicinity of Demolition and
Construction Sites (2012) and additional advice from Surrey
County Council.

4

 IAQM Guidance on the assessment of
dust from demolition and construction
(2014 Version 1.1 or subsequent
revisions).
 Surrey County Council Dust Impact
Assessment guidance note and Dust
Management Plans (DMPs) guidance
notes8
 Planning Practice Guidance: Air
quality
 IAQM: Planning for Air Quality

Environmental Protection UK
Institute of Air Quality Management
6
“Land Use Planning and Development Control: Planning for Air Quality” (January 2017)(v1.2) http://www.iaqm.co.uk/text/guidance/air-quality-planningguidance.pdf
7
Indicative minimum threshold or HDV flows (AADT) of 25 within/adjacent to AQMA, or 100 elsewhere; LDV flows (AADT) of 100 within/adjacent to AQMA, or
500 elsewhere.
8
Need to add weblink for this
5

4

Operational Dust

Page 143
Odour

A dust assessment is
required for any
waste developments
where dust emissions
are likely to arise.
This can be expected
to cover the
applications involving
screening, crushing,
grading, landraisng,
landfilling and
construction. The
distance criteria in the
IAQM minerals
guidance specify
whether the dust
impact assessment
should be a detailed
one or a simple
qualitative statement.

An assessment of the impact of dust on surrounding land users
(receptors) is required. The assessment should be based on the
IAQM approach described in “Guidance on the Assessment of
Mineral Dust impacts for Planning”9.

For proposals
involving putrescible
waste and
composting within
250m of sensitive
receptors e.g.
housing, schools,
retirement facilities
etc.

An assessment of the impact of odour on surrounding sensitive
receptors based on the accepted source-pathway-receptor
conceptual model including:
 existing baseline odour conditions (also including
complaints history)
 the location of receptors and their relative sensitivities to
odour
 details of the proposed activities and materials involved
(including quantities, durations, methods of handling and
storage etc.) and the resulting potential for generating
odours including fugitive, diffuse, and point sources where

The assessment will need to cover nuisance dust deposition
impacts; if there are sensitive receptors close by (within 1000 m)
then the assessment will also need to cover the impacts of
suspended particulate matter (PM10).

 IAQM, Guidance on the Assessment
of Mineral Dust Impacts for Planning
(May 2016 v1.1 or subsequent
revisions)
 Surrey County Council Dust Impact
Assessment Guidance note and Dust
Impact Management Guidance note
 Planning Practice Guidance: Air
quality

The assessment should state the controls and mitigation that will
be applied to avoid adverse impacts, including where necessary:
appropriate design and layout of the site; management of the
site (e.g. Dust Management Plans); use of appropriate
equipment; appropriate control and mitigation measures; and an
appropriate scheme of on-going dust monitoring.
Applicants should contact SCC to agree the scope and detailed
methodology of the assessment. SCC has produced guidance
for applicants on what it expects to form a suitable and sufficient
dust assessment to support planning applications, the minimum
contents of Dust Management Plans to minimise impacts, and
the minimum contents of reports of dust monitoring results


Guidance on the assessment of
odour for planning, Institute of Air
Quality Management (IAQM), 2014



Odour Guidance for Local Authorities
DEFRA March 2010



Good Practice and Regulatory
Guidance on Composting and Odour
Control for Local Authorities, DEFRA
March 2009

9

This guidance applies to the operational phases of mineral development however it is acknowledged that some waste site share some common features
with mineral activities and also construction activities.
5

9

9

Where the proposal is
likely to impact upon
sensitive receptors by
`way of odour.




Page 144





relevant
details of control/mitigation measures proposed (including
management and engineering controls)
a prediction of the likely odour impact from the proposed
activity at relevant sensitive receptors based on the FIDOL
factors (Frequency, Intensity, Duration, Offensiveness,
Location/ Sensitivity) and taking into account the following:
 the likely magnitude of odour emissions (following
implementation of proposed control/mitigation measures
 the effects of dispersion and dilution afforded by the
pathway to the receptors and the resulting magnitude of
odour that could result
 the meteorological characteristics at the site (particularly
wind direction/speed) and the likely frequency of odour
episodes that could result
 the potential cumulative odour effects with any other
odours
where odour effects are assessed as significant appropriate
mitigation and control measures that would allow the
proposal to proceed without causing significant loss of
amenity
the residual odour impacts and their effects

In accordance with the IAQM guidance on assessment of odour
for planning, the applicant should justify the methodology used to
make the prediction and that the approach they have used is of a
depth and rigour consistent with the likely risk of adverse effects
from odour. Likely methodologies include a simple qualitative
(e.g. risk-matrix based), a semi-quantitative (e.g. radius of effect
calculations) or a fully quantitative assessment (dispersion
modelling).
The assessment should also describe the controls and
mitigation that will be applied to avoid adverse impacts, including
where necessary appropriate design and layout of the site,
management of the site e.g. Odour Management Plans, use of
appropriate equipment etc.
6



Odour Management Plans for Waste
Handling Facilities Environment
Agency November 2010

 Horizontal Guidance 4: Odour
Management – How to Comply with
your Environmental Permit
Environment Agency March 2011

Bio-Aerosols

Required for the
operational phase of
any development
where all of the
following apply:

Page 145

Where the proposal
involves the
management of
putrescible waste
or has the potential to
suspend biologicallyactive particles in the
air and there are
sensitive receptors to
within 250m from the
site boundaries e.g.
such activities
include, but are not
necessarily limited to
composting facilities,
anaerobic digestion,
chipping or shredding
activities, waste
transfer stations,
materials recycling
facilities, active faces
of landfill sites etc.

An assessment of the impact of bio-aerosols is required to
predict whether they can and will be maintained no higher than
acceptable levels for sensitive receptors.
The assessment is to be based upon a source-pathway-receptor
approach having regard to relevant publications on bio-aerosols
risk assessment e.g. from Defra, the Institute of Occupational
Medicine, Cranfield University and the Environment Agency.



Bioaerosol Emission from Waste
Composting and the Potential for
Workers’ Exposure Health and Safety
Executive 2010



Guidance on the evaluation of
Bioaerosol Risk Assessment for
Composting Facilities, Cranfield
University, 2009

7

9

9

Other pollutants

Required for the
operational phase
where a proposal
includes:

An assessment of the impact of other pollutants not specifically
covered above in relation to surrounding sensitive receptors
using suitable methodology and significance descriptors. The
assessment should state the controls and mitigation that will be
applied to avoid adverse impacts.






Page 146

energy from waste
combustion
bio-mass boilers
combined heat and
power (CHP)
schemes
incorporating a
biomass steam
boiler ≥50 kWth
 Other CHPs and
centralised boilers
≥450kWth gas
boiler or 30kw CHP

3.

ECOLOGY
SUBJECT

Preliminary
Ecological
Assessment
(PEA)

WHEN
REQUIRED
Where the
development is
 likely to affect a
designated site
 is in a SSSI
Impact Risk
Zone
 is 0.4ha or
larger
 where the
development is
within 100m of
or is likely to

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) provides up-to-date  Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2010
information on habitats on the application site and links to other
habitats, species present or likely to be, likely impacts, mitigation  Surrey Biodiversity Information
Centre
and enhancement opportunities. For all but the most minor
applications, the PEA should include the results of a search from  Surrey Wildlife Trust
the Surrey Biodiversity Information Centre. If the PEA has
 Chartered Institute of Ecology and
recommendations that further surveys should be carried out, the
Environmental Management
results of these must be included with the submission
 Natural England - Standing advice for
documents.
protected species
 Natural England – SSSI Impact Risk
Zones
8

affect a Priority
Habitat or
Species
Ecological Impact
Assessment

Page 147
4.

Where
 the
development
would affect
natural or seminatural habitats
 require a
protected
species Survey
 for the
demolition or
works in the
roof space of
buildings which
may be used by
bats.

Where the PEA identifies the need for habitat and species
surveys, these need to be carried out and assessed in an
Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) to establish their
presence/absence, the population levels, likely impacts and
scheme of mitigation and compensation. Where mitigation and
compensation for biodiversity are proposed, these should be set
out in a Biodiversity Mitigation Plan10.

 MAGIC website
 Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
(ODPM) Circular 06/2005
“Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation – statutory obligations
and their impact within the planning
system” and the Good Practice Guide
 BS 42020 Biodiversity Code of
practice for planning and development
 Planning Practice Guidance: Natural
Environment
 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
 Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2010

LANDSCAPE, LANDSCAPING AND TREES
SUBJECT

Area of
Outstanding
Natural Beauty
Exceptional
Circumstances
Test

WHEN REQUIRED
For major
development11 within
an Area of
Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB)

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
An assessment of:
 The need for the development including in terms of any
national considerations; and the impact of permitting it, or
refusing it, upon the local economy
 The cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside
the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some
other way;

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(Para 116)
 Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan
2014 – 2019
 High Weald Management Plan 2014 2019

10

This can be the subject of a condition.
There is no definition of major for development in the AONB – it is a matter for the decision maker to determine whether a proposed development in the
AONB context is major development.
11

9

9

9

 Any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape
and recreational opportunities, and the extent to which that
can be moderated
 The impact of the proposal on the setting of the AONB

Landscape
Assessment

Planning applications
that require an EIA12

Page 148

Planning Applications
that are within or
visible from the High
Weald Area of
Outstanding Natural
Beauty or Surrey Hills
Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty.
All planning
applications outside
these areas where
development could
have an effect on
landscape features,
treescapes or historic
landscapes.
All planning
applications for
development which
could have an effect
on an existing
landscape scheme

Assessments may be carried out for developments proposed in
rural or urban landscapes and townscapes. Assessments
should follow best practice guidance provided in ‘Guidelines for
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (Third Edition)’ as
published by the Landscape Institute/IEMA. In all cases the
approach and scope of the assessment should be proportional
to the scale and nature of the proposed development.
Where the landscape assessment is part of an EIA, it should
fulfil the requirements of a formal Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA).
Applicants should demonstrate how landscape or townscape
character and visual sensitivity has been taken in to account,
and how the development may be integrated in to the landscape
by location, layout and design.
Assessments should be informed by County, District and
Borough landscape and townscape character assessments,
Conservation Area Assessments, landscape or nature
conservation designations, AONB management plans, Listed
Buildings, Historic Parks and Gardens, Scheduled Monuments
or other heritage assets, and existing landscape features.

 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Landscape Character Areas for the
AONBs on Surrey Interactive Map
 The Landscape Institute
www.landscapeinstitute.org
 Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (Third Edition),
2011
 Landscape Character Assessment
Guidance for England and Scotland
and topic papers
www.naturalengland.org.uk
 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Surrey Surrey Historic Landscape
Character Assessment (use the
Surrey Interactive Map and highlight
this layer)
 The High Weald AONB Management
Plan 2015 - 2019
 Surrey Hills Management Plan 2015
– 2019
 Advice can be sought from the
County Landscape Architect

Photographs, visualisations and photomontages to be provided
as appropriate.
The assessment should help determine whether further details

12

EIA – Environmental Impact Assessment as required under the Environmental Impact Assessment (England) Regulations 2011
10

or mitigation measures in the form of a landscape scheme or
other compensation will be required (potentially see below).
Landscape and visual impact assessments must consider the
impact from a range of heights, ridges, hillsides and valleys
including plans which show the surrounding contours and
topography with a discussion on the impacts.
Landscape
Scheme

All applications where
landscape mitigation,
compensation, or
restoration is
required.

A landscape scheme should show how the proposal reflects the
landscape assessment, and /or is informed by, the existing
features and landscape character both within, and in the vicinity
of the site. A scheme should include written and schematic
plans, providing details of hard and soft landscaping, existing
vegetation to be retained, and arrangements for future
maintenance and long term management *

 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Advice can be sought from the
County Landscape Architect
 BS8545: 2014 “Trees: from nursery to
independence in the landscape.
Recommendations”

Page 149

Where relevant it should include landscape/habitat restoration
and enhancement and new landscape features to compensate
for those lost to development.
Where new planting13 is proposed the application should provide
as a minimum, a schedule of plants, noting species, plant or
stock size, and proposed spacing, numbers or planting
densities, notes on cultivation, and timing of planting.
Other information that should be provided may include:
 Proposed finished ground levels or contours; sections
 A soil management strategy where significant earthworks
are required;
 Means of enclosure; fences and boundary treatments
 Protection measures for existing and new planting
 Tree pit size, protection, staking/guying
 Extent and provision of all construction operations,
including site compounds, temporary haul roads or
access points; and Construction Method Statement
 Access and Car parking layouts.
13

This should be native species of local provenance and that species such as Ash and Elm should be avoided where possible
11

9

9




Services
Implementation timetables

*A landscape management plan should consist of a plan
showing management compartments for each landscape type or
feature, and a report with descriptions of each landscape type
of feature, management objectives, prescriptions and annual
operations, a matrix indicating timing of annual operations, and
responsibilities and timescales for implementation, monitoring
and review. For larger and more complex applications a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) may be
required for nature conservation based restoration schemes and
usually for a 25 year period (5 years aftercare plus 20 years
management).

Page 150

Where new trees are proposed, to ensure planted trees become
successfully established, applicants will be required to organise
and outline suitable post planting maintenance arrangements
that includes regular scheduled watering. In determining the
maintenance details required and submitted, reference will be
made to BS8545: 2014 “Trees: from nursery to independence in
the landscape. Recommendations” annexes G1 and G2.
Ancient Woodland Where development
is to take place in an
ancient woodland or
within 500m of the
boundary of an
ancient woodland as
shown on the Surrey
Inventory of Ancient
Woodland

An impact assessment to be provided. To consist of an appraisal 
of the biodiversity and historic features of the ancient woodland
or veteran tree(s) and an assessment of how they are affected

by the development. This assessment should include ecological
and historic surveys.

‘Aged’ or
‘Veteran’ trees

The assessment will need to cover direct impacts on the
habitat(s), species and archaeological features, as well as
secondary impacts resulting from changes in air, soil and water
quality, disturbance or fragmentation. The assessment should

On site or within
100m

Ecological surveys should follow guidance approved by the
Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management
(CIEEM).

12








National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (paragraph 118)
Natural England and Forestry
Commission Standing Advice for
Ancient Woodland and Veteran Trees
Forestry Commission Standing
Advice for Ancient Woodland and
Veteran Trees
Surrey Ancient Woodland Inventory
The Surrey Interactive Map
Surrey Biodiversity Information Centre
Surrey historic and landscape
character assessments & Historic

state the controls and mitigation, including a 250m buffer zone
between development and the edge of ancient woodland and
veteran trees that will be applied to avoid adverse effects. Tree
surveys should be in accordance with guidance in British
Standard BS 5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction- Recommendations’.
Trees and
arboricultural
implications

Page 151

All development
proposals where
there are trees,
woodland or
hedgerows (protected
by a tree preservation
order or not) either
on, or adjacent to, the
application site and
which could be
influenced or be
affected by the
development.
The full sequence of
events might not be
applicable in all
instances – applicants
are advised to contact
the County Planning
Authority for advice

An Arboriculture Impact Assessment including an assessment
that evaluates the direct and indirect effects of the proposal
including mitigation and compensatory measures where
necessary to include a tree survey of trees on or adjacent to the
site. The assessment will take account of the effects of any tree
loss required to implement the development and any potentially
damaging activities proposed in the vicinity of retained trees.
Impact of the proposals access, working space and provision for
the storage of materials should also be taken into account.
A tree constraints plan including:
 A plan showing all existing trees (and/or hedgerows
where considered relevant by an arboriculturalist)
potentially affected by the development (or temporarily
affected) including their crown spread, indicating those to
be retained and those to be felled.
 Information on which trees are to be retained and felled
including details of their height, trunk diameter, species,
age, life expectancy, proposed root protection zone and
an assessment of the condition and amenity value
 Illustrate the calculated and/or adjusted Root Protection
Areas (RPA’s) for each tree.
 Measures for protecting retained trees during site works.
 Where necessary indicate other trees or landscape
features on land adjacent to the development site which
might be affected by the development or might serve as
screening.
 Evaluation of impact of proposed tree losses and
compensatory planting required including number, species,
age/girth, recommended locations and maintenance
schedule.






Environment Record
The Forestry Commission
Natural England
Woodland Trust
Veteran Trees: A Guide to Good
Management

 Where relevant, the Hedgerows
Regulations 1997
 A tree survey should be carried out by
a suitably qualified and experienced
arboriculturalist to British Standard
BS5837: 2012 ‘Trees in Relation to
Design, Demolition and Construction.
– Recommendations’. Each surveyed
tree will be categorised according to
the cascade chart for tree quality
assessment, Table 1 of the standard.
 NPPG: Tree Preservation Orders
 BS 5837:2012 – Trees in relation to
design, demolition and construction.
Recommendations.
 BS 3998: 2010 – Tree work:
Recommendations
 BS 8545:2014 – Trees: from nursery
to independence in the landscape.
Recommendations.
 Arboricultural Association’s directory
of registered consultants

13

9

9

 Trees protected by a tree preservation order should be
identified and details provided.
A tree protection plan to illustrate all protective measures to
include protective barrier fencing/ ground protection.
5. RESTORATION AND AFTERCARE
SUBJECT
Restoration

WHEN REQUIRED

Page 152

All landfill proposals
and temporary waste
proposals except for
those applications
either seeking to vary/
remove a condition or
a permanent waste
facility which has no
impact on the final
restoration/ aftercare
of the site

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A statement setting out the restoration proposals for the land
following cessation of operations to include:
 An overall restoration strategy, identifying the proposed
afteruse of the site
 Total volume and type of fill material (if required) to restore
the application site alongside filling rates
 Phasing of restoration and if it shall be progressive including
phasing plans to demonstrate this
 Information on soil resources, including whether the
importation of additional soils is required and how top soil,
subsoil, overburden and soil making materials are to be
handled and their proposed depths.
 Pre and post settlement contours of the restored area and
its relationship to surrounding land.
 Drainage of the restored area to include grading to promote
natural drainage, surface water catchment, proposed field
drains, ditches, culverts, sumps and watercourses, direction
of flow and site drainage plan and erosion control measures
 Proposals for the removal of buildings, plant, equipment,
roads and hardstandings.
 Proposed cultivation techniques, cropping and grazing
including an assessment of agricultural land classification
 Landscape strategy and planting details.
14

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(Paras 109 & 118).
 Surrey Minerals Plan Mineral Site
Restoration SPD (2011)

 Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy
DPD 2011 Policies MC17 MC18
where relevant
 Good Practice Guide for Handling
Soils’ prepared on behalf of MAFF but
available on the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(DEFRA) website at www.defra.gov.uk
 The good quarry website
www.goodquarry.com has information
on soil handling, habitat creation,
geodiversity and afteruses.
 The Minerals Product Association
www.mineralproducts.org

Page 153

Aftercare

An outline strategy to include:
 the strategic aims and objectives for the site and identified
land use for the aftercare period
 how the methods used in the restoration and aftercare
enable the land to retain its longer term capability
 information on the steps to be taken, who will undertake
them and the period during which they are taken
 details of any hard or soft landscaping
 details of drainage (if required)
 details of an annual programme to be provided no later than
two months prior to the annual Aftercare meeting
 details of annual aftercare meetings

Enhancement

Details on what enhancement measures and positive
contribution the site makes to biodiversity can be provided on
other land within the applicants control.
Details of interim measures that can take place whilst awaiting
final restoration.

6.

 Surrey Biodiversity Opportunity Areas
Guidance, Surrey Nature Partnership

TRAFFIC AND HIGHWAYS

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

Construction
Traffic
Management Plan

Where it is proposed
to bring large plant
(which may or may
not be classified as
abnormal loads) onto
the site or where the
access (by virtue of
existing land used or
designation) is
considered sensitive.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

The plan should include details of:







parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and
visitors
loading and unloading of plant and materials
storage of plant and materials
programme of works including measures for traffic
management, vehicle routing, hours of operation and
design of delivery areas.
provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
specifications for vehicle turning within the site so that
vehicles leave the site in forward gear



Transport Development Planning



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Paras 32 & 56)
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy DC3



Surrey Transport Plan April 2011



Surrey County Council’s
Transportation Development Control
Good Practice Guide

15

9

9

This is not required
where a proposal
does not involve any
physical development
/ traffic movements.
Traffic Statement

The scale of
development is
anything too small to
require a Transport
Assessment.



Measures for the suppression and control of dust during
construction

Information on the existing or proposed access arrangements,
including the width of the access shown on a plan giving visibility
splays. If the access is to be altered details should be given of
the proposed width of the altered access and the method of
construction.
The mode of transport should be made clear and if all or some
transportation is by means other than by road, details should be
provided.

Page 154

Should state the likely average and maximum daily vehicle
movements generated by the proposed development; a
breakdown of quantity and type of traffic associated with the
various activities i.e. Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs), Light
Goods Vehicles (LGVs) or cars along with the average and
maximum capacity of the HGVs in tonnes or cubic metres.
Details of how the vehicle movements would be spread over a
typical working day with any peak periods ie 0700 to 0900 hours
specified, and any variations during the course of the
development identified.
A summary of the routes to be used by the application site
vehicles, or alternatively, roads which the applicant may seek to
prohibit site vehicles using, should be provided.
Should address the measures proposed for preventing/
minimising the deposit or spread of mud or waste materials onto
the public highway. Adequate provision for parking,
loading/unloading and manoeuvring of vehicles will be required.
The Transport Statement should also give an indication of the
current level of traffic generation from the site.
16

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy DC3

 NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in
decision-taking

Where a public right of way is affected by the proposed
development, details should be provided.
Transport
Assessment

Page 155

When a development
proposal has
significant14 transport
implications. A TA is
likely to be required
for development
 generating 30 or
more two-way
vehicle
movements per
hour
 100 plus two-way
vehicle
movements per
day
 any development
proposed in a
location within or
adjacent to an
AQMA.

When a development is EIA development, a Transport
Assessment can be included with the Environmental
Assessment. When this is the case it will, however, need to
consider the environmental impact of the traffic not just the
impact on the highway network.
Should illustrate accessibility to the site by all modes of
transport, and the likely modal split of journeys to and from the
site. Should also give details of proposed measures to improve
access by public transport, walking and cycling, to reduce the
need for parking associated with the proposal and to mitigate
transport impacts.
All submissions should include proposals to reduce the
transportation impact of the development and adequate
mitigation.

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy DC3
 Chapter 4 of ‘Guidance on Transport
Assessment’
(https://www.gov.uk/government/organ
isations/department-for-transport)
gives more detail on preparing a
transport assessment, the framework
and information and type of
assessment required.
 Department for Transport Circular
02/13 “The Strategic Road Network
and the Delivery of Sustainable
Development”



NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in
decision-taking

Applicants are
advised to discuss
this matter during preapplication
discussions. If
proposals have an
impact on the
Strategic Road
Network, the
applicant should
discuss the proposal
with the Highways
14

Significant normally means a 10% increase in HGV movement but should be considered on a case-by-case basis.
17

9

9

Agency.
7.

GEOLOGICAL, LAND AND SOILS

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

Contaminated
Land Assessment

When contamination
of soil, groundwater,
or from hazardous
soil gas is known or
suspected, on or in
the vicinity of the site,
based on present or
previous uses of the
site or its
surroundings.

Page 156

Where the land has
been designated
‘contaminated’ by the
Borough/ District
Council.
When there is a
potential risk from
naturally occurring
hazards in the ground
such as arsenic,
radon and methane
/carbon dioxide.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The Applicant should provide proportionate but sufficient site
investigation information (a risk assessment) to assess the
existence or otherwise of contamination, its nature and extent,
and the risks it may pose to whom/what (i.e. all identified
receptors) so that the risks can be assessed and if necessary
reduced to an acceptable level by remediation or mitigation.
The risk assessment should identify the potential sources,
pathways and receptors (‘pollutant linkages’) and evaluate the
risks. This information will enable the County Planning Authority
to determine whether further more detailed investigation is
required, or whether any proposed remediation or mitigation is
satisfactory.
As a minimum, a desktop study, site walkover and initial Tier 1
risk assessment will be required (Phase 1). This may be
sufficient to develop a conceptual model of the source of
contamination, the pathways by which it might reach vulnerable
receptors and options to show how the identified pollutant
linkages can be broken. The study shall be carried out by a
competent and suitably qualified specialist.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) 2012. Paragraphs 109, 120,
121, and the definition of “Site
Investigation Information” given in
Annex 2, page 56.
 Environment Agency Groundwater
Protection guides (March 2017)
 Borough or District Council
Contaminated Land Officer.
 Environment Agency Guidance


http://planningguidance.communities.
gov.uk/blog/guidance/land-affectedby-contamination/land-affected-bycontamination-guidance/



BS 10175:2011 +A1:2013
Investigation of potentially
contaminated sites. Code of Practice

Unless this initial assessment clearly demonstrates with
complete confidence that the risk from contamination can be

satisfactorily reduced to an acceptable level and the remedial or
mitigation measures are viable, further site investigations and
Tiers of risk assessment (Phase 2 intrusive ground investigation)
and the development of a mitigation or remediation strategy and
verification plan will be needed before the application can be

determined.
The Applicant is required to ensure that land, after development,
18

Model Procedures for the
Management of Land Contamination
- Contaminated Land Report 11 (EA
2004).
Approved Document C - Site
preparation and resistance to
contaminates and moisture (2004

is not capable of being determined as contaminated land under
Part 2A of the EPA 1990.
Early consultation with the CPA and Environment Agency is
recommended to determine likely requirements for submission
with the planning application.



Edition incorporating 2010 and 2013
amendments)
National Quality Mark Scheme for
Land Contamination Management
(NQMS)

For EIA development the risk assessments undertaken of land
potentially affected by contamination should inform the
Environmental Impact Assessment.
Stability
Assessment

Page 157

A land/ slope stability
report will be required
when the proposal
involves substantial
engineering works or
there are good
reasons to believe
that the ground is
unstable; and the
proposed
development could
affect the land or
adjoining land15.
This may include the
effects of both natural
and manmade
underground cavities;
unstable slopes and
ground compression.

Agricultural Land
Classification and
Soils

Where proposal
affects the best and
versatile agricultural

A land/ slope stability investigation should be carried out by a
professional qualified engineer and involve site investigations
and a geotechnical appraisal.
A land/ slope stability risk assessment report should be
submitted and should include information on :
 an understanding of the factors influencing stability
 an assessment of whether or not the site is stable and has an
adequate level of protection
 land is capable of supporting the loads to be imposed;
 development will be threatened by unstable slopes on or
adjacent to the site;
 development will initiate slope instability which may threaten
neighbouring land;
 site could be affected by ground movements due to natural
cavities or past, present or future mining activities. Any
remedial or precautionary measures necessary to reduce or
overcome the risk of instability should be put forward.
Information which demonstrates:
 The quality of existing agricultural land

 Planning Policy Guidance: Land
Stability

 National Planning Policy Guidance:
Quarry Slope Stability

 Agricultural Land Classification of
England & Wales 1988

15

The County Planning Authority accept that during quarrying operations that quarry slope stability falls within the remit of the Health and Safety Executive
(HSE). However when a quarry site has gone into restoration and aftercare, this remit falls within the scope of the County Planning Authority.
19

9

9

land classified as
Grade 1, 2 or 3a and
can also include
applications involving
land filling for the
purposes of
restoration.

8.

 The quality of imported soils/ other waste materials and how
they would improve the land for agricultural purposes
 Measures that would be taken to safeguard the soil qualities
during storage and restoration
 How the agricultural land classification would be protected
or on completion of proposed operation, would be returned
to the same agricultural land grade classification and the
quality off any agricultural land lost and justification for its
loss

 Natural England Technical Information
Note TIN049 “Agricultural Land
Classification: protecting the best &
most versatile agricultural land”
http://publications.naturalengland.org.
uk/publication/35012

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE

 Good Practice Guide for Handling
Soils (April 2000) prepared on behalf
of MAFF.

WATER ENVIRONMENT
SUBJECT

Page 158

Flood Risk
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
All development
proposals located
within Flood Zones 2
and/or 3.
Where the
development is to be
located within Flood
Zone 1 and the site
area is greater than 1
hectare in size and
where the
Environment Agency
or Local Drainage
Engineer has
indicated that there
may be a land
drainage problem.
All proposals for new
development
(including minor

Assessment to establish the impact of the proposed
development on the floodplain and level of risk of all forms of
flooding to and from the development demonstrating
 whether a proposed development is likely to be affected by
current or future flooding from any source
 whether it will increase flood risk elsewhere;
 how these flood risks will be managed now and over the
developments lifetime,
 whether the measures proposed to deal with these effects
and risks are appropriate;
 consideration of climate change
 opportunities to reduce the probability and consequences of
flooding,
 evidence for the County Planning Authority to apply (if
necessary) the Sequential Test
 mitigation measures and emergency evacuation procedures
necessary.
 whether the development will be safe and pass the
Exception Test, if applicable.
The sequential and exception tests required for a site and for
development within site (i.e. siting vulnerable development
20

 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Para 93-108).
 Environment Agency Guidance “Flood
risk assessment for planning
applications”, October 2015
 NPPG: Flood Risk and Coastal
Change
 District and Borough Strategic Flood
Risk Assessments

Page 159

Sustainable
Drainage Systems
(SuDS)

development and
changes of use) in an
area within Flood
Zone 1 which has
critical drainage
problems and/ or
where a Surface
Water Management
Plan or equivalent
document is in place
which indicates that
the site may be
subject to drainage
problems; and/ or
where the proposed
development or
change of use to a
more vulnerable class
may be subject to
other sources of
flooding.

outside the flood plain) can be found on the Environment
Agency webpages “Guidance: flood risk assessment for
planning applications”

Required for all major
developments:

An assessment (taking into account different factors including
the layout of the site, the topography and geology)
demonstrating how any surface water generated from the
development will be controlled as near to its source as possible.
A drainage strategy (including FRA where applicable, proposed
drainage layout and calculations) shall be submitted to
demonstrate that the development does not flood or increase
flooding downstream. Sustainable drainage for the site shall be
proposed in accordance with SUDs surface water management
hierarchy of prevention, reduction, source control, site control
and regional control (the accepted hierarchy of surface water
discharge options is infiltration, then attenuation and discharge

 where the
development is
located in Flood
Zone 2 or 3
 where known
drainage problems
exists
 where the

 Planning Policy Guidance para 051
 Written Ministerial Statement 201418
 Surrey Advice Note supporting the
provision of a Surface Water
Drainage Statement19

 Water. People. Places: A guide for
master planning sustainable drainage
into developments20

18

http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2014-12-18/HCWS161/

19

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/52769/SuDS-Advice-Note.pdf

20

https://eastsussexgovuk.blob.core.windows.net/media/1997/se7-suds-masterplanning_low_res_reduced.pdf
21

9

9

development
includes
impermeable hard
surfacing
 where the
development
involves land
raising activities

to: watercourse, surface water sewer, other sewer).
Evidence shall be provided to demonstrate that the most
sustainable strategy is proposed taking into account flood risk,
site layout, topography, geology, etc). Any assessment should
be accompanied by the Surrey County Council Model Surface
Water Drainage Statement Proforma16.

 Sustainable drainage systems: nonstatutory technical standards 201521

 LASOO Guidance on meeting the
national standards
 The Lead Local Flood Authority

Where the intention is to incorporate infiltration SUDS, their
feasibility shall be demonstrated through approved intrusive
geotechnical surveys to establish infiltration rates, ground water
levels and ground contamination.

Page 160

Should actual infiltration rates (via intrusive tests) not be readily
available ( reason to be stated in drainage strategy), desktop
study demonstrating evidence of likely ground conditions (from
British Geological Survey or other sources) of the site could be
used. In such instance, an alternate strategy shall also be
submitted to demonstrate how the site would drain if infiltration is
not feasible. House or rubble soakaways are not acceptable.
Should it be proposed to dispose of surface water into a
watercourse, surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system, should be accompanied by evidence that the
rates are being restricted to greenfield values and the system
has adequate capacity downstream and is in a suitable state to
accept the water.
Where an application is part of a larger site which already has
planning permission it is essential that the new proposal does
not compromise the drainage scheme already approved.
Any works to be carried out which will affect the flow or storage
of water within, or which place or alter a structure/obstruction

16

Can be found on http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice/more-about-flooding/sudsplanning-advice
22

within an ordinary watercourse will require Ordinary
Watercourse Consent from Surrey CC17.
Hydrogeological/
hydrological
report

Page 161
21

Applications that:
 Involve significant
ground works,
dewatering,
abstraction; or
 Propose to infill
land

All applications should include:
 details of existing groundwater levels;
 impacts of the development on existing water levels;
 mitigation measures and management of such impacts; and
 for applications within a groundwater source protection zone,
a risk assessment will be required considering the impact on
water quality and resources.

 The EU Water Framework Directive

For applications involving dewatering or abstraction, the
assessment should also include:
 calculations of the extent and volumes of dewatering;
 details of topography and surface drainage, artificial ground,
superficial deposits, landslip deposits, rockhead depth,
bedrock geology and details of any borehole reports
including any information with regard to both licensed and
unlicensed abstractions, where necessary;
 details of the natural water table including its depth, source
catchment areas and characteristics;
 consideration of the potential impact upon any wetland SSSI;
 evidence that third parties will not be affected by the
dewatering, and where there is a potential impact upon public
and private water supplies, water bodies or watercourses
details of mitigating measures must be included in the
application;
 details of proposed methods of dewatering and proposed
methods of water disposal;
 proposed measures to control potential pollution to protect
ground and surface water; and

 NPPG: Water supply, wastewater and
water quality

 National Planning Policy Framework
(Para 144)
 British Geological Survey
(www.bgs.ac.uk/research/groundwater
/datainfo/datainformation.html)

 NPPG: Flood Risk and Coastal
Change
 British Hydrological Society
 Environment Agency: Groundwater
protection: principles and practice GP3

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-statutory-technical-standards

17

These can include permanent or temporary structures or works. An ‘ordinary watercourse' is a watercourse that is not part of a main river and includes
rivers, streams, ditches, drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, sewers (other than public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and
passages, through which water flows. Consent within Surrey is issued by the Sustainable Drainage and Consenting Team within Surrey County Council. The
team can provide information on the requirements for consent and the application procedure and is contactable by email on SuDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please
note consent cannot be issued retrospectively. Works affecting designated Main River require consent from the Environment Agency
23

9

9

 any necessary drainage and flood control measures; and
proposed monitoring measures, including any requirements
for the provision of settlement lagoons; the way in which
surface water is to be disposed of; the avoidance of impairing
drainage from adjoining areas; and the prevention of material
entering open watercourses.
Monitoring of the existing water regime for at least 12 months
prior to submission of the application may be necessary in order
to ensure that surface and groundwater can be safeguarded.
Foul Sewerage
Drainage and
Utilities
Assessment

Required where foul
sewerage and/or
drainage
infrastructure is
absent or inadequate.

Page 162

Where the
development includes
connection to existing
utility services
including electricity,
gas,
telecommunications
and water supply, foul
water/ sewage.
Where the
development is
located in a Flood
Risk area and where
known drainage
problems exist.

Assessment of how the proposal will establish new or connect to 
existing utility infrastructure systems.
Where utility infrastructure is absent or inadequate the
assessment should demonstrate:
 following consultation with the service provider the availability
of utility services has been examined and that the proposal
would not result in undue stress on the delivery of services to
the wider community
 that proposal incorporates any utility company requirements
 that service routes have been planned to avoid the potential
for damage to trees and archaeological remains
 that proposals for relocating or protecting existing
infrastructure has been agreed with the service provider
All assessments should:
 describe the type, quantities and means of disposal of any
effluent
 demonstrate compatibility with existing land uses and
drainage capacity
 provide detailed scaled drawings and plans of existing or
proposed infrastructure
 provide percolation tests where relevant
 provide specifications of any utility plant, machinery or
equipment proposed.

24

Paragraph 56 of the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy DC3
 National Joint Utilities Group
Publications
 NPPG: Water supply, wastewater and
water quality

9.

HERITAGE AND ARCHAEOLOGY

SUBJECT
Heritage Assets

Archaeology

WHEN REQUIRED
Where Heritage
Assets22 or features
may be affected by
the proposal.

Page 163

Where archaeological
sites or features may
be affected by the
proposal.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A Heritage Statement setting out the significance of all Heritage
Assets affected by a proposed development. The statement
should be comprehensive, but proportionate to the level of
potential harm posed by the development proposal. Loss of, or
damage to, any Heritage Asset will need to be justified within a
wider context of enhanced understanding of the asset, or an
mitigation of greater benefit to the preservation and continued
sustainability of heritage features elsewhere within the
development.
An archaeological assessment is required when a Heritage
Statement or pre-application discussion indicates that a Heritage
Asset with an Archaeological Interest23 is likely to be present on
site and/or affected by a development proposal. An assessment
should examine the nature and significance of the
archaeological resources of the site, in comparison with the
nature of the development proposal, and detail the likely
implications for the future survival and management of the
resource that arise.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Surrey County Council Heritage
Conservation Team Officer
 Surrey Historic Environment Record
 Schedule of Ancient Monuments
 Historic England Registered Parks and
Gardens
 Historic England Listed Buildings
Register
 Historic England Good Practice Advice
notes: GPA1, GPA2 and GPA3
 Historic England Advice Notes
 Surrey Historic Landscape
Characterisation Assessment
 NPPG: Conserving and enhancing the
historic environment

22

A Heritage Asset would be considered to be a nationally or locally Listed Building, Nationally Registered or locally listed Park or Garden, Registered
Battlefield, Conservation Area, Historic Landscape and/or associated natural heritage features, or undesignated features or structures of demonstrable
historic or cultural heritage interest.
23
An asset of Archaeological Interest is considered to be a Scheduled Monument, a County Site of Archaeological Importance, an Area of High
Archaeological Potential, or development application area exceeding 0.4 hectares in size, where it is reasonably considered that previously undocumented
archaeological remains might survive.
25

9

9

10.

AMENITY
SUBJECT

Lighting
Assessment

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
WHEN REQUIRED
All waste
developments
involving any external
lighting, including
temporary,
construction and
security lighting.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
An assessment providing full details of any external lighting
including details of:
 The number, type, location and height of any lighting
including those on columns and/ or buildings
 The intensity of the installation (in Lux levels) and spill
patterns shown on a plan
 The proposed hours of use.
 Potential for impacts on ecological features
 Proposed mitigation measures
 Measures for unforeseen impacts and monitoring

 Department for Communities and
Local Government’s Lighting in the
Countryside 1997.
 Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Light (2011), Institute of
Lighting Professionals
 Bats and Lighting in the UK (2009),
the Bat Conservation Society

Page 164

 An appropriately qualified Lighting
Engineer
 NPPG: Light pollution
Noise

Where:
 the development is
likely to affect
sensitive land uses
such as dwelling,
school, or carehome
 where the
development
involves the use of
mobile site plant,
processing plant or
machinery such as
a crusher,
screener,
conveyor, or
trammel

A noise assessment outlining the existing noise climate
(established normally by measurement) and the impact of the
proposed development assessment from the noise viewpoint
using prediction and measurement techniques as appropriate for
any potential noise sensitive development in the locality. If
mitigation measures are proposed the impact of noise on
sensitive locations should be assessed following implementation
of the proposed mitigation measures.
For any noise sensitive development, existing or consented,
potentially affected by the minerals development, a noise
assessment should be prepared by a competent person that
defines the baseline sound environment, following appropriate
guidance, usually established through measurement, and the
impact of the proposed development using prediction and
measurement techniques as appropriate. Where criteria in
appropriate guidance maybe exceed, mitigation measures
26

 A qualified acoustic specialist.
 Your relevant Borough or District
Council Environmental Health Officer.
 The Environment Agency.
 “Guidelines for Noise Control –
Minerals and Waste Disposal”, 1994
Surrey County Council
 NPPG: Noise
 BS 4142:2014 “Methods for rating and
assessing industrial and commercial
sound”

Page 165
High Pressure
Pipeline Search24

 where the
development
involves
engineering
activities such as
earth moving,
bund creation or
soil stripping
 where the
development is
likely to affect a
designated
(international,
national or local)
Nature
Conservation or
Geological site
 where the
development is to
be located within
the Surrey Hills
AONB and Area of
Great Landscape
Value

should be provided such that the criteria are not exceeded.

 BS 5228-1:2009+A1:2014 “Code of
practice for noise and vibration control
on construction and open sites. Noise”

For all developments
involving excavation
or below ground
works. There are
special requirements
for safe working in
close proximity to a
high pressure pipeline
and proposed works
require approval from

Evidence to show that a high pressure pipeline search has been
carried out.

 Linesearch before u dig

 National Grid

24

Pipeline operators do not have statutory powers although may have legal agreements in place on land and clearly this is a matter that has significant health
and safety implications.
27

9

9

a pipeline operator
prior to commencing.
Open Space
Assessment
including Rights
of Way

Any development
proposals that would
result in the loss of
open space, or have
implications for Public
Rights of Way.

An assessment of any open space or Public Rights of Way lost,
directly or indirectly affected by a proposed development
including any measures to replace or compensate for such
impacts and identification of any opportunities to improve
facilities for walkers, cyclists, horse riders. This includes any
right of way which is outside a site boundary

 Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core
Strategy DPD Policy MC14
 Surrey County Council’s Countryside
Access Team.
 Rights of Way shown on Surrey’s
Interactive Map
 Rights of Way Improvement Plan
(ROWIP)

Page 166

 NPPG: Open space, sports and
recreational facilities, public rights of
way and local green space
11.

AIRPORT SAFEGUARDING
SUBJECT

Airport
Safeguarding
Statement

25

WHEN REQUIRED
All applications within
the consultation area
of civil and military
aerodromes and
airstrips25 and where:
 The proposal
involves landfilling
 The development
involves features
attractive to
hazardous birds
such as: amenity

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The statement should show how the development will not
constitute a hazard to air traffic, with or without mitigation
proposed.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE
 Annex 2 to the Department for
Transport/ODPM Circular 1/2003
 Safeguarding Aerodromes, Technical
Sites and Military Explosive Storage
Areas’ ‘Potential Bird Hazards from
Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes
(SUDS) August 2006.
 Guidance on civil aviation (CAA)
planning consultation requirements,
August 2012

Including Heathrow, Gatwick, Biggin Hill, Farnborough, Fairoaks, Northolt, Odiham
28

 The Airport Operators Association
(AOA) the General Aviation
Awareness Council safeguarding of
Aerodromes Advice Notes: Advice
Note 1

landscaping and
water features,
this includes the
enhancement of
existing wet areas
or water courses
and buildings with
ledges, gantries
and flat roofs

 ‘Safeguarding – an Overview’: Advice
Note 2 ‘Lighting near Aerodromes’
 Advice Note 3 ‘Potential Bird Hazards
from Amenity landscaping and
Building Design.’

Page 167

Where the proposal
includes lighting
which may impact on
airport safety (i.e.
dazzling) Where a
proposal involves the
venting and flaring of
gas.

 Advice Note 4 ‘Cranes and Other
Construction Issues’
 Advice Note 7 ‘Wind Turbines and
Aviation’

Applicants are
advised to discuss
non-official
safeguarding areas
with planning officers
12.

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND WASTE MANAGEMENT
ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

SUBJECT

WHEN REQUIRED

Landfill Statement

Any proposal
involving landfilling
including reworking or
reclamation of former
mineral sites.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
Statement on the proposed capacity, amount of material
involved, rates of fill, type and source of material, expected
levels of settlement including justification thereof, and proposed
methods of compaction (pre and post settlement levels).
Demonstration that the amount of fill proposed is the minimum
requisite required.

 Landfill (England and Wales)
Regulations 2002.
 National Planning Policy for Waste
2014
 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policies
WD7, WD8, and DC3

29

9

9

Sustainable
Design and
Construction
Statement

Major developments26
(Over 1000sqm)

Economic
Statement

Where significant
economic growth or
regeneration benefits
apply, or might be
enabled, by a major
waste management
proposal.

13.

Statement detailing how sustainable forms of design/
construction have been incorporated into the new development
and any proposed renewable energy technologies.

Explanation of any economic benefits from the proposed
development, including new jobs created or supported and
community benefits providing evidence where relevant.

 Surrey Waste Plan 2008 policy CW1
and DC3
 NPPG: Climate Change


s70(2) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Paras 17 - 22 & 28)



Surrey Waste Plan 2008 Policy CW6

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Page 168

SUBJECT
Statement of
Community
Involvement

WHEN REQUIRED
For any proposals
with substantial
community interest.
Any proposal where
this is a requirement
under Section 61 (w)
of the Localism Act
2011 when enacted
and required by the
Town and County
Planning
(Development
Management

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND
GUIDANCE

A Statement explaining how the applicant has complied with the
pre-application engagement recommendation made in Surrey
County Council’s Statement of Community involvement.
Developers are encouraged to inform the community of their
plans to ensure that a link is established at an early stage in the
process.

 Surrey County Council’s Statement of
Community Involvement.
 Section 61W of the Localism Act 2011
(when enacted)
 The Local Government Association,
British Property Federation & Others.
 The Ten Commitments to Effective
Pre-application engagement
 NPPG: Before submitting an
application

26

As defined in the General Development Management Procedure 2015 www.legistlation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made however there isn’t a definition
of major for use in the AONB – it is a matter for the decision maker to determine whether a proposed development in the AONB context is major
development.
30

Procedure) (England)
Order 2010
subsequent
regulations.
ANNEXES:
Annex 1: List of Planning Departments of Local Borough and District Councils in Surrey

Page 169













Elmbridge
Epsom and Ewell
Guildford
Mole Valley
Reigate and Banstead
Runnymede
Spelthorne
Surrey Heath
Tandridge
Waverley
Woking

Annex 2: Other Statutory Consultees













Natural England
Historic England
Highways England
Environment Agency
Lead Local Flood Authority
County Highway Authority
Water or sewage undertaker(s)
Surrey Hills AONB Office
High Weald AONB Officer
The Health and Safety Executive
The Garden History Society
Parish Councils

31

9

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 3 – COUNTY DEVELOPMENT (REGULATION 3)
The policy drivers for all the subjects listed below are the relevant Borough or District Local Plans/ Core Strategies, the National Planning Policy
Framework and the National Planning Policy Guidance. Specific policies or paragraphs of these policy drivers may be detailed within a specific subject
below when relevant.
CONTENTS
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

8. Amenity
9. Airports
10. Sustainable Design and Construction
11. Statement of Community Involvement
12. Pitch Layout Plan
13. Structural and Engineering Plan
14. Contaminated Land

Planning Statement
Green Belt Statement
Ecology
Landscape, Landscaping and Trees
Traffic, Highways and Rights of Way
Water Environment
Heritage and Archaeology

1. PLANNING STATEMENT

Page 171

SUBJECT
Planning
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED
All planning applications will
require a Planning
Statement. The more
complex the scheme the
greater the detail required.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The planning statement should set out the context and
justification for the development including:
 A site description setting out the physical features of the site
and its surroundings;
 A description of any use, Planning designations or physical
constraints i.e. nearby housing;
 A demonstration of the need for the proposed development.
 Fully describe the scope of the development and all the
various activities and phases that comprise the proposed
development.
 Detail existing and proposed staff and pupil numbers (if a
school development)
 Details of the site layout, buildings and colour and type of
materials to be used
 Details of boundary treatment
 How the proposal conforms to European, National, and
Development Plan policy.
 Information on the geology and topography of the site

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Planning Practice Guidance: determining
an application

1

9

9





Describe the topography of the site and the surrounding area
Educational need argument (if relevant)
Details of consultations with the County Planning Authority
and wider community1/statutory consultees undertaken prior
to submission and to demonstrate that regard has been
taken to ensure that individuals and hard to reach groups are
not discriminated against because they share certain
protected characteristics as set out in the Equality Act 2010.

2. GREEN BELT STATEMENT
SUBJECT
Green Belt

WHEN REQUIRED
Where the application site
lies within or partially within
the Green Belt.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

Page 172

If site located in the Green Belt and the proposal would be
‘inappropriate development’ therefore very special
circumstances would need to be put forward to justify the
inappropriate development. These may include:


The need for the development. This should cover existing
demand, projected future demand, the catchment area,
describe other sites within the District/Borough and where
necessary adjoining District/Boroughs.
 Alternative site selection
stating why the proposal must be located here and not in the
urban area
 How the proposal has been designed and positioned to limit
the impact on openness.
If proposal considered to be ‘appropriate development’,
justification as to how this conclusion has been reached

1

Such as Residents Associations, Parish Councils and Action Groups
2

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(Paras 79-92)
 The County Planning Authority’s
Alternative Site Assessment advice note.

3. ECOLOGY
SUBJECT
Preliminary
Ecological
Assessment
(PEA)

Page 173

Ecological
Impact
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
Where the
development is likely to
affect a designated
site2 or is 0.4ha or
larger
Where the
development is within
100m of or is likely to
affect a Priority Habitat
or Species
Where the
development would
affect natural or seminatural habitats*6. For
the demolition or works
in the roof space of
buildings which may be
used by bats.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) provides up-to-date
information on habitats on the application site and links to other
habitats, species present or likely to be, likely impacts, mitigation
and enhancement opportunities, For all but the most minor
applications, the PEA should include the results of a search from
the Surrey Biodiversity Information Centre.

Where the PEA identifies the need for habitat and species surveys,
these need to be carried out and assessed in an Ecological Impact
Assessment (EcIA) to establish their presence/absence, the
population levels, likely impacts and scheme of mitigation and
compensation. Where mitigation and compensation for biodiversity
are proposed, these should be set out in a Biodiversity Mitigation
Plan3.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Natural England - Standing advice for
protected species
 The Environment Agency.
 Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
(ODPM) Circular 06/2005 “Biodiversity
and Geological Conservation – statutory
obligations and their impact within the
planning system” and the Good Practice
Guide
 Natural England Standing Advice for
Ancient Woodland
 BS42020 Biodiversity Code of practice
for planning and development
 NPPG: Natural Environment
 Chartered Institute of Ecology and
Environmental Management
 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (paras 117,118 & 119)
 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
 Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2010

4. LANDSCAPE, LANDSCAPING AND TREES
SUBJECT
Area of
Outstanding

WHEN REQUIRED
For major development
within an Area of

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
An assessment of:
 The need for the development including in terms of any

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
(Para 116)

2

For example Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), Sites of Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI), Special Protection Area (SPA)

3

This can be the subject of a condition.
3

9

9

Page 174

Natural
Beauty
Exceptional
Circumstance
Test

Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB)

Landscape
Assessment

 Planning applications
that require an EIA.
 Planning Applications
that are within or
visible from the High
Weald Area of
Outstanding Natural
Beauty or Surrey Hills
Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty.
 All planning
applications outside
these areas where
development could
have an effect on
landscape features,
treescapes or historic
landscapes.
 All planning
applications for
development which
could have an effect
on an existing
landscape scheme

national considerations; and the impact of permitting it, or
refusing it, upon the local economy
 The cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the
designated area, or meeting the need for it in some other way;
 Any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and
recreational opportunities, and the extent to which that can be
moderated
 The impact of the proposal on the setting of the AONB

 Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan
2014 – 2019
 High Weald Management Plan 2014 2019
 Surrey Landscape Character Assessment
2015
 Landscape Character Areas for the
AONBs on Surrey Interactive Map

Assessments may be carried out for developments proposed in
rural or urban landscapes and townscapes. Assessments should
follow best practice guidance provided in ‘Guidelines for Landscape
and Visual Impact Assessment (Third Edition)’ as published by the
Landscape Institute/IEMA. In all cases the approach and scope of
the assessment should be proportional to the scale and nature of
the proposed development.

 The Landscape Institute
www.landscapeinstitute.org
 Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment (Third Edition), 2011
 Landscape Character Assessment
Guidance for England and Scotland and
topic papers www.naturalengland.org.uk
 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015
 Surrey Historic Landscape Character
Assessment

Where the landscape assessment is part of an EIA, it should fulfil
the requirements of a formal Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA).
Applicants should demonstrate how landscape or townscape
character and visual sensitivity has been taken in to account, and
how the development may be integrated in to the landscape by
location, layout and design.
Assessments should be informed by County, District and Borough
landscape and townscape character assessments, Conservation
Area Assessments, landscape or nature conservation designations,
AONB management plans, Listed Buildings, Historic Parks and
Gardens, Scheduled Monuments or other heritage assets, and
existing landscape features.
Photographs, visualisations and photomontages to be provided as
appropriate.
The assessment should help determine whether further details or
mitigation measures in the form of a landscape scheme or other
compensation will be required (potentially see below).
4

 The High Weald AONB Management
Plan 2015 - 2019
 Surrey Hills Management Plan 2015 –
2019
 Advice can be sought from the County
landscape Architect

Landscape
Scheme

All applications where
landscape mitigation,
compensation, or
restoration is required.

Landscape and visual impact assessments must consider the
impact from a range of heights, ridges, hillsides and valleys
including plans which show the surrounding contours and
topography with a discussion on the impacts.
A landscape scheme should show how the proposal reflects the
landscape assessment, and /or is informed by, the existing features
and landscape character both within, and in the vicinity of the site.
A scheme should include written and schematic plans, providing
details of hard and soft landscaping, existing vegetation to be
retained and arrangements for future maintenance and long term
management *

 Surrey Landscape Character
Assessment 2015 (with link to website
page)
 Advice can be sought from the County
Landscape Architect

Page 175

Where relevant it should include landscape/habitat restoration and
enhancement and new landscape features to compensate for those
lost to development.
Where new planting is proposed the application should provide as
a minimum, a schedule of plants, noting species, plant or stock
size, and proposed spacing, numbers or planting densities, notes
on cultivation, and timing of planting.
Other information that should be provided may include:
 Proposed finished ground levels or contours; sections
 A soil management strategy where significant earthworks
are required;
 Means of enclosure; fences and boundary treatments
 Protection measures for existing and new planting
 Tree pit size, protection, staking/guying
 Extent and provision of all construction operations, including
site compounds, temporary haul roads or access points;
and Construction Method Statement
 Access and Car parking layouts.
 Services
 Implementation timetables
*A landscape management plan should consist of a plan showing
management compartments for each landscape type or feature,
and a report with descriptions of each landscape type of feature,
management objectives, prescriptions and annual operations, a
5

9

9

matrix indicating timing of annual operations, and responsibilities
and timescales for implementation, monitoring and review. For
larger and more complex applications a Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan (LEMP) may be required (usually for a 25 year
period).

Ancient
Woodland &
‘Aged’ or
‘Veteran’
trees

Page 176

Where development is to
take place in an ancient
woodland or within 500m
of the boundary of an
ancient woodland as
shown on the Surrey
Inventory of Ancient
Woodland
Where development is to
take place within 100m
of an aged or veteran
tree

Where new trees are proposed, to ensure planted trees become
successfully established, applicants will be required to organise
and outline suitable post planting maintenance arrangements that
includes regular scheduled watering. In determining the
maintenance details required and submitted, reference will be
made to BS8545: 2014 annexe G1 and G2.
An impact assessment to be provided. To consist of an appraisal of 
the biodiversity and historic features of the ancient woodland or
veteran tree(s) and an assessment of how they are affected by the 
development. This assessment should include ecological and
historic surveys.

Ecological surveys should follow guidance approved by the

Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management
(CIEEM).






Trees and
Arboricultural
Implications

All development
proposals where there
are trees, woodland or
hedgerows (protected by
a tree preservation order
or not) either on, or
adjacent to, the
application site and
which could be
influenced or be affected

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment including an assessment that
evaluates the direct and indirect effects of the proposal including
mitigation and compensatory measures where necessary to include
a tree survey of trees on or adjacent to the site. The assessment
will take account of the effects of any tree loss required to
implement the development and any potentially damaging activities
proposed in the vicinity of retained trees. Impact of the proposals
access, working space and provision for the storage of materials
should also be taken into account.
6

National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (paragraph 118)
Natural England and Forestry
Commission Standing Advice for Ancient
Woodland and Veteran Trees
Surrey Ancient Woodland Inventory
Surrey County Council web page link to
Ancient Woodland Inventory
The Surrey Interactive Map
Surrey Biodiversity Information Centre
Surrey historic and landscape character
assessments & Historic Environment
Record
The Forestry Commission
Natural England

 Where relevant, the Hedgerows
Regulations 1997
 A tree survey should be carried out by a
suitably qualified and experienced
Arboriculturist to BS 5387:2012 ‘Trees in
Relation to Construction –
Recommendations’.
 Tree preservation order: ‘A Guide to the
Law and Good Practice’ 2009 DCLG.
 BS 3998: 2010 – Tree work:

by the development.

Recommendations
 BS 8545:2014 – Trees: from nursery to
independence in the landscape.
Recommendations.
 Arboricultural Association’s directory of
registered consultants

The full sequence of
events might not be
applicable in all
instances – applicants
are advised to contact
the County Planning
Authority for advice

Tree
Constraints
Plan

Page 177
Tree
Protection
Plan

Where there are trees or
hedgerows either on, or
adjacent to, the
application site and are
potentially affected by
the development

When existing trees (and
trees roots) will be
impacted by the
development

A tree constraints plan including:
 A plan showing all existing trees (and/or hedgerows where
considered relevant by an arboriculturalist) potentially
affected by the development (or temporarily affected)
including their crown spread, indicating those to be retained
and those to be felled.
 Information on which trees are to be retained and felled
including details of their height, trunk diameter, species, age,
life expectancy, proposed root protection zone and an
assessment of the condition and amenity value
 Illustrate the calculated and/or adjusted Root Protection
Areas (RPA’s) for each tree.
 Measures for protecting retained trees during site works.
 Where necessary indicate other trees or landscape features
on land adjacent to the development site which might be
affected by the development or might serve as screening.
 Evaluation of impact of proposed tree losses and compensatory
planting required including number, species, age/girth,
recommended locations and maintenance schedule.
 Trees protected by a tree preservation order should be
identified and details provided.
A tree protection plan to illustrate all protective measures to include
protective barrier fencing/ ground protection.

7

9

9

5. TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & RIGHTS OF WAY
SUBJECT
Travel Plan

Page 178

Construction
Traffic
Management
Plan

Transport
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED
All school
developments
resulting in an
increase in pupil
numbers, including
temporary and bulge
permissions.

All developments except
very minor proposals
such as canopies,
fences, change of use. If
not being provided,
Planning Statement
should make simple case
as to why one is not
being submitted to show
that issues have actively
been considered.

Small scale
developments and minor
school expansions
(not required for
temporary / bulge
applications unless
advised otherwise by the
County Planning
Authority)

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A strategy for managing access to a school, reducing the impacts
of car travel, encouraging greater use of public transport, cycling
and walking, scooters and car sharing.
Sets out sustainable travel objectives and targets that the school
must commit to achieving through various measures. Typically
measures include sustainable site design and promotion of car
sharing, public transport, walking and cycling.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE


Surrey County Council “Travel Plan
Good Practice Guide” 2010



NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in
decision-taking



Please contact the County Highway
Authority



Surrey County Highway Authority



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Paras 32 & 56)



Surrey Transport Plan April 2011



Details of parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives
and visitors; loading and unloading of plant and materials;
storage of plant and materials;
 Programme of works (including measures for traffic
management); provision of boundary hoarding behind any
visibility zones;
 Programme of works (including numbers of HGVs and any
measures for traffic management;
 vehicle routing and hours of operation design of delivery
areas;
 specifications for lorry parking and turning;
measures for the suppression and control of dust during
construction.
 Information on the existing or proposed access
arrangements, including the width of the access shown on
a plan giving visibility splays. If the access is to be altered
details should be given of the proposed width of the
altered access and the method of construction. Access
into the site from several directions in order to increase
accessibility and permeability should be investigated.
 Details of existing modal split (car/cycle/walk/scooter)
should be provided and how the trips would be would be
spread during school dropping off/picking up periods.
 Provision for parking for staff and visitors only,
8

Surrey County Council’s Transportation
Development Control Good Practice Guide



NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in decisiontaking



Transport Development Planning Team
at Surrey County Council

Transport
Assessment

For new schools, large
school expansions and
major developments

Page 179
Open Space
Assessment
including
Rights of Way

Any development
proposals that would
result in the loss of open
space, or have
implications for Public
Rights of Way.

loading/unloading and manoeuvring of vehicle, particularly
delivery vehicles and coaches, will be required.
 Where a public right of way is affected by the proposed
development, details should be provided:
 those which are known to have particularly difficult existing
traffic and access conditions
 where cumulative effect of several temporary developments
in quick succession
 As for Transport Statement plus an illustration of
accessibility to the site by all modes of transport, and the
likely modal split of journeys to and from the site.
Demonstrate existing/proposed catchment. Determine
impact of proposal and any necessary works to
accommodate increase in trips (e.g junction
improvements/footway widening/pedestrian
crossings/parking restrictions). Illustrate any reduction in
car trips due to siblings. Should also give details of
proposed measures to improve access by public transport,
walking and cycling, to reduce the need for parking
associated with the proposal and to mitigate transport
impacts. The level of parking provision proposed should
be justified.
 All submissions should include proposals to reduce the
transportation impact of the development and adequate
mitigation.
 Where traffic is intended to be restricted to certain routes,
the proposal must include details of how this is to be
accomplished with certainty.
An assessment of any open space or Public Rights of Way lost,
directly or indirectly affected by a proposed development including
any measures to replace or compensate for such impacts and
identification of any opportunities to improve facilities for walkers,
cyclists, horse riders. This includes any right of way which is
outside a site boundary



Transport Development Planning Team
at Surrey County Council
 Chapter 4 of ‘Guidance on Transport
Assessment’
(https://www.gov.uk/government/organisa
tions/department-for-transport) gives
more detail on preparing a transport
assessment, the framework and
information and type of assessment
required.
 Department for Transport Circular 2/07
‘Planning and the Strategic Road
Network’ www.dft.gov.uk


NPPG: Travel plans, transport
assessment and statements in decisiontaking

 Surrey County Council’s Countryside
Access Team.
 Rights of Way shown on Surrey’s
Interactive Map
 NPPG: Open space, sports and
recreational facilities, public rights of way
and local green space
 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Chapter 8)
 The Council’s Rights of Way

9

9

9
Improvement Plan (ROWIP)
6. WATER ENVIRONMENT
SUBJECT
Flood Risk
Assessment

Page 180

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

-All development
proposals located within
Flood Zones 2 and/or 3.
-Where the development
is to be located within
Flood Zone 1 and the
site area is greater than
1 hectare in size
-Where the Environment
Agency or Local
Drainage Engineer has
indicated that there may
be a land drainage
problem.

Assessment to establish the impact of the proposed development
on the floodplain and level of risk of all forms of flooding to and
from the development demonstrating
 whether a proposed development is likely to be affected by
current or future flooding from any source
 whether it will increase flood risk elsewhere;
 how these flood risks will be managed now and over the
developments lifetime,
 whether the measures proposed to deal with these effects and
risks are appropriate;
 consideration of climate change
 opportunities to reduce the probability and consequences of
flooding,
 evidence for the County Planning Authority to apply (if
necessary) the Sequential Test
 mitigation measures and emergency evacuation procedures
necessary.
 whether the development will be safe and pass the Exception
Test, if applicable.
 Reports must include the impact on adjacent areas.

All proposals for new
development (including
minor development and
changes of use) in an
area within Flood Zone 1
which has critical
drainage problems and/
or where a Surface
Water Management Plan
or equivalent document
is in place which
indicates that the site
may be subject to
drainage problems; and/
or where the proposed
development or change
of use to a more

The sequential and exception tests required for a site and for
development within site (i.e. siting vulnerable development outside
the flood plain) can be found on the Environment Agency
webpages “Guidance: flood risk assessment for planning
applications”

10

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Para 93-108).
 Environment Agency Guidance “Flood risk
assessment for planning applications”,
October 2015
 NPPG: Flood Risk and Coastal Change
 District and Borough Strategic Flood Risk
Assessments

vulnerable class may be
subject to other sources
of flooding.
Sustainable
Drainage
Systems
(SuDS)

Required for all major
developments
Where the development
is located in Flood Zone
2 or 3

 An assessment (taking into account different factors including the
layout of the site, the topography and geology) demonstrating
how any surface water generated from the development will be
controlled as near to its source as possible.

 Planning Policy Guidance para 51

 Any assessment should be accompanied by the Surrey County
Council Model Surface Water Drainage Statement Proforma4.

 Surrey Advice Note supporting the
provision of a Surface Water Drainage
Statement7

Where known drainage
problems exists

 A drainage strategy (including FRA where applicable, proposed
drainage layout and calculations) to demonstrate that the
development does not flood or increase flooding downstream.

Where the development
includes impermeable
hard surfacing

 Sustainable drainage for the site shall be proposed in accordance
with SUDs surface water management hierarchy of prevention,
reduction, source control, site control and regional control (the
accepted hierarchy of surface water discharge options is
infiltration, then attenuation and discharge to: watercourse,
surface water sewer, other sewer).

Page 181

Where the development
involves land raising
activities

 Evidence shall be provided to demonstrate that the most
sustainable strategy is proposed taking into account flood risk,
site layout, topography, geology, etc).

 Written Ministerial Statement 20146

 Water. People. Places: A guide for
master planning sustainable drainage
into developments8
 Sustainable drainage systems: nonstatutory technical standards 20159
 LASOO Guidance on meeting the
national standards
 The Lead Local Flood Authority

 Where the intention is to incorporate infiltration SUDS, their
feasibility shall be demonstrated through approved intrusive
geotechnical surveys to establish infiltration rates, ground water
levels and ground contamination.
 Should actual infiltration rates (via intrusive tests) not be readily
4

Can be found on http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice/more-about-flooding/sudsplanning-advice
2

http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2014-12-18/HCWS161/

3

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/52769/SuDS-Advice-Note.pdf

8

https://eastsussexgovuk.blob.core.windows.net/media/1997/se7-suds-masterplanning_low_res_reduced.pdf

9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-statutory-technical-standards
11

9

9

available (reason to be stated in drainage strategy), desktop
study demonstrating evidence of likely ground conditions (from
British Geological Survey or other sources) of the site could be
used. In such instance, an alternate strategy shall also be
submitted to demonstrate how the site would drain if infiltration is
not feasible. House or rubble soakaways are not acceptable.
 Should it be proposed to dispose of surface water into a
watercourse, surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system, should be accompanied by evidence that the
rates are being restricted to greenfield values and the system has
adequate capacity downstream and is in a suitable state to
accept the water.
 Where an application is part of a larger site which already has
planning permission it is essential that the new proposal does not
compromise the drainage scheme already approved.

Page 182

 Any works to be carried out which will affect the flow or storage of
water within, or which place or alter a structure/obstruction within
an ordinary watercourse will require Ordinary Watercourse
Consent from Surrey CC5.
 Evidence to show have ‘in principle’ agreement with the water
board to discharge into surface water sewer
 Reports must include the impact on adjacent areas.

5

These can include permanent or temporary structures or works. An ‘ordinary watercourse' is a watercourse that is not part of a main river and includes
rivers, streams, ditches, drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, sewers (other than public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and
passages, through which water flows. Consent within Surrey is issued by the Sustainable Drainage and Consenting Team within Surrey County Council. The
team can provide information on the requirements for consent and the application procedure and is contactable by email on SuDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please
note consent cannot be issued retrospectively. Works affecting designated Main River require consent from the Environment Agency
12

7. HERITAGE AND ARCHAEOLOGY

SUBJECT
Heritage
Assets

Page 183

Archaeology

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

Where Heritage Assets10
or features may be
affected by the proposal.

A Heritage Statement setting out the significance of all Heritage
Assets affected by a proposed development. The statement should
be comprehensive, but proportionate to the level of potential harm
posed by the development proposal. Loss of, or damage to, any
Heritage Asset will need to be justified within a wider context of
enhanced understanding of the asset, or an mitigation of greater
benefit to the preservation and continued sustainability of heritage
features elsewhere within the development.

Where archaeological
sites or features may be
affected by the proposal.
Or where the application
site area is over 0.4ha

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Surrey County Council Heritage
Conservation Team Officer
 Surrey Historic Environment Record
 Schedule of Ancient Monuments
 Historic England Listed Buildings
Register

 Historic England Registered Parks and
Gardens
An archaeological assessment is required when a Heritage
Statement or pre-application discussion indicates that a Heritage
Asset with an Archaeological Interest11 is likely to be present on site  Historic England Good Practice Advice
notes: GPA1, GPA2 and GPA3
and/or affected by a development proposal. An assessment should
examine the nature and significance of the archaeological
 Historic England Advice Notes
resources of the site, in comparison with the nature of the
development proposal, and detail the likely implications for the
future survival and management of the resource that arise.
 Surrey Historic Landscape
Characterisation Assessment
 NPPG: Conserving and enhancing the
historic environment

10

A Heritage Asset would be considered to be a nationally or locally Listed Building, Nationally Registered or locally listed Park or Garden, Registered
Battlefield, Conservation Area, Historic Landscape and/or associated natural heritage features, or undesignated features or structures of demonstrable
historic or cultural heritage interest.
11

An asset of Archaeological Interest is considered to be a Scheduled Monument, a County Site of Archaeological Importance, an Area of High
Archaeological Potential, or development application area exceeding 0.4 hectares in size
13

9

9

8. AMENITY
SUBJECT
Air Quality
Assessment

Page 184

Lighting
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
-Major Developments
(over 1000sqm)
- generates significant
levels of pollution
-involves development
sensitive to poor air
quality that is proposed
in or adjacent to an
AQMA
-If proposal is for a
development which
would generate odours
Outdoor sport facilities
Developments
involving significant
external lighting,
including temporary
construction and
security lighting.

Proposed
development close to

Noise

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Assessment of existing air quality, and assessment of predicted air
quality as a result of the development, including any proposed
mitigation measures.12

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Department for Environment Food, and
Rural Affairs policy guidance and
technical guidance.
 The Environment Agency guidance.
 The Environmental Protection UK
(EPUK) and Institute of Air Quality
Management (IAQM) guidance

An assessment providing full details of any external lighting
including details of:
 The number, type, location and height of any lighting including
those on columns and/ or buildings
 The intensity of the installation (in Lux levels) and spill patterns
shown on a plan
 The proposed hours of use.
 Potential for impacts on ecological features
 Proposed mitigation measures
 Measures for unforeseen impacts and monitoring
 Assessment should demonstrate that proposed lighting levels
do not exceed minimum required for proposed activity
 The assessment must take into account the impact of lighting
from all relevant near and far viewpoints.

For any noise sensitive development, existing or consented,

12

 Department for Communities and Local
Government’s Lighting in the Countryside
1997.
 Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Light (2011), Institute of
Lighting Professionals
 Bats and Lighting in the UK (2009), the
Bat Conservation Society
 An appropriately qualified Lighting
Engineer
 Guidance notes for the reduction of light
pollution
 NPPG: Light pollution
 https://www.sportengland.org/media/4181
/artificial-sports-lighting-design-guide2012-051112.pdf
 A qualified acoustic specialist.

Indicative minimum threshold or HDV flows (AADT) of 25 within/adjacent to AQMA, or 100 elsewhere; LDV flows (AADT) of 100 within/adjacent to AQMA,
or 500 elsewhere.
14

Assessment

existing major noise
source e.g.
motorways or trunk
road, airports and
possibly railway,
industrial activities
such as minerals or
waste operations.

potentially affected by the proposed development, a noise
assessment should be prepared by a competent person that
defines the baseline sound environment, following appropriate
guidance, usually established through measurement, and the
impact of the proposed development using prediction and
measurement techniques as appropriate. Where criteria in
appropriate guidance may be exceeded, mitigation measures
should be provided such that the criteria are not exceeded.

 Your relevant Borough or District Council
Environmental Health Officer.
 “Guidelines for Noise Control – Minerals
and Waste Disposal”, 1994 Surrey
County Council
 NPPG: Noise

When the development
itself is likely to generate
significant noise levels
e.g. outdoors sports
activities.

 BS 4142:2014 “Methods for rating and
assessing industrial and commercial
sound”
 Design Manual for Roads and Bridges Standards for Highways

Page 185

High
Pressure
Pipeline
Search13

9.

For all developments
involving excavation
or below ground
works. There are
special requirements
for safe working in
close proximity to a
high pressure pipeline
and proposed works
require approval from
a pipeline operator
prior to commencing.

Evidence to show that a high pressure pipeline search has been
carried out and plan to show location of pipes

 Linesearch before u dig
 National Grid
 Cadent Gas Network

 Southern Gas Network

AIRPORTS

SUBJECT
Airport

WHEN REQUIRED

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS

All applications within the

The statement should show how the development will not constitute

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Annex 2 to the Department for

13

Pipeline operators do not have statutory powers although may have legal agreements in place on land and clearly this is a matter that has significant health
and safety implications.
15

9

9

Safeguarding
Statement

Page 186

consultation area of civil
and military aerodromes
and airstrips14 and
where:
 The proposal involves
landfilling
 The development
involves features
attractive to
hazardous birds such
as: amenity
landscaping and
water features, this
includes the
enhancement of
existing wet areas or
water courses and
buildings with ledges,
gantries and flat roofs

a hazard to air traffic, with or without mitigation proposed.

 Safeguarding Aerodromes, Technical
Sites and Military Explosive Storage
Areas’ ‘Potential Bird Hazards from
Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes
(SUDS) August 2006.
 Guidance on civil aviation (CAA) planning
consultation requirements, August 2012
 The Airport Operators Association (AOA)
the General Aviation Awareness Council
safeguarding of Aerodromes Advice
Notes: Advice Note 1
 ‘Safeguarding – an Overview’: Advice
Note 2 ‘Lighting near Aerodromes’
 Advice Note 3 ‘Potential Bird Hazards
from Amenity landscaping and Building
Design.’

Where the proposal
includes lighting which
may impact on airport
safety (i.e. dazzling)
Where a proposal
involves the venting and
flaring of gas.

 Advice Note 4 ‘Cranes and Other
Construction Issues’
 Advice Note 7 ‘Wind Turbines and
Aviation’

Applicants are advised to
discuss non-official
safeguarding areas with
planning officers

14

Transport/ODPM Circular 1/2003

including Heathrow, Gatwick, Biggin Hill, Farnborough, Fairoaks, Northolt, Odiham
16

10.

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

SUBJECT
Sustainable
Design and
Construction
Statement

11.

WHEN REQUIRED
Large school
expansions, major
developments (over
1000sqm) or where
Borough or District
stipulate specific
thresholds

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Statement detailing how sustainable forms of design/construction
have been incorporated into the new development and any
proposed renewable energy technologies.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 NPPG: Climate Change



NPPG: Renewable and low carbon
energy
Relevant policies within Borough /
District Local Plans

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

SUBJECT

Page 187

Statement of
Community
Involvement

WHEN REQUIRED
For any proposals with
substantial community
interest.
Any proposal where this
is a requirement under
Section 61 (w) of the
Localism Act 2011 when
enacted and required by
the Town and County
Planning (Development
Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2010
subsequent regulations.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
A Statement explaining how the applicant has complied with the
pre-application engagement recommendation made in Surrey
County Council’s Statement of Community involvement.
Developers are encouraged to inform the community of their plans
to ensure that a link is established at an early stage in the process.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 Surrey County Council’s Statement of
Community Involvement.
 Section 61W of the Localism Act 2011
(when enacted)
 The Local Government Association,
British Property Federation & Others.
 The Ten Commitments to Effective Preapplication engagement
 NPPG: Before submitting an application

17

9

9

12. PITCH LAYOUT PLAN
SUBJECT
Pitch Layout
Plan

WHEN REQUIRED
Developments on school
sites where the proposal
would be located on part
of the playing field or on
an existing playing pitch.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Plan to show the existing and proposed playing pitch layout
including hard and soft play.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE


Sport England



NPPG: Open space, sports and
recreational facilities, public rights of
way and local green space



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Chapter 8)

13. STRUCTURAL AND ENGINEERING STATEMENT
SUBJECT

Page 188

Structural
and
Engineering
Statement

WHEN REQUIRED
A structural survey
maybe required for any
applications that propose
 The conversion of
A building;
 Substantial
demolition
 Where a listed
building consent is
sought and the proposed
works could significantly
affect the historic fabric
of the building;
 Where the
application involves a
building/ buildings with
structural problems.

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
An appraisal of the structural stability of a building. The survey
should be prepared by an expert and cover the condition of a
building and whether it is capable of accommodating the
proposed works.

18

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE
 National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (chapter 11)


Possible Local Development
Framework Policies relating to
Structural Engineering Statements

14. CONTAMINATED LAND
SUBJECT
Contaminated
Land
Assessment

WHEN REQUIRED
Not required for
sites with no known
contamination

Page 189

Where previous
uses of the site, or
adjacent land,
could have caused
contamination (e.g.
mineral extraction,
waste disposal,
landfilling, industrial
processes, petrol
stations,
institutional/
residential with fuel
storage, agricultural
chemical storage,
vehicle
parking/servicing,
etc)

ASSESSMENTS/ REPORTS/ SURVEYS
Investigation of the nature and extent of soil and groundwater
contamination and how any contamination would be addressed,
including a desktop ground investigation and risk assessment
identifying pollutant sources, pathways and receptors plus
strategies for land remediation.

WHY IS IT REQUIRED AND GUIDANCE


Your local Contaminated Land Officer



The Environment Agency



NPPG: Land affected by
contamination



National Planning Policy Framework
2012 (Para 56)



Possible Local development
Framework Policies relating to
Contaminated Land Assessments

Where there is known contamination, a Phase 1 Preliminary Risk
Assessment will be required.

19

9

9

APPENDIX 1:
List of Planning Departments of Local Borough and District Councils in Surrey












Elmbridge
Epsom and Ewell
Guildford
Mole Valley
Reigate and Banstead
Runnymede
Spelthorne
Surrey Heath
Tandridge
Waverley
Woking

Page 190

Other Key Surrey County Council Statutory Consultees














Natural England
Historic England
Highways England
Environment Agency
SuDs Team
County Highway Authority
Southern Water
Sutton and East Surrey Water
AONB
Surrey Wildlife Trust
Forestry Commission
National Trust
Thames Water

20

